
 

 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 276136 

Please ask for Mandy Pattinson 
Email: 

mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
Thursday, 17 September 2020 
10.00 am 

Oak Room, County Buildings, Stafford 
 
NB. Members are requested to ensure that their Laptops/Tablets are fully charged 
before the meeting 
 

John Tradewell 
Director of Corporate Services 

9 September 2020 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1.  Apologies  
   
2.  Declarations of Interest  
   
3.  Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held 

on 24 July 2020 
(Pages 1 - 6) 

   
4.  Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation - Quarterly 

Update 
(Pages 7 - 66) 

   
 Report of the Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for Economy and Skills.  
   
5.  Infrastructure+ and Lighting for Staffordshire Performance 

Review 
(Pages 67 - 216) 

   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport.  
   
6.  Flood Management  
   
 To consider the verbal report of the Cabinet Member.  
   
7.  Work Programme (Pages 217 - 222) 
   
8.  Exclusion of the Public  
   



 

 

 The Chairman to move:- 
 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 
 

 
Part Two 
(All reports in this section are exempt) 
 
nil 

 

   
 

Committee Membership 
 

Tina Clements (Vice-
Chairman) 
Mike Deakin 
Keith Flunder 
Syed Hussain 
Ian Lawson 
Alastair Little 
 

Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
Ian Parry (Chairman) 
Jessica Shulman 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
 

 
 
Note for Members of the Press and Public 
 
Filming of Meetings 
 
The Open (public) section of this meeting may be filmed for live or later broadcasting or 
other use, and, if you are at the meeting, you may be filmed, and are deemed to have 
agreed to being filmed and to the use of the recording for broadcast and/or other 
purposes. 
 
Recording by Press and Public 
 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is permitted 
from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the chairman, disrupt 
the meeting.  
 
Scrutiny and Support Manager: Mandy Pattinson Tel: (01785) 278502 
 
 

 



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 24 
July 2020 

 
Present: Ian Parry (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Tina Clements (Vice-
Chairman) 
Keith Flunder 
Syed Hussain 
Ian Lawson 
Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
 

Kyle Robinson 
Jessica Shulman 
David Smith 
Bernard Williams 
 

 
Also in attendance: Jonathan Price and Philip White 
 
 
 
PART ONE 
 
88. Declarations of Interest 
 
Ms Jessica Shulman, Parent Governor Representative, wished to put on record that she 
worked closely with Mr Alun Harding, Headteacher of Codsall High School, in relation to 
minute no.91. 
 
Mr Philip White, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Employability and Skills, 
wished to put on record that his wife was a secondary school teacher, in relation to 
minute no. 91. 
 
89. Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held on 18th 
June 2020 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
meeting held on 18 June 2020 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
90. Community Learning Briefing Paper 
 
The Skills and Employability Service provided Community Learning through a range of 
formal and informal programmes for adults across the County. It provided programmes 
that supported people and their families to gain skills needed to progress in the world of 
work and to support parents to give their children the best start in life. Community 
Learning offered engaging “first steps” learning opportunities as a way of increasing 
participation for people who were least likely to engage in adult learning and to prepare 
learners for more formal learning, as well as offering inclusive programmes to the 
community that helped prevent social isolation through poor health. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

 Members heard that this Service was funded through the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency (ESFA) and worked with schools, colleges, third sector organisations and local 
community groups across Staffordshire. 90% of Service delivery was through 
commissioned provision to a range of sub-contracted partner organisations. The four 
priorities for the Service were: 

 to develop the skills, confidence, motivation and resilience of adults of different 
ages and backgrounds; 

 to support individuals to progress towards formal learning or employability; 

 to support individuals to improve their health and well-being, including mental 
health; and 

 to develop stronger communities. 
 
Members received details of the learning framework, the 2019-2020 academic year 
performance for terms 1 & 2, and funding. The funding criteria for adult learning was for 
those outside of compulsory school age, therefore 18+ years of age.  
 
In particular Members received details of the Service response to Covid 19 and its 
immediate and long-term impacts. The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Employability and Skills acknowledged the challenge the Service had faced during this 
crisis, and particularly paid tribute to Amanda Darlington, newly appointed Community 
Learning Manager, for managing the crisis whilst being new in post. 
 
Members noted there had been good engagement of learners across five of the eight 
districts and that further work was needed to improve engagement in South 
Staffordshire, Staffordshire Moorlands and Newcastle. Consideration was given to the 
reasons for this, including whether there was any correlation between levels of need and 
employability. It was noted that enrolment for adult learning courses had been low in 
Newcastle in previous years and members asked for further data to identify the reasons 
for this and what was being done to address the issues identified.  
 
One of the consequences of the Covid 19 crisis was a more rapid move to all on-line 
learning and Members noted the challenges that had emerged. Going forward Members 
asked whether the on-line offer would remain a significant part of the Service offer. In 
particular they noted that any geographical differences in offer were removed with on-
line courses, which was beneficial. However, they also shared concerns that homes 
without access to appropriate IT equipment would be disadvantaged, asking that 
consideration be given to how access to equipment could be achieved, through possible 
loan equipment to communities and/or individuals. The use of libraries in accessing 
equipment was also discussed to help combat digital exclusion. Wellbeing issues were 
highlighted by the Select Committee, noting that for some individuals the ability to learn 
outside their home environment was essential for their health and wellbeing, giving 
domestic violence, small housing/crowded households and low-income home heating 
difficulties as some examples. 
 
An increase in unemployment was expected as a result of Covid 19 and Members 
asked whether the Service would need to increase their job training offer to help 
address this. Prior to this crisis Staffordshire had excellent employability, however there 
had been a concern at the proportion of low skilled, low wage jobs. It was expected that 
unemployment levels would rise dramatically due to Covid 19 and work was being 
developed to ameliorate this, including operating an emergency triage service through 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) with discussion around training and skills for 
individuals facing redundancy. It was expected that this would continue post-Covid. 
 
Members noted that the planned enrolment target of 50% had not been met and 
understood that this was as a result of the Covid 19 crisis.   
 
The Select Committee suggested that learning pathways would help support 
engagement and employability of adult learners. Progression learning was helpful and 
used to support learners in these areas. 
 
The budget was allocated dependent on need. Those areas identified as most in need 
had the highest proportion of funding allocation. Digital learning costs were lower. 
Members queried the cost gap between the services commissioned and the funding 
they received. This funding was used for management costs, including quality control 
measures to ensure the courses being provided were high quality and fit for purpose.  
Members agreed that there was a need to quantify the benefit from this Service, 
considering wider impacts than engagement figures and course satisfaction to wellbeing 
and employability, evidencing a measurable impact to support investability. A range of 
benchmarking and performance measures were used to evidence the Service 
performance, including benchmarking against other authorities. Amongst other 
performance and inspection measures Members were informed of the change to the 
Ofsted inspection for adult learning which included the need to evidence quality and 
effectiveness of provision. 
 
The Select Committee commended Officers on the report and on their response to the 
Covid 19 crisis. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

a)  the performance of the Community Learning offer half way through the academic 
year 2019-2020 be noted; 

b) the changes made to the Community Learning offer in response to the Covid 19 
crisis be commended; and 

c) the comments outlined by Members be fed back into future Community Learning 
offers. 

 
91. Covid 19 school Update 
 
The Chairman welcomed the newly appointed Cabinet Member for Education and 
representatives of Staffordshire Headteachers: Ms Claire Evans, Executive 
Headteacher (The Mease Federation St Andrew's CofE (C) Primary School & Mary 
Howard CofE (VC) Primary School);  Mr Chris Best, Executive Headteacher (The 
Meadows Special School & Springfield Special School); and, Mr Alun Harding, 
Executive Headteacher (Codsall High School, Perton Middle School & Bilbrook Middle 
School), who shared their experiences of the challenges faced during the Covid 19 crisis 
and how these had been addressed. 
 
The Cabinet Member shared with the Select Committee his pride in the way 
Staffordshire schools had risen to the challenges presented by the pandemic. Almost all 
schools had remained open throughout, including bank holidays, half term and Easter 
breaks. There had been over 200 pieces of new guidance and/or legislation, all of which 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

had been taken on board. An Education Reference Group had been established to 
provide a forum for discussion around the new guidance and approaches to the issues 
faced. Select Committee Members heard details of the level of commitment shown by 
schools in supporting the most vulnerable, in providing continued learning for those not 
able to attend school and in working towards opening for the wider year groups.   
 
The Select Committee heard from headteacher representative Mr Alun Harding about 
the initial shock of the impact of Covid 19 and understanding of the issues faced, the 
online learning resources for children and the effective safeguarding measures 
established. This was swiftly followed by adapting the model as new guidance was 
developed and more children came back into school. They had developed a blended 
learning approach, a mix of on-line and app learning, physical resource packs sent 
home and pastoral care by staff to ensure pupils were contacted weekly. Contact and 
engagement had been monitored, with form teachers contacting those pupils where 
gaps in engagement occurred. The expectation was that there would be considerable 
anxiety around returning in September, particularly around the logistics of large numbers 
of children moving around the school, specifically when considering the buildings layout. 
A further concern was around pupils who have had little routine or structure over the 
pandemic months and their necessary adjustment. 
 
Ms Claire Evans told members that she had combined those pupils entitled to attend the 
two primary schools within her federation and run out of one school during lockdown. 
She felt there had been some positives from the experience, including: 

 natural team building for staff, with staff pulling together to address the challenges; 

 putting the school at the heart of the community again; 

 more flexibility with the curriculum, developing a curriculum which focused on positive mental 
health and providing for their children’s needs; 

 re-establishing good home/school relationships; 

 a successful phased return for children of every year group; 

 although there were restrictions on classroom layout, pupils had responded well and enjoyed 
working in their own space; 

 children had reacted well, developing skills for the future of adaptability and resilience; and 

 improved social work links. 

Less positive had been the amount of different guidance, which at times had been 
overwhelming. The free school meals (FSM) voucher system had also presented 
challenges, with difficulties in accessing these. 
 
Mr Chris Best told members that the pace at which things happened had been very 
challenging. Guidance for special schools had often been vague, with each special 
school developing their response in slightly different ways but with similar moral 
purposes. Consideration had to be given to what was a “vulnerable” child in a special 
school context. In Mr Best’s schools all children were entitled to attend as all pupils were 
considered vulnerable. A particular challenge for special schools was the geographical 
area from which the pupils travelled, with pupils from Cheshire, Derbyshire, 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent attending the Meadows & Springfield Special Schools. 
The impact of local outbreaks on the school was therefore difficult to manage, as was 
the impact on the “bubble” approach to pupil attendance. Pupils and their families had 
been brilliant throughout the crisis, appreciating the difficulties faced and supporting 
decisions made, with effective communication being at the heart of this. 
 

Page 4



 

- 5 - 
 

Members noted that, whilst some distance learning may remain in future, interaction 
with the pupils and judging their engagement and the way they accessed learning was 
more effective in a classroom setting. School environments also enabled wider work to 
help develop more rounded individuals. Health and wellbeing of pupils was also better 
addressed in the school. 
 
Difficulties for some families in accessing technology was discussed. In some cases this 
was poorer families not having access to technology, but included families with parents 
working from home so all family members needed to use the same IT equipment. 
Broadband issues were also faced in more rural areas creating an inequality in 
accessing education on-line. 
 
The term “social distancing” was seen as unhelpful, especially for primary aged pupils. 
The term “physical distancing” was more appropriate, as this explained to children the 
need to keep distance whilst not suggesting they should avoid being sociable. 
 
Members noted that schools and teaching staff had been brilliant throughout the 
pandemic, as had the wider school staff and governors. They shared concerns over the 
impact on school budgets, highlighting the teachers’ pay rise and whether this would 
need to be found from existing budgets. The Cabinet Member advised that further 
information was needed before the budget implications were clear.  
 
School transport concerns were shared, specifically how this would look from 
September. Parents were urged to plan transport early in preparation for the September 
return. The Cabinet Member said that they were working with schools to produce school 
transport action plans. All routes would be running for those entitled to school transport, 
with pupils asked to wear face coverings, being loaded and unloaded according to 
distance, encouraged to use the same seat  and with good vehicle ventilation in place. 
Vacant seats would not be sold to non-entitled pupils to allow for physical distancing and 
revised operational guidance had been produced. An additional £1m had been provided 
to help support this transport.  
 
100% of special school pupils attending Mr Best’s schools relied on school transport. 
The transport mix of pupils was different to the required bubble pupil mix within the 
school. This presented challenges to the “bubble” concept but there was a balance of 
risk to be considered, with sensible measures in place to overcome these issues as far 
as possible. 
 
Some secondary schools were able to provide some transport themselves through their 
minibus use. Logistical planning was necessary, using staggered start and finish times 
to allow for appropriate cleaning. It was anticipated that this service would adapt and 
evolve as necessary once the term had started. 
 
Most of the enrichment work provided by schools through, for example, school trips and 
visits, had necessarily been cancelled. Members asked when this work was likely to 
restart. Schools were focused on getting all children back into school, the new logistics 
of this within structure, planning and organisation, alongside addressing the needs of 
the returning pupils, their anxieties, educational gaps and lockdown lack of structured 
learning. 
 

Page 5



 

- 6 - 
 

Whilst there was anxiety amongst all year groups about the learning missed, this was 
exacerbated in years 10 and 12, the pre-GCSE and pre-A Level year groups. 
Examination boards had already indicated that there would be adjustments to the exam 
specifications, particularly around practical work. There would be a need for continued 
bended learning to try and help address gaps, with examination groups prioritised 
initially, and this work filtering down through the other year groups.  
 
Within primary, work at home appeared to be covered in reading and mental maths, but 
gaps were seen in writing. Mr Best informed the Select Committee that catch-up was 
what special schools were all about. However, his greater concern was around the 
anxiety levels and the need to rebuild trust and relationships. 
 
The Select Committee, Chairman and Cabinet Members all thanked the headteachers 
for their attendance at this meeting and sharing their views on work throughout the 
pandemic. They also wished to place on record their gratitude for the work of all schools 
during this crisis, exposing themselves to risk, their flexibility in accommodating shift in 
styles and adaptability in addressing the new guidance, noting that Staffordshire schools 
were in the top percentage nationally for remaining open and returning pupils. They 
thanked everyone from across the school community for the excellent job done in 
responding to the crisis and in the work they were undertaking to rebuild schools’ futures 
in September. 
 
RESOLVED – That Staffordshire Schools be congratulated for the excellent work 
undertaken throughout the Covid 19 crisis, and their continued work in planning for 
school re-opening in September be noted with gratitude. 
 
92. Work Programme 
 
The Select Committee considered their work programme, noting that this had been 
amended following a Triangulation meeting between the Chairman, Vice Chairman, 
Deputy Vice Chairman, Cabinet Members and Officers. In addition to these 
amendments members noted and/or requested the following changes: 

 Staffordshire Air Quality – report moved back to November to allow for the impact of Covid 19 
to be included; 

 request for a standing monthly update item on the economic health of the County, highlighting 
any business failures, business growths, unemployment/employment figures etc to inform the 
work programme going forward; and, 

 an update on today’s discussions around schools and school transport during the Covid 19 crisis 
to the November Select Committee, considering the issues tackled in re-opening, with the same 
headteacher panel invited to attend. 

 
RESOLVED – That the amendments to the work programme be agreed. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 6



 

 

 Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee - Thursday 17 
September 2020 

 

Economic Recovery, Renewal & Transformation – Quarterly Update 
 
Recommendations  
 
I recommend that: 
 
a. The Select Committee considers the quarterly update provided on progress made 

against the Staffordshire Economic Recovery, Renewal & Transformation 
Strategy. 
 

b. The Select Committee considers the interventions already made by the County 
Council and partner organisations and recommends further interventions to be 
considered by Cabinet that the Committee believes would help to enable the 
successful delivery of the Strategy 
 

c. Relevant Cabinet Members bring updates on delivery of the strategy to this 
Committee for scrutiny every 3 months. 

 
Report of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy & Skills 
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to:  

 
a. Provide the Select Committee with an opportunity to consider and comment 

upon progress made in relation to the Economic, Recovery, Renewal & 
Transformation Strategy.  The unprecedented nature of the COVID-19 crisis 
has meant that the County Council has had to react quickly to support our 
businesses and residents.  The Strategy is flexible enough to be able to 
respond to the range of scenarios that may become the reality over the coming 
months and years.  It is therefore a ‘living document’ that may be updated as 
required through it’s timeline.  This is therefore an opportunity for the Select 
Committee to help to shape the Strategy and County Council’s plans for the 
local economy over the next five years. 
 

b. The successful delivery of the Strategy in achieving the vision and aims that it 
sets out will be dependent on many factors, not least the identification and 
delivery of appropriate projects and programmes.  A range of interventions 
have already been made by the County Council, Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SSLEP), HM Government and other 
partners to respond to the immediate crisis whilst the development of the 
supporting delivery plan(s) for the Strategy is ongoing.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
c. Monitoring the County Council’s performance in delivering the Strategy will be 

vital to ensuring we ultimately achieve its vision and aims.  The Select 
Committee has an important role in scrutinising our performance over the 
duration of the Strategy. 

 

Report 
 
Background 
 
2. Connected; competitive; complementary; collaborative – are the key terms that 

define our area.  Located at the heart of the UK, the vibrant corridors and urban 
centres of the connected county of Staffordshire form a growing economic 
powerhouse.  The COVID-19 crisis has impacted this growth, but our Economic 
Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy outlines our ambitious and 
achievable plans as to how we will mitigate the impacts of the crisis and take 
advantage of opportunities that have arisen to transform the local economy.  
Alongside our outstanding natural assets, unparalleled connectivity, vast cultural 
and leisure offer and varied housing offer, this will enable us to ensure that we 
remain amongst the best places to live, work and invest in the country. 
 

3. Our Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy was agreed by 
Cabinet and scrutinised by the Prosperous Select Committee in June 2020.  At 
that time, the impact of the crisis on the economy was unclear and that very much 
remains the case.  Therefore, it is important that our Strategy and associated 
delivery plan(s) are flexible enough to respond to whatever situation becomes a 
reality over the coming months and years. 
 

4. A detailed ‘live’ assessment of the impact of the crisis is being updated frequently 
and has informed the development of our Economic Recovery, Renewal & 
Transformation Strategy and continues to inform the development of interventions 
/ projects / programmes.  The Strategy sets out our priorities for the next five 
years through four non-linear phases: 
 
a. Respond – support our businesses and residents through the COVID-19 

crisis. 
b. Recover – create the conditions to support our businesses and residents to 

return-to-work as soon as possible. 
c. Renew – continue to progress those priorities that will play an important role 

in achieving our ambitions to develop the local economy beyond the current 
crisis. 

d. Transform – utilise the opportunities presented by the current economic 
conditions by supporting the transformation of the local economy to be digital, 
clean and higher-value. 

 
5. The five economic themes of business environment, people, infrastructure, 

place and ideas that form the integral part of our Strategic Plan and the national 
and local industrial strategies remain relevant, but the strategic priorities aligned to 
these themes have been reconsidered in response to the COVID-19 crisis and 
possible prolonged economic downturn.  The Strategy therefore sets out our 

Page 8



 

 

revised strategic priorities for each of these themes across the four non-linear 
phases as set out in the framework below. 

 

 
  
6. There are several issues that will be considered that cut across all the five themes 

including the need to meet carbon-neutral targets, supporting inclusive growth to 
ensure all our residents benefit from the development of the local economy 
including within urban and rural areas and communicating and engaging 
effectively with our businesses and residents, thereby creating a strong 
Staffordshire identity. Our Strategy is fundamentally based on the principles of 
achieving sustainable growth and we are also keen to underpin future growth 
within our businesses, places and through the skills of  people with the latest 
innovations in digital technology and infrastructure such as 5G and other 
emerging technologies. 

 
7. We will need to continue to review and refresh our existing activities against the 

priorities of the Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy whilst 
new programmes will need to be developed where there are gaps.   

 
Current state of the Staffordshire Economy 
 
8. To effectively respond to the challenges we face we must be able to see behind 

the headlines and understand the full picture that can often be so revealing and 
helpful in terms responding appropriately with pace.  To this end, Staffordshire 
County Council has begun to produce a new Economic Bulletin that we intend to 
publish on a monthly basis to coincide with the release of data on the main 
Government economic support measure (i.e. Universal Credit, Coronavirus Job 
Retention Scheme and Self-Employment Income Support Scheme).  Overall, the 
proportion of working age Staffordshire residents on one of these Government 
support schemes is largely on a par with the rest of the country (circa 34%). 
 

9. The claimant count in Staffordshire saw a slight rise of 705 between June 2020 
and July 2020 to a total of 26,465 claimants and a rate change from 4.8% to 4.9% 
of the working age population - however, not all will be out of work.  Whilst there 

Page 9



 

 

have been some announcements of potential redundancies, due to the move to 
Universal Credit claimant count figures now  also include those that have had a 
lower income through Covid-19, including furloughed staff and part time 
employees, short-term layoffs and self-employed that have paused or ceased 
operating. 

10. The claimant count rate is still relatively low in Staffordshire (4.9%) compared to 
regionally (7.3%) and nationally (6.5%), however, it is young people, the lowest 
paid (including those in manual occupations, more routine or less skilled jobs)  
and part-time workers who continue to feel the impact of the economic shock the 
most. 

 
11. Although unemployment and those claiming benefits has not surged further over 

more recent months this is largely due to the considerable number of workers 
which remain on the Government-backed furlough scheme. However, there has to 
be some concern that over the coming months as the furlough scheme winds 
down and already announced potential job cuts become a reality there are likely to 
be more people that find themselves out of work. 
 

12. Across the country the number of job vacancies has decreased since the crisis 
began and still remain well below levels seen a year earlier, although there are 
signs that the job market is starting to pick back up.  We continue to see demand 
for roles in health, social care and distribution with clear emerging opportunities 
for job creation in digital (including online retail), construction (£900 million Getting 
Building Fund) and the green economy (including retrofitting homes to improve 
energy efficiency and electric cars). 

 
Ongoing / completed interventions 

 
13. Our response to the crisis is already well underway in Staffordshire with a number 

of interventions directly undertaken by the County Council with the aim of 
supporting businesses and individuals.  These include: 

 
a. The £0.500m Staffordshire County Council emergency grants scheme which 

has helped over 200 micro-businesses so far survive the crisis by providing 
them with a grant of up to £1000 to help pay outstanding supplier bills 
 

b. A new £0.360m Staffordshire County Council Start-up support scheme for 
those who are looking to start a business in a priority sector. The targets are 
1000 engagements with pre-start individuals, 300 participants on the course 
and 200 new businesses established in a year. It was launched on 1st July and 
is being delivered by the Chambers of Commerce 
 

c. A £90,000 PPE Starter Pack Programme which helped 2000 micro businesses 
to get back on their feet by providing a listed of trusted PPE suppliers and a 
small pack of 30 masks and gloves 

 
d. The County Council lead the development of a Countywide Redundancy Task 

Group where more than 20 national and local partners are working together to 
support businesses and employees with potential redundancies. Alongside this 
is the Redundancy and Recruitment Triage Service to help residents gain new 

Page 10



 

 

skills and employment and has been developed with the Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SSLEP) and delivered by the 
National Careers Service 
 

e. Delayed rent payments by cancelling direct debit collection at our Enterprise 
Centres for three months which potentially would have cost £310,000. 
However, most businesses continued to pay their rent and payment plans have 
been arranged with the others leaving an outstanding owed amount of less 
than £90,000, and 
 

f. The planned progression of the extensions to the Enterprise Centres at 
Cannock Chase and Silverdale to increase the number of industrial units 
available for businesses. 

 
14. These local interventions made by the County Council are in addition to an 

enhanced communications campaign ‘Staffordshire Means Back to Business’ and 
further measures put in place by partner organisations including the SSLEP, the 
SSLEP Growth Hub and HM Government.  Some of the main interventions made 
so far include: 

 
a. £143m of Government grant being passed through to businesses by our 

Districts and Boroughs; 
 

b. The Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) which has 
enabled many businesses to furlough their employees whilst they are unable to 
operate due to lockdown measures put in place.  The scheme currently pays 
employers a taxable grant worth 80 per cent of an employee’s wage cost, up to 
£2,500 a month, plus the associated employer National Insurance and pension 
contributions.  The scheme is being gradually withdrawn between the start of 
July and end of October.  
 

c. The Government self-employed income support scheme which provides a 
taxable grant to self-employed individuals and members of partnerships.  The 
grant is currently worth 80 per cent of average monthly profits in 2016-17, 
2017-18 and 2018-19, again up to £2,500 a month, and was recently extended 
until August. 
 

d. Coronavirus business interruption loan scheme and the Covid Corporate 
Financing Facility for the provision of loans to businesses, provided by 
commercial lenders with 80 percent of the loan guaranteed by the Government. 
 

e. Grant funding of either £10,000 or £25,000 for small businesses, depending on 
the rateable value of their properties.  
 

f. A 12-month business rates holiday announced by the Government for all retail, 
hospitality, leisure and nursery businesses. 

 
Getting Building Fund 

 

Page 11



 

 

15. The Government formally announced allocations made through it’s £900 million 
Getting Building Fund on 4th August 2020. Applications were made by each Local 
Enterprise Partnership in England, with the SSLEP allocated a total of £23.7 
million for projects across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent which are expected to 
directly create 2,440 jobs (with additional jobs being safeguarded and created in 
construction). 
 

16. The funding is also expected to unlock 115,000m2 of commercial floor space and 
2,000m2 of learning floor space, assist  1,150 new learners and 290 businesses 
and enable the delivery of 4.6km of new sustainable travel infrastructure to 
promote active modes of travel.   
 

17. Further details of the funding to be allocated are set out in press release which 
can be found at this web link.1 
 

18. A selection of successful projects have been selected on a partnership basis from 
across the SSLEP area many of which will involve the County Council in an 
enabling of delivery capacity. Projects which have been directly submitted by 
Staffordshire County Council include: 

 
a. i54 Western Extension - This project will support the remediation and full 

servicing of 60 acres of previously contaminated land to create high quality 
employment floor space. This funding will enable the extension to the highly 
successful i54 business park on the border of South Staffordshire and 
Wolverhampton. The existing i54 employment site has Enterprise Zone status 
and is home to 3,000 employees working at major companies including JLR, 
Moog, Eurofins and ERA 
 

b. Shire Hall Regeneration - This project will see Grade II* Listed Shire Hall in 
Stafford repurposed for entrepreneurialism and business start-ups. The old 
library will be converted to a business incubator. Staffordshire County Council 
have their own Enterprise Centre team who are ready to manage the space, 
and discussions are underway with Staffordshire University to create a pathway 
for graduates to utilise the space. This project will complement a proposed 
Future High Streets Fund investment to renovate the existing building as a 
cultural venue for the town. 
 

c. Staffordshire Local Sustainable Transport Package (LSTP) - This investment 
will provide 4.6km of walking / cycling infrastructure in Tamworth, Biddulph, 
Burton, Uttoxeter, Burntwood and Eccleshall, facilitating a green recovery and 
continuing the rediscovery of active travel seen throughout the COVID-19 
pandemic. The LSTP is a good example of the early work we are undertaking 
to ensure a sustainable and green recovery, which will encourage improved 
health, wellbeing and wider connectivity among our communities.  

 
Conclusion 

                                            
1
 Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, Getting Building Fund.  

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/90
6565/GBF_Stoke_and_Staffs.pdf  

Page 12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/906565/GBF_Stoke_and_Staffs.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/906565/GBF_Stoke_and_Staffs.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/906565/GBF_Stoke_and_Staffs.pdf


 

 

 
19. Whilst there will undoubtedly be a negative impact to the local economy in the 

short-term at least, our Strategy also recognises that many opportunities have 
arisen that we need to grasp to hasten the development of the Staffordshire 
economy, such as the increase in homeworking and positive environmental 
impacts.  Delivering our Strategy and taking full advantage of these opportunities 
will further enable the Staffordshire economy to renew and ultimately transform 
into a place where clean, productive businesses are created and thrive whilst 
existing business are supported to fully participate in the new economy.  

 
Link to Strategic Plan  
 
20. The Strategy primarily relates to the ‘access to more good jobs and share the 

benefits of economic growth’ Strategic Plan priority and all the associated 
priorities.  However, there are aspects of the Strategy that cut-across all the 
Strategic Plan priorities with increased prosperity in the County having the 
potential to have positive impacts on resident’s health, safety and happiness. 

 
Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 
21. A range of activity that the County Council has progressed over the last couple of 

years will remain important to the delivery of the Strategy, although may need to 
be refreshed in response to the COVID-19 crisis.  This includes the Education and 
Skills Strategy, scrutinised by the Committee in January 2020, and the Strategic 
Infrastructure Plan and Economic Growth Programme, both scrutinised by the 
Committee in October 2019. 

 
Community Impact 
 
22. The impact of the COVID-19 crisis has the potential to affect some demographic 

groups and locations more than others, although this is a situation that evolves 
rapidly and with some uncertainty. Inclusive growth is a theme that cuts across all 
the strategy and the aim is therefore for all residents to benefit from its delivery.  A 
‘live’ evidence base is being updated on a weekly basis to monitor the impact and 
a strategic priority within the Strategy is to support affected groups, allowing the 
County Council to respond accordingly. 

 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 
Appendix 1 – Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy 
Appendix 2 – Economic Bulletin – August 2020 
 

Contact Details 
 
Report Commissioner:  Anthony Hodge 
Job Title:    Assistant Director for Business & Enterprise 
Telephone No.:   07980 949799 
E-Mail Address:   anthony.hodge@staffordshire.gov.uk 

Page 13

mailto:anthony.hodge@staffordshire.gov.uk




  
 

 

Economic Bulletin - Issue 2 – August 2020 
 

Welcome to the second edition of the new Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin 
produced by our Economy, Skills and Insight Teams, which provides the timeliest secondary 
data available on what is happening with the local economy.  However, this clearly only 
provides part of the picture and over the coming months we intend to build up our softer 
intelligence to provide a better indication of what is happening on the ground, including the 
local response to the COVID-19 crisis. 
 

Alongside information on the Claimant Count and Job Vacancies that will be a part of every 
Bulletin, we again look at the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Furloughed Workers 
and Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) to assess how these schemes are 
being used in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent. This month’s issue also provides ward level 
analysis of the claimant count helping to identify areas which have been impacted the 
hardest across Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent and where there may be a greater need for 
support. We also provide analysis of how local businesses are making use of the Coronavirus 
Business Interruption Loan Scheme (CBILS) and the Bounce Back Loan Scheme (BBLS). 
 

We hope you find the Bulletin useful and welcome your comments and suggestions on 
further information you would like to see included in future editions.  If you do have any 
feedback please send your comments to Darren Farmer, Economy & Skills Analyst at 
darren.farmer@staffordshire.gov.uk. 
 

Stay Safe,  
Darryl Eyers 
Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills, Staffordshire County Council 

 

Page 15

mailto:darren.farmer@staffordshire.gov.uk


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 2 

Key Messages 
 

• The number of people on some form of government economic support scheme is 
currently largely on a par with the rest of the country (36%). 

• The claimant count in Staffordshire saw a slight rise of 705 between June 2020 and July 
2020 to a total of 26,465 claimants and a rate change from 4.8% to 4.9% of the working 
age population - however, not all will be out of work.  Whilst there has been some 
announcements of potential redundancies, due to the move to Universal Credit 
claimant count figures now  also include those that have had a lower income through 
COVID-19, including furloughed staff and part time employees, short-term layoffs and 
the self-employed who have paused or ceased operating. 

• The claimant count rate is still relatively low in Staffordshire (4.9%) compared to 
regionally (7.3%) and nationally (6.5%).  However, it is young people, the lowest paid 
(including those in manual occupations, more routine or less skilled jobs) and part-time 
workers who continue to feel the impact of the economic shock the most.  It remains 
vital that these groups are supported to help prevent them becoming long-term 
unemployed. 

• Although unemployment and those claiming benefits has not surged further over more 
recent months this is largely due to the considerable number of workers which remain 
on the Government-backed furlough scheme. However, there is concern that over 
coming months as the furlough scheme winds down and already announced potential 
job cuts become a reality there are likely to be more people that find themselves out 
of work. 

• The latest Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) and Self-Employment Income 
Support Scheme (SEISS) figures for July show that there was an increase of 6,900 
furloughed workers in Staffordshire compared to June and a 2,000 increase in Stoke-
on-Trent, although the pace of increases appears to be slowing.   SEISS claims increased 
by 500 in Staffordshire between June 2020 and July 2020 and by 100 in Stoke-on-Trent, 
again far smaller increases than those experienced between May and June although 
this is likely to be due to the design of the scheme with the second tranche only 
opening on 17th August. 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 3 

• Across the country the number of job vacancies has also decreased since the crisis 
began and still remain well below levels seen a year earlier, although there are signs 
that the job market is starting to pick back up. We continue to see demand for roles in 
health, social care and distribution with clear emerging opportunities for job creation 
in digital, construction and the green economy. 

• In conclusion, it is apparent that as we move out of lockdown and Government support 
is wound down there are more businesses finding the need to restructure their 
operations and unfortunately in some cases this means making staff redundant. 
However, it is also clear that as we continue to work together to drive local economic 
recovery more jobs are being saved in high-risk sectors and there are new 
opportunities being created in new roles and new sectors of the economy.  

• Our main focus now continues to be on working together to ensure that as many 
people as possible currently on furlough return to work and for those residents 
unfortunate enough to have lost their jobs support them back into work as we build a 
stronger local economy. 

• Fundamental to this is the work of the Countywide Redundancy Task Group where 
more than 20 local partners are working together to support businesses and employees 
with potential redundancies. Alongside this the Redundancy and Recruitment Triage 
Service will have an important role in helping residents gain new skills and 
employment. 

• Alongside this important work the County Council and our local partners have made 
numerous interventions over the last few months to support our residents and 
businesses including: 

o South Staffordshire Council have taken a proactive approach to business 
engagement during the pandemic.  The team have worked on a one council 
approach to helping the high streets get back to business using their ‘locality 
enablers’ with different specialisms from different teams of the Council to come 
together to engage with businesses to support their reopening plans.   Engaging 
District Councillors, Parish Councillors and businesses in the recovery approach 
on the high street has forged relationships to ensure that the village centres in 
the District access the support they need.  The team have also recognised the 
issues that the high street businesses were facing and have run bespoke webinars 
for business as well as offering virtual support clinics to businesses on our 
industrial estates.  In the future the Council will be offering a virtual business 
support team approach so that there is a one stop shop approach for businesses 
when they need contact with the Council services. 

Page 17



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 4 

o Around 1,800 packs of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) have been given away 
to businesses through the PPE Start-Back Scheme to support them in operating 
under Covid-Secure guidelines, whilst also offering advice on how to use PPE and 
where to buy safe, cost-effective PPE from trusted suppliers. 

o Over 50 people have already signed-up for the Staffordshire start-up support 
scheme. 

o Additional funding to support the recovery of the businesses within the tourism 
sector and Small & Medium Enterprises more broadly has recently been 
announced, with schemes to go live through the Growth Hub next month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Business/Coronavirus-COVID-19-support-for-businesses/Emergency-PPE/Help-to-use-PPE-correctly.aspx
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Business/Coronavirus-COVID-19-support-for-businesses/Emergency-PPE/PPE-Suppliers.aspx


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 5 

 

Local Picture – Residents on Government Support Schemes 
 

During this period it is important to be able to understand how local businesses are 
responding to the gradual reopening of the economy and what impact COVID-19 has had 
and continues to have on jobs. A key aspect of this is monitoring the number of people 
claiming Universal Credit (Claimant Count), and the number of people on the Coronavirus 
Job Retention (CJRS) and Self-Employment Income Support Schemes (SEISS), as seen 
below. 
 
Overall Number of Residents on Government Support Schemes 
 

 
 
In line with the Claimant Count rate which shows the proportion of the working age 
population claiming Universal Credit we have calculated the proportion of the working age 
population which may be on the furloughed or have accessed SEISS support. 
 
In total there are potentially just over 252,000 residents in the SSLEP area on Government 
support, equivalent to around 36% of the working age population which is similar to 
regional and national averages.  Tamworth (42%) and Cannock Chase (40%) have the 
highest rates while Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stafford (both 32%) have the lowest. 
 

 
 

SSLEP Working Age Population 694,954
Jobs in High Risk Sectors 221,000
Claimant Count July 2020 39,440
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Furloughed job claims up to 31st July 173,800
Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) claims up to 31st July 39,000
Potential workers on Government support 252,240
Potential % of working age population on Government support 36.3%
Note: Important to recognise that there may be some workers which are accessing more than one support scheme and there 
may be some double counting due to jobs moving on and off the furlough scheme

Page 19



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 6 

 
Detailed Breakdown 
 

Claimant Count1 
 

The following table highlights the level of claimant unemployment in the Staffordshire 
Districts and each of the Strategic Authorities in the West Midlands Region: 

 
Claimant Count (Universal Credit) Statistics: July 2020 

 

 
 

• The Claimant Count in Staffordshire saw a slight rise of 705 between June 2020 and July 
2020 to a total of 26,465 claimants. Stoke-on-Trent also saw a small increase of 180 
over the same period with a total of 12,975 claimants in July. 
 

• These slight increases in July are similar to the trend seen nationally and reflects what 
we have seen through HR1s notifications early in the crisis and some potential 
redundancies in SMEs. 
 

 
1 Source: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/ 

Area
Claimant 

Count Rate 
(July 2019)

Claimant 
Count Rate 
(June 2020)

Claimant 
Count Rate1 

(July 2020)

Number of 
Claimants 

(July 2020)

Monthly 
Change in 
Claimants 
(Numbers) 

Monthly 
Change in 
Claimants 

(%) 

Change in 
Claimants 

since March 
(Numbers) 

Change in 
Claimants 

since March 
(%) 

England 2.7 6.3 6.5 2,273,600 72,985 3.3% 1,210,095 113.8%
West Midlands 3.5 7.1 7.3 266,830 7,625 2.9% 122,480 84.8%

SSLEP 2.4 5.5 5.7 39,440 885 2.3% 20,070 103.6%

Birmingham 6.2 10.6 10.9 80,165 2,235 2.9% 30,795 62.4%
Wolverhampton 5.8 10.3 10.4 17,025 280 1.7% 6,645 64.0%
Sandwell 4.5 9.0 9.3 18,995 595 3.2% 8,215 76.2%
Walsall 4.3 8.6 8.8 15,150 315 2.1% 6,545 76.1%
Stoke-on-Trent 4.1 8.0 8.1 12,975 180 1.4% 5,655 77.3%
Dudley 4.1 7.3 7.5 14,530 495 3.5% 6,015 70.6%
Coventry 2.8 6.5 6.7 16,310 485 3.1% 8,310 103.9%
Telford and Wrekin 2.6 6.2 6.4 7,110 190 2.7% 3,680 107.3%
Solihull 2.7 5.7 5.9 7,475 260 3.6% 3,825 104.8%
Worcestershire 2.1 5.2 5.4 19,120 610 3.3% 10,815 130.2%
Warwickshire 2.0 4.8 5.0 17,490 675 4.0% 9,660 123.4%
Staffordshire 1.8 4.8 4.9 26,465 705 2.7% 14,415 119.6%
Shropshire 1.9 4.6 4.8 9,080 395 4.5% 5,070 126.4%
Herefordshire 1.7 4.2 4.4 4,935 205 4.3% 2,825 133.9%

Tamworth 2.7 5.9 6.2 2,940 120 4.3% 1,450 97.3%
Cannock Chase 2.0 5.7 5.8 3,660 70 1.9% 2,005 121.1%
East Staffordshire 1.9 5.4 5.4 3,915 10 0.3% 2,195 127.6%
Lichfield 1.7 4.8 5.0 3,055 110 3.7% 1,735 131.4%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 2.1 4.8 4.9 3,980 70 1.8% 2,000 101.0%
South Staffordshire 1.7 4.5 4.7 3,140 140 4.7% 1,830 139.7%
Stafford 1.5 4.2 4.4 3,590 95 2.7% 1,935 116.9%
Staffordshire Moorlands 1.4 3.6 3.8 2,185 95 4.5% 1,265 137.5%
1 The claimant rate is the proportion of the working age population claiming benefits

Page 20

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 7 

 
• It is also important to look at the change in the Claimant Count seen since March 2020 

(pre-COVID) where the number of claimants in Staffordshire has more than doubled 
with an increase of 14,415 claimants and in Stoke-on-Trent there has been an increase 
of 5,655. 
 

• Ultimately, the full effect of COVID-19 on employment will not be felt until the furlough 
and SEISS schemes come to an end. 
 

• The increases in the Claimant Count also need to be viewed in the context of the move 
to Universal Credit.  Before Universal Credit, the Claimant Count was based upon 
Jobseeker’s Allowance claimants, i.e. people out of work but looking for a job. A 
proportion of claimants currently will have a job but claiming Universal Credit due to 
having a low income - the reasons for the increase in claimants are still to fully emerge 
but evidence suggests there will be a combination of factors such as: 

o New Job Starters/PT employees/Self-employed with no income claiming Universal 
Credit because they are not eligible for the CJRS; 

o Self-employed ceased trading or have very low income claiming Universal Credit 
(and are either not eligible for, or not yet been paid, income under the SEISS); 

o Working part-time low-income workers claiming Universal Credit and may be 
furloughed; 

o Potential Redundancies within Small & Medium Enterprises laying off staff in the 
short-term. 

 
• Unfortunately, due to data limitations it is not currently possible to quantify the 

proportion of people that fall into these cohorts at a local level. 
 
• Given the comparatively strong position of Staffordshire going into the pandemic and 

the fact that COVID-19 has impacted much of the economy during lockdown, even with 
the significant increase in claimants the proportion of working age residents on such 
benefits remains comparatively low in Staffordshire with a rate of 4.9% in July compared 
to 7.3% regionally and 6.5% nationally.  In Stoke-on-Trent the Claimant Count rate 
remains above both the regional and national averages at 8.1%. 
 

• As well as workers across sectors being impacted differently, there are also signs that it 
is the lowest paid, part-time workers and young people (particularly apprentices) that 
are being hardest hit.  These groups are more likely to work in sectors that have shut 
down or reduced activity, such as hospitality and non-essential retail. They are also less 
likely to be able to work from home. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 8 

 
• As previously reported young people aged 18-24 are being disproportionately 

impacted by unemployment where the claimant rate for young people in Staffordshire 
has increased from 3.7% in March to 8.3% in July compared to a rise from 2.3% to 4.9% 
for all working-age residents, while in Stoke-on-Trent the rate has risen from 5.9% in 
March to 11.0% in July. This means there are now 5,510 young people claiming work 
related benefits in Staffordshire and a further 2,605 in Stoke-on-Trent. 

 
• All Staffordshire Districts have seen slight increases in the number of claimants in July, 

with South Staffordshire seeing the highest increase of 140 followed by Tamworth with 
120. Tamworth and Cannock Chase continue to record the highest rates in Staffordshire, 
although Newcastle-under-Lyme and East Staffordshire have the largest caseloads. 
However, it’s important to note all Districts remain lower than the current national and 
regional rates. 

 
 

Claimant Counts and Rates in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Wards 
 
• The following maps and tables provide the latest breakdown of the claimant count by 

wards in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent. 
 
 

Claimant Count Rate July 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Out of the 201 wards in Staffordshire 
& Stoke-on-Trent, 58 were at or 
above the England average of 6.5% 
for the number of claimants as a 
proportion of the working age 
population in July. 

The top 10 wards with the highest 
claimant count rate were all in Stoke-
on-Trent with Etruria and Hanley 
(13.4% or 675 claimants), Joiner’s 
Square (13.3% or 585), and Moorcroft 
(12.7%) having the highest rates. 

In Staffordshire, Burton in East 
Staffordshire and Glascote in 
Tamworth had the joint highest 
claimant count rate (9.1%). 

Page 22



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 9 

 

Change in Claimant Count since March 2020  

   
 
 

Youth Claimant Counts and Rates in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Wards 
The following maps and tables provide the latest breakdown of the youth claimant count by 
wards in Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent. 
 
Youth Claimant Count Rate July 2020 

 

The top 4 wards with the highest 
change in the number of claimants 
since March 2020 were all in Stoke-
on-Trent and included Birches Head 
and Central Forest Park (345 
increase to 735 in total), Etruria and 
Hanley (320 rise to 675 in total), 
Bentilee and Ubberley (285 increase 
to 685 in total) and Baddeley, 
Milton and Norton (285 rise to 615 
in total). 

Out of the 201 wards in Staffordshire & 
Stoke-on-Trent, 82 were at or above the 
England average of 9.4% for the number of 
claimants aged 18-24 as a proportion of the 
18-24 population. 

Of the top 10 wards with the highest youth 
claimant count rate 5 were in Stoke-on-
Trent including Joiner’s Square (19.3% - the 
highest in SSLEP area), Moorcroft (17.2%), 
Bentilee and Ubberley (15.9%), Abbey 
Hulton and Townsend (15.9%) and Eaton 
Park (15.2%). 

In Staffordshire, the highest rate was 
Glascote in Tamworth with 17.2%, followed 
by Cannock South (16.5%), Stapenhill in East 
Staffordshire (15.4%), Curborough in 
Lichfield (15.4%) and Cross Heath in 
Newcastle-under-Lyme (15.2%). 

Page 23



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 10 

 
Change in Youth Claimant Count since March 2020 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The top 3 wards with the highest change 
in the number of youth claimants since 
March 2020 were all in Stoke-on-Trent 
and included Etruria and Hanley (75 rise 
to 120 in total), and Abbey Hulton and 
Townsend ward and Birches Head and 
Central Forest Park ward (both with an 
increase of 60 to 130 in total). 

Page 24



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 11 

 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Furloughed Jobs2 
 
• Staffordshire had the 2nd highest number of furloughed job claims up to the end 

of July in the WM with 135,700 behind only Birmingham and equivalent to just over 
a third (34%) of eligible workers.  This is to be expected given Staffordshire is the 2nd 
largest strategic authority area in the region. 

 
• Staffordshire’s rate of furlough is in-line with the regional average and slightly 

above the national (32%) average. 
 
• Stoke-on-Trent had 38,100 jobs furloughed, also equivalent to 34% of eligible jobs. 

 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Statistics: July 2020 

 
 

 
• Nationally, the identified high-risk sectors are amongst the highest for the number of 

jobs that have been furloughed: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
2 Source: HMRC - https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-
statistics-july-2020 

Area
Total number 

of Jobs 
Furloughed

Eligible Jobs
Take-up 

rate

Cannock Chase 17,600 46,400 38%
Tamworth 14,400 38,400 37%
Staffordshire Moorlands 14,800 42,300 35%
SSLEP 173,800 510,800 34%
East Staffordshire 20,100 58,400 34%
Lichfield 16,300 47,300 34%
South Staffordshire 16,500 48,300 34%
West Midlands Region 866,400 2,580,400 34%
Stoke-on-Trent 38,100 112,600 34%
Staffordshire 135,700 398,200 34%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 17,700 55,200 32%
England 8,067,700 25,577,800 32%
Stafford 18,400 61,900 30%
Source: HMRC CJRS and PAYE Real Time Information 

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-july-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-july-2020


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 12 

 
 

 
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) Claims by Sector: July 2020 

 

 
 

• Beyond the short-term, specific industrial sectors and the associated labour market may 
continue to be adversely affected, particularly due to changes to economic support 
measures and market conditions. A particular risk is the ongoing changes to the 
Government’s Job Retention Scheme (JRS) which has enabled many people to remain 
in employment but furloughed during the lockdown. Whilst the scheme has been 
extended to October, it is being gradually withdrawn from August onwards and this 
may lead to potential further increases in unemployment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sector

Employers 
furloughing 

staff Take-up rate
Employments 

furloughed  Take-up rate
Value of claims 
made (£million)

Wholesale and retail; repair of motor vehicles 178,600 74% 1,906,100 42% 6,071
Accommodation & food services 110,700 87% 1,693,600 77% 4,773
Manufacturing 74,800 76% 1,021,500 42% 3,840
Business administration and support services 102,000 62% 890,500 32% 2,806
Construction 174,000 76% 769,300 60% 2,931
Professional, scientific & technical 150,900 49% 632,900 29% 2,203
Arts, entertainment, recreation and other servi 30,100 76% 474,300 70% 1,339
Transport & storage (inc postal) 43,100 60% 424,100 32% 1,680
Health 55,100 55% 423,200 10% 1,065
Education 24,400 63% 341,700 10% 864
Trade union, religious, political and repair 71,200 77% 315,000 55% 893
Information & communication 59,400 38% 227,500 18% 843
Property 28,600 62% 157,800 37% 543
Unknown and other 23,300 * 101,300 * 239
Finance & insurance 14,500 42% 76,800 7% 276
Waste and Recycling 4,000 72% 43,700 25% 168
Agriculture, forestry & fishing 9,700 29% 36,600 20% 96
Energy Production 700 53% 20,800 16% 85
Public administration & defence 500 7% 20,400 2% 65
Mining, quarrying & utilities 600 54% 14,800 28% 77
Domestic employers 8,200 11% 10,100 8% 30

Total 1,164,400 61% 9,601,700 32% 30,886

Source: HMRC CJRS and PAYE Real Time Information 

Employers Employments

Page 26



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 13 

 
Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS)3 
 
• Staffordshire has seen 30,600 self-employed workers claim through SEISS up to 

the end of July and a take-up rate of over three quarters (77%) for those eligible 
through the scheme, the same as the regional average and just above the national 
average of 76%. 

 
• Stoke-on-Trent had 8,300 SEISS claims up to the end of July, equivalent to 80% of 

those eligible.  This is the joint highest rate the West Midlands Region upper-tier 
authorities. 

 
 

Self-Employment Income Support Scheme (SEISS) Statistics: July 2020 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 Source: HMRC - https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-
statistics-july-2020 

County and district / 
unitary authority

Total 
potentially 

eligible 
population

Total no. of 
claims made 
to 31/7/20

Total value of 
claims made to 

31/7/20 (£)

Average value 
of claims made 
to 31/7/20 (£)

Take-Up Rate

Cannock Chase 5,000 4,100 12,900,000 3,100 81%
Stoke-on-Trent 10,500 8,400 21,800,000 2,600 80%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 5,200 4,100 11,900,000 2,900 78%
Tamworth 3,000 2,300 6,700,000 2,900 78%
SSLEP 50,100 39,000 112,500,000 2,885 78%
Lichfield 4,800 3,700 11,600,000 3,100 77%
South Staffordshire 5,300 4,100 12,300,000 3,000 77%
West Midlands Region 263,000 202,000 565,000,000 2,800 77%
Staffordshire 39,600 30,600 90,700,000 3,000 77%
East Staffordshire 5,300 4,000 10,700,000 2,700 76%
Staffordshire Moorlands 5,400 4,100 12,100,000 2,900 76%
England 2,946,000 2,251,000 6,577,000,000 2,900 76%
Stafford 5,600 4,200 12,600,000 3,000 75%

Page 27

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-july-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/self-employment-income-support-scheme-statistics-july-2020


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 14 

 
The Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan Scheme (CBILS) and the Bounce Back 
Loan Scheme (BBLS)4 
 
• New data published by the British Business Bank shows that businesses in all parts of 

the UK are making use of and benefiting from Coronavirus loan schemes. 
 
• The data shows the regional distribution of loans under the Coronavirus Business 

Interruption Loan Scheme (CBILS) and the Bounce Back Loan Scheme (BBLS), which are 
schemes designed to provide financial support to businesses across the UK that are 
losing revenue and seeing their cashflow disrupted, as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak. 

 
• As at the 2nd August, there were 3,770 CBILS loans in the West Midlands for a total of 

just over £871m.  This represented 9% of the total number of CBILS loans UK-wide and 
is one of the highest usage of CBILS outside of London and the South East (33%).  

 
• While for BBLS loans the West Midlands is also demonstrating strong use with a total of 

84,773 loans for a total of just under £2.6bn and represented 8% of all UK loans, behind 
only the North West and East of England outside of London and the South East (34%). 

 
• Generally, the proportion of loans in each region is equivalent to their share of the 

business population across the UK. 
 
• The Wholesale and Retail sector has accessed a significantly higher proportion of CBILS 

loans (19%) than its share of the business population (9%), with Manufacturing (13% v 
5%) and Accommodation and Food Services (9% v 3%) following a similar pattern. 

 
• The Wholesale and Retail sector also accessed a relatively high proportion of Bounce 

Back Loans compared to its business population share (16% v 9%), as did businesses in 
Accommodation and Food Services (8% v 3%) and Real Estate Services (6% v 2%). 

 
• The British Business Bank has also released constituency level data for CBILS and BBLS.  

The following table shows the breakdown for Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
constituencies: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4 Source: British Business Bank - https://www.british-business-bank.co.uk/coronavirus-loan-schemes-
benefiting-businesses-in-all-corners-of-uk-reveals-new-analysis-from-british-business-bank/ 

Page 28

https://www.british-business-bank.co.uk/coronavirus-loan-schemes-benefiting-businesses-in-all-corners-of-uk-reveals-new-analysis-from-british-business-bank/
https://www.british-business-bank.co.uk/coronavirus-loan-schemes-benefiting-businesses-in-all-corners-of-uk-reveals-new-analysis-from-british-business-bank/


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 15 

 
Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan Scheme (CBILS) and the Bounce Back Loan 

Scheme (BBLS) Statistics: 2nd August 2020 
 

 
 
• As at the 2nd August, there were a combined 15,338 CBILS and BBLS loans in the SSLEP 

area equivalent to £593m, this represented 17% of the total loans in the West Midlands. 
The proportion of loans in the SSLEP area is largely in-line with areas share of the 
business population in the West Midlands (18%). 
 

• In terms of local constituencies, Burton had the highest number of loans with 1,583 while 
Tamworth had the highest value of all loans with just over £71.3m.  

 
• For most constituencies the proportion of loans in the SSLEP area is largely in-line with 

their share of the business population in the SSLEP. However, the constituencies in the 
north including Stoke-on-Trent Central, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Stoke-on-Trent North 
and Stoke-on-Trent South all have higher proportions of the total loans in the SSLEP 
compared to their share of the business population. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Area
 Number 
of Loans 
Offered

 Value of 
Loans Offered 

(£m)

 Number 
of Loans 
Offered

 Value of 
Loans Offered 

(£m)

 Number 
of Loans 
Offered

 Value of 
Loans Offered 

(£m)

% of 
SSLEP 
Loans

% of SSLEP 
Businesses

Burton             82 17,931,933 1,501 44,561,837 1,583 62,493,770 10% 10%
Lichfield 76 13,808,681 1,476 42,142,939 1,552 55,951,620 10% 11%
Tamworth 99 32,024,097 1,328 39,285,979 1,427 71,310,076 9% 9%
Cannock Chase         73 16,160,169 1,338 39,486,802 1,411 55,646,971 9% 9%
Stone 44 7,802,001 1,322 39,200,793 1,366 47,002,794 9% 10%
South Staffordshire 57 12,517,757 1,296 38,818,503 1,353 51,336,260 9% 10%
Stafford 55 7,420,953 1,227 36,222,492 1,282 43,643,445 8% 9%
Stoke-on-Trent Central 46 10,605,935 1,149 35,168,237 1,195 45,774,172 8% 6%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 55 14,329,503 1,078 33,381,146 1,133 47,710,649 7% 6%
Stoke-on-Trent North 49 10,623,719 1,040 30,573,493 1,089 41,197,212 7% 6%
Staffordshire Moorlands 40 5,414,157 1,008 29,115,881 1,048 34,530,038 7% 9%
Stoke-on-Trent South 38 10,653,126 861 26,011,673 899 36,664,799 6% 5%
Staffordshire 564 123,732,874 11,357 334,846,899 11,921 458,579,773 78% 84%
Stoke-on-Trent 150 35,559,157 3,267 99,122,876 3,417 134,682,033 22% 16%
SSLEP 714 159,292,031 14,624 433,969,775 15,338 593,261,806 100% 100%
West Midlands 3,770 871,365,361 84,773 2,593,303,126 88,543 3,464,668,487
UK 45,621 10,486,585,419 1,042,668 31,659,691,546 1,088,289 42,146,276,965

CBILS BBLS TOTAL

Page 29



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 16 

Job Vacancies5 
 
• Following a period of declining job vacancies, demand for labour in Staffordshire is 

starting to pick back up, where between June 2020 and July 2020 there was an increase 
in job vacancies of 9% equivalent to over 1,000 more job vacancies which is in-line 
with the growth seen regionally and nationally. 
 

• Stoke-on-Trent saw a 17% growth with just over 750 more vacancies in July 
compared to June. 
 

• Staffordshire’s year-on-year decline in July stood at 34% which was greater than 
the 28% decline seen nationally, this likely reflects Staffordshire’s economic structure 
where sectors and occupations hardest hit by COVID-19 make up more of our local 
economy and therefore recruitment has declined more substantially. Stoke-on-Trent 
witnessed a below average year-on-year decline of 24% in July. 
 

 
 
• Although we have seen a decline in vacancies for most occupations since the crisis 

started, particularly within sectors and roles hardest hit by the lockdown, we are starting 
to see some growth again. 
 

• The main recruitment growth occupations (although relatively low numbers) 
between Feb (pre-COVID) and July have been residential, day and domiciliary care 
managers and proprietors; packers, bottlers, canners and fillers; and health services 
and public health managers and directors. 

 
5 Source: EMSI 

Page 30



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 17 

 
 

• While demand for nurses and social care workers and home carers remains by far the 
strongest of all occupations. 
 

Page 31



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 18 

 
 

• The overall fall in the number of job vacancies suggests that those unfortunate enough 
to lose their jobs may struggle to find new ones at least in the short-term, although 
there are still opportunities available.  
 

Job Vacancies Summary Table 
 

 

Area / SSLEP Occupational Group
July 2019 

Unique 
Postings

Feb 2020 
Unique 

Postings

Apr 2020 
Unique 

Postings

May 2020 
Unique 

Postings

June 2020 
Unique 

Postings

July 2020 
Unique 

Postings

June-July 
2020 

(Month on 
Month 

Change)

June-July 
2020 

Monthly 
% Change

Feb-July 
2020 (Month 

on Month 
Change)

Feb-July 
2020 

Monthly % 
Change

July 2019-
July 2020 
(Year on 

Year 
Change)

July 2019-
July 2020 
Annual % 
Change

Staffordshire CC 19,438 18,675 13,346 11,456 11,795 12,885 1,090 9% -5,790 -31% -6,553 -34%
Stoke-on-Trent 6,848 6,635 4,962 4,336 4,427 5,182 755 17% -1,453 -22% -1,666 -24%
SSLEP 26,286 25,310 18,308 15,792 16,222 18,067 1,845 11% -7,243 -29% -8,219 -31%
West Midlands 189,604 169,792 128,323 111,004 109,144 118,754 9,610 9% -51,038 -30% -70,850 -37%
England 2,060,854 1,955,292 1,572,921 1,380,005 1,371,112 1,487,781 116,669 9% -467,511 -24% -573,073 -28%

Staffordshire Moorlands 1,695 1,884 1,333 1,047 915 864 -51 -6% -1,020 -54% -831 -49%
Tamworth 2,858 2,740 1,844 1,519 1,439 1,554 115 8% -1,186 -43% -1,304 -46%
East Staffordshire 3,055 3,172 2,126 1,846 1,903 2,206 303 16% -966 -30% -849 -28%
Cannock Chase 2,732 2,188 1,677 1,459 1,494 1,585 91 6% -603 -28% -1,147 -42%
Stafford 4,493 4,321 3,070 2,635 2,850 3,247 397 14% -1,074 -25% -1,246 -28%
Newcastle-under-Lyme 1,539 1,687 1,254 1,131 1,205 1,275 70 6% -412 -24% -264 -17%
Lichfield 2,551 2,042 1,554 1,382 1,485 1,572 87 6% -470 -23% -979 -38%
South Staffordshire 515 641 488 437 504 582 78 15% -59 -9% 67 13%

Sales and Customer Service Occupations 1,104 1,048 606 456 529 537 8 2% -511 -49% -567 -51%
Administrative and Secretarial Occupations 3,179 2,580 1,535 1,168 1,272 1,399 127 10% -1,181 -46% -1,780 -56%
Skilled Trades Occupations 2,406 2,272 1,504 1,098 1,115 1,321 206 18% -951 -42% -1,085 -45%
Associate Professional and Technical Occupations 5,386 4,900 3,305 2,576 2,566 2,994 428 17% -1,906 -39% -2,392 -44%
Process, Plant and Machine Operatives 2,158 2,036 1,097 812 919 1,263 344 37% -773 -38% -895 -41%
Elementary Occupations 2,259 2,117 1,504 1,396 1,453 1,735 282 19% -382 -18% -524 -23%
Professional Occupations 5,899 6,295 5,260 4,907 4,950 5,269 319 6% -1,026 -16% -630 -11%
Managers, Directors and Senior Officials 1,624 1,672 1,226 1,126 1,229 1,432 203 17% -240 -14% -192 -12%
Caring, Leisure and Other Service Occupations 2,271 2,390 2,271 2,253 2,189 2,117 -72 -3% -273 -11% -154 -7%

Page 32



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 19 

Notes 
 
Claimant Count and ILO Unemployment Definitions 
 
The Claimant Count is a measure of the number of working age people claiming benefits 
principally for the reason of being unemployed, including those claiming Jobseeker's 
Allowance plus those who claim Universal Credit and are required to seek work and be 
available for work. 
 
ILO unemployment data is obtained from the national Labour Force Survey.  The definition 
for unemployment is those without a job, want a job, have actively sought work in the last 
four weeks and are available to start work in the next two weeks, or; are out of work, have 
found a job and are waiting to start work in the next two weeks. 
 
Understanding the differences between the Claimant Count and ILO Unemployment 
 
According to the UK Claimant Count for May, claimant unemployment increased to 2.8 
million and a rate of 7.8% – a rise of 125% in just two months, the fastest rate of growth on 
record. However, the ILO measure shows that unemployment has remained largely 
unchanged at around 1.3 million and a rate of 3.9%. Understanding the reasons why there 
is this difference is important for policymakers trying to determine whether we are currently 
in the middle of an unemployment crisis or whether this is to come as the Job Retention 
Scheme (JRS) is gradually withdrawn. 
 
The following section tries to explain this incredibly confusing, complicated and often 
contradictory data.   
 
The main reasons for the difference between the Claimant Count and ILO measures include: 
• The two measures describe different periods – for claimant unemployment, the 

numbers refer to claimants on a specific ‘count date’ with the last three being 12 March, 
9 April and 14 May. Therefore these are point-in-time estimates, and handily we can 
compare what the situation was about a week before the crisis (12 March) with how 
things were two months later (14 May).  
 
The ILO measure is a three-month average of survey responses between early February 
and late April 2020. This means that two months pre-date the crisis, while one month 
(April) is since the crisis began. However, ONS does release single month estimates (latest 
available April 2020) which show a drop in employment in April of 320,000 explained 
almost entirely by fewer people self-employed but only slight increase of 40,000 
unemployed. Instead there is a steep rise in ‘economic inactivity’ which is those who are 
out of work but are not looking and/ or available for work.   

 

Page 33

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/articles/singlemonthlabourforcesurveyestimates/latest


Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 20 

• Difference in measuring economic inactivity/worklessness - the Claimant Count 
measures those who are required to look/be available for work as a condition of benefit, 
while the ILO measure is those who say that they actually are actively seeking and 
available for work. The Labour Force Survey is recording a single-month increase in the 
number of people out of work (unemployed and economically inactive) of 330,000, but 
nearly 290,000 of these people are not looking for work (economically inactive). The 
majority of this rise is people previously self-employed and are either not eligible for, or 
not yet been paid, income under the Self-Employed Income Support Scheme (SEISS). 

 
• Claimant Count now includes more workers on low-income - In the Claimant Count, 

people with earned income can be counted as claimant unemployed if their earnings in 
the reference month are below a set threshold (£338 per month for a single person, or 
£541 per month for a couple).  Before Universal Credit (UC), short-hours working was 
penalised and so these numbers were generally low.  However, UC incentivises short-
hours work, and so we’ve seen a growth in recent years in the number of people treated 
as being unemployed but who have some earnings. The detailed data for UC suggests 
that 190,000 of the 1 million increase between March and April was accounted for by 
working claimants – so around one fifth of the rise. 

 
• Difference in recording people who are ‘in work’ – in the Labour Force Survey you are 

recorded as in employment even if you have not done any work that week but ‘have a 
job or business that you were away from… (and that you expect to return to)”. Obviously 
this category of workers ‘away’ from work now captures about 9 million people 
furloughed under the Job Retention Scheme (JRS) who are continuing to earn, but it also 
includes people who consider themselves to be employees or self-employed but who 
have no earnings. ‘Real time’ Pay As You Earn data suggests that this may be mainly 
employees, with the number of paid employees falling by 450,000 between March and 
April. This 450,000 could include a large number of people who may have been due to 
start a job in March or April but have been told that they job isn’t available yet and may 
also be people who had very few or irregular hours before the JRS was introduced and 
whom employers have not submitted a JRS claim. These people may be describing 
themselves as being workers with a job that they are away from, rather than as being 
actively seeking a new job. 

 
• Benefit take-up/eligibility impact on the Claimant Count – given that the claimant 

count only counts those who claim benefit it may be under-stating the growth in 
worklessness. We know that many unemployed people do not claim, and particularly 
young people (usually due to eligibility). Under UC, there have been on average 450,000 
more ILO unemployed young people than claimant unemployed and even if that gap 
narrows in the crisis, as tends to happen in recessions, it’s possible that ILO youth 
unemployment will remain significantly higher than the claimant measure. 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Economic Bulletin – August 2020 Page | 21 

Summary table outlining the potential estimates for the Claimant Count rise in April: 
 

 
 
• It is hoped that this analysis has provided further clarity as to why we have seen such a 

spike in the number of claimants early in the crisis. What is clear is that we have seen a 
record fall between March and April in the number of people working and not being 
supported by JRS. We have also seen worklessness rising at a faster rate than at any time 
before. Although very few of the decline in the numbers ‘working’ had translated into 
higher unemployment in April, it is envisaged that this may be the case if people are 
unable to get back into work quickly. 

 
• Looking forward, the growth in claims for UC is slowing and so the growth in the Claimant 

Count is also likely to slow as well. That said claimant unemployment is currently at the 
highest level on record. The main concern now is what happens to many workers as JRS 
is gradually withdrawn and it is important that we are thinking now about how to support 
people that are made redundant and what policy interventions are needed.  

 
 
 
 
 

Potential 
Proportion of 
Claimant Count 
Change Mar-20 
to Apr-20

Potential 
Number of 
Claimants

Potential Reasons for being a Claimant Labour Force Survey 
Categorisation

44% 450,000 New Job Starters/PT employees/Self- 
employed with no income claiming 
Universal Credit not supported by JRS

In Employment - even if not done any 
work that week but ‘have a job or 
business that were away from… (and 
that expect to return to)” – rather than 
unemployed

28% 292,500 Self-employed ceased trading or have very 
low income claiming Universal Credit (and 
are either not eligible for, or not yet been paid, 
income under the SEISS)

Economically inactive - people out 
of work but are not looking for work - 
majority people previously self-
employed

18% 190,000 Working part-time low income workers 
claiming Universal Credit

In Employment

10% 100,000 Potential Redundancies
100% 1,032,500 Claimant Count Increase Mar-20 to Apr-20

Page 35





www.staffordshire.gov.uk

1 1

www.staffordshire.gov.uk

...and lead Staffordshire’s recovery, renewal and transformation 
into a thriving, digital, high-value and clean economy

Our five year strategy
to respond to the Covid-19 crisis

Page 37



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

2

Contents
Foreword from the Leader of Staffordshire County Council  3

Our vision for a strong, resilient economy  4

The context of recovery and renewal  7

Responding, recovering, renewing and transforming  8 

Economic priorities for the next five years  9

Where we are now - Staffordshire’s economy, strengths and opportunities  10

The silver-lining of Covid-19  13

Policy Context  15

What we’ll do  18

How we’ll do it  24

 Governance  28

 Monitoring performance  29

www.staffordshire.gov.uk
Moving to a renewed and

strong economic landscapePage 38



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

2 3

Foreword 
Our ambitions for Staffordshire’s businesses 
and people have not changed. We will be one 
of the highest performing shire counties in 
the country, creating great jobs and growth.
There’s no doubt that coronavirus has had an 
unprecedented effect on the UK economy and 
here in Staffordshire, and we anticipate tough 
times ahead for businesses.

But we are still ambitious for Staffordshire’s 
growth, recovery and renewal. Although the 
county’s economic landscape will be different, our 
aim remains that Staffordshire will still be on the 
national and international business map for the 
benefit of local people and our businesses.

We will still be one of the best performing 
counties in the country with our businesses 
highly productive and our residents earning good 
money through more and better jobs. That has 
not changed. It’s just going to be a different and 
challenging journey to get there.

In Staffordshire, the recovery and renewal of our 
economy is already underway - we are better 
placed to do so than many, and we’re eager to get 
back to business. Our local economy in general 
remains strong because of its diversity, and the 
resilience of our businesses. It will continue to be 
into the future, not least because Staffordshire is 
still one of the most cost-effective areas of the UK 
to regrow, renew and thrive.

We continue to be proud that the breadth and 
depth of skills across Staffordshire continues 
to improve at  a rate far greater than across the 
country, and we will continue to invest in world-
class connectivity, roads and infrastructure, and 
first-class business support - the practicalities that 
businesses need to recover and grow – for as long 
as it takes.

The role of the county council is central to 
supporting everyone during these changing times. 
As well as continuing to invest in the conditions 
all businesses need to thrive, the current situation 
has also presented us with many opportunities 
to further develop the Staffordshire economy by 
supporting the creation of those clean, digital, 
highly productive businesses that will provide the 
jobs of the future.

Our ambitious five-year Economic Recovery 
and Renewal Strategy builds on that to invest 
and support where it’s needed to create long-
term stability, growth and jobs for the people of 
Staffordshire.

from the Leader of Staffordshire County Council 

Philip Atkins OBE

Foreword from the Leader of Staffordshire County Council  3

Our vision for a strong, resilient economy  4

The context of recovery and renewal  7

Responding, recovering, renewing and transforming  8 

Economic priorities for the next five years  9

Where we are now - Staffordshire’s economy, strengths and opportunities  10

The silver-lining of Covid-19  13

Policy Context  15

What we’ll do  18

How we’ll do it  24

 Governance  28

 Monitoring performance  29

www.staffordshire.gov.uk
Moving to a renewed and

strong economic landscape Page 39



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

4

Staffordshire is one of the best places in the UK 
to recover, grow and thrive; with world-class 
connectivity, one of the fastest-improving skill 
bases in the country, and low costs.  Whilst there’s 
no doubt that COVID-19 has had an unprecedented 
impact on our economy, we will continue to invest 
and support  these advantages which are the 
conditions that all businesses need at the same 
time as supporting transformation into a changed 
economic landscape:  a thriving digital-led, high-
value and clean economy.

The county council’s vision, as set out in our 
Strategic Plan, still stands true as we plan for 
recovery: A county where big ambitions, great 

connections and greener living give everyone the 
opportunity to prosper, be healthy and happy.

Key to this is a continued focus on the economy, 
so that Staffordshire people are able to access 
good jobs that raise their living standards, whilst 
also improving physical and mental health.  As we 
plan for the recovery and renewal of our economy, 
we must recognise the shift in business models 
and embrace the digital and climate change 
opportunities that have arisen to transform our 
economy to be robust and able to thrive.

Therefore, the vision for this Strategy is:

Our vision for a strong, 
resilient economy 
Our vision: recovery, but also renewal and transformation

That the Staffordshire economy recovers, renews and transforms post COVID-19 into a place where clean, 
productive businesses are created and thrive whilst existing business are supported to fully participate in 
the new, stronger, more competitive economy; ensuring that everyone in Staffordshire has access to more 
good jobs and shares the benefits of economic growth.

COST-COMPETITIVE 

Potential salary savings of 11.3%
against the national average.

3,000,000
SUPPORTING AN £18bn ECONOMY

SKILLED WORKFORCE
Putting engineering, advanced-manufacturing, digital and 
innovation skills at the heart of the abilities of the current 
and future workforce.

3 million skilled people, including 147, 300 students, 
within 1 hour, all benefiting from a multi-million pound 
investment programme to deliver the skills you need.

STRATEGIC SKILLS
 £75m+

WORKFORCE 9,000
Over, 9,000 people involved in the £75m+ Strategic Skills 
Programme have gone into work, education, training or an 
apprenticeship, or have been upskilled to improve innovation 
and productivity.

The Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering Hub has created a surge in advanced manufacturing, engineering 
and construction skills. In addition, a further 3,500 people have learnt new employability skills at i54 South 
Staffordshire alone, one of Europe’s premier business parks.

PROGRESSING

LEARNERS supported
by the 6 HUB SITES

The improvement and growth in skill levels 
is growing faster across Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire compared to nationally, with 
40,800 more adults having formal qualifications 
and 58,500 more adults qualified to degree 
level or higher in just 5 years.

HIGHER
SKILLS
GROWTH

10,623PROGRAMME

OVER

Page 40



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

4 5

Our aims: mitigation, partnership working, greener, renewal 
 1.  Through our understanding of the potential 

impacts of COVID-19 on the local economy, we 
will develop and implement plans to mitigate 
against these impacts including the use of 
external and local funding to assist in the 
immediate response. 

 2.  To develop plans to refresh and reinstate 
delivery programmes that are aligned to 
our strategic priorities across the themes 
of business environment, people, place, 
infrastructure and ideas. 

 3.  To develop plans for new programmes that 
will support the recovery, renewal and  
transformation of the local economy.

 

 4.  We will ensure climate change is always at the 
heart of our thinking and delivery planning. 

 5.  Work with our partners to deliver the strategy, 
including accessing funding and lobbying for 
additional powers where necessary. 

 6.  Throughout the delivery of the strategy,  
continue to maintain confidence and trust  
of the business community through   
communications and engagement.

Our County: a strong track record, and one of the best places to 
recover and thrive in the UK

��

���

����

���

���

��

���

�������

��

3,000,000
�����������������
��������������������������
��������������������������
���
���	�
��������������������
���������������������������
���������������������������

18.5%
����������������
����������������������������
��������������������������
�������

Page 41



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

6

Connected, competitive, complementary, 
collaborative – are the key terms that define our 
area.  Located at the heart of the UK, the vibrant 
corridors and urban centres of the connected 
county of Staffordshire form a growing economic 
powerhouse. The COVID-19 crisis has impacted 
this growth, and we anticipate tough times ahead 
for some businesses, but we remain confident and 
ambitious for Staffordshire businesses and our 
economic landscape.

This Strategy outlines our ambitious and achievable 
plans as to how we will mitigate the impacts of the 
crisis and take advantage of opportunities that have 
arisen to transform the local economy. 

Staffordshire boasts a diverse economy with 
significant strengths in automotive (Jaguar Land 
Rover, Gestamp), aerospace (Moog), energy 
(General Electric, ABB), medical technologies, 
(Cobra Biologics, Biocomposites), construction 
(JCB, KMF), digital (Risual) and agri-tech to 
name a few.   Cobra Biologics, based at Keele 
University’s Science and Innovation Park, is even 
a part of the University of Oxford’s vaccine group.  
Our economy is a microcosm of the UK with 
dominance in service sectors, but our thriving and 
growing high-value manufacturing base puts us in 
a unique position.  Supporting such industries and 
their supply chains through the crisis and beyond 
will play an important part in rebalancing our 
economy, moving away from the low-value, low-
wage industries that have formed the backbone of 
our economy in the recent past. 

Whilst the county is home to many world-renowned 
brands, most of our businesses are small and 
medium enterprises.  They are the lifeblood of 
our economy; many have diversified during the 
COVID-19 crisis and many have even diversified to 
join the fight against the disease.  Our SME’s are 
innovative and hard working - a great combination.

Whilst we face challenges, our strengths are 
numerous, not least our location at the heart of the 
country.  Forward thinking and outward looking, 
we already have plans in place or in development 
with a number of bordering economies.  Through 
a common purpose and shared resource, we are 
fully exploiting our unique geography and world-
class connectivity to maximise growth, particularly 
through the Midlands Engine, Midlands Connect 
and Constellation Partnership. 

Staffordshire’s skills gap is also decreasing. No 
longer just the place for traditional skills, the 
rate at which our skill base is improving is one of 
the fastest in the UK, with a workforce of over 
3 million all within an hour.  The Skills Strategy has 
responded to business need for more advanced 
manufacturing, engineering and digital skills, 
and our three main universities will allow us to 
further develop the skills of residents.  We have 
several high performing colleges across all parts of 
the county, including the Newcastle and Stafford 
College Group, the first college to achieve a rating 
of outstanding under the new Ofsted regime. 

Staffordshire will be surrounded by a number of 
new full-HS2 stations and benefit from classic-
compatible HS2 services. Ensuring the best 
connectivity possible to these stations throughout 
the county will provide significant future 
opportunities for growth with travel to London 
being possible in under an hour.

The county town of Stafford and larger towns 
throughout the county including Burton upon 
Trent, Uttoxeter, Cannock, Rugeley, Lichfield, 
Tamworth, Newcastle-under-Lyme, Biddulph, Leek 
and Cheadle remain the primary hubs of economic 
activity and where most of our residents live.  

Page 42



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

6 7

The changing nature of retail has presented 
challenges for almost all town centres, an issue 
that may be further compounded by the COVID-19 
crisis, with work to reshape and repurpose town 
centres being an increasingly important issue.

Whilst our urban centres are the primary 
residential and business locations, much of the 
county is rural and there has been significant 
development of our rural economy in recent years.  
Our natural assets such the Cannock Chase Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty and Peak District 
National Park, alongside numerous attractions 
including Alton Towers and Drayton Manor theme 
parks, has supported sustained growth of our 
tourism sector.  Farming also remains a vital part 
of the Staffordshire landscape and supports many 

local industries, not least the food and drink sector.  
The brewing industry in Burton upon Trent is one 
of most historic and notable local assets.

Our track record speaks for itself.  Staffordshire 
delivers regeneration, redevelopment, infrastructure 
investment and economic growth.  We have 
seen results that have created more, better 
jobs.  Results to inspire trust that Staffordshire 
County Council and local leaders have 
developed the right local solution. 

That is why we firmly believe our strategy will 
make a difference - it will support our economy to 
recover from the public health crisis and then  
enable it to transform and grow through clean, 
digital, highly productive industries.

The context of recovery and renewal
The unprecedented nature of the COVID-19 public 
health crisis and the resulting effects felt around 
the globe mean that the longer-term impacts 
are extremely difficult to predict.

Never have we experienced such a wide-scale 
lockdown of all the major world economies with 
previous economic downturns primarily only affecting 
discrete geographies and/or industrial sectors.
Interventions made to help support and minimise 
the economic impact of the pandemic have 
also varied, and the ultimate success of these 
policies will only become evident following the 
easing of lockdown measures.  Within the UK, the 
government has made several very significant 
interventions to help to ensure that the economy 
can get moving again as quickly as possible, 
primarily through attempts to minimise business 
closures and job losses.

The Office for Budget Responsibility has predicted 
that these measures will help to enable a 
significant recovery of the UK economy towards 
the end of 2020, although recognising that this 
is very uncertain and may change.  This scenario 

would of course be extremely welcome, although 
it must be considered that there is some likelihood 
that we will enter a period of longer-term recession 
whilst differing parts of the UK should be expected 
to recover at different paces.

The danger of entering a period of recession is 
that the structural make-up of areas will determine 
the length and severity of the impact.  The 
sectors that are often hardest hit by recession, 
namely manufacturing and construction, could 
be negatively impacted as consumer spending is 
supressed.  This would suggest that many areas 
outside of the South East, and particularly the 
Midlands and the North, could experience the 
economic impacts for longer.  Whilst interventions 
will have sustained many people’s incomes, 
spending across the economy has fallen.  The hope 
is that they will spend freely once again when it is 
safe to do so.

As there are a range of scenarios being considered 
globally and nationally, it is important that this 
strategy and our associated delivery plans are 
flexible enough to respond to whichever scenario 
becomes a reality.

Page 43



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

8

Responding, recovering, renewing and transforming

Despite the uncertainty as to how this will all play 
out over the medium-to-long term, there is no 
doubt that there will be a period where we need 
to respond to the immediate crisis and support 
our economy to recover.  But in the longer-term 
there are opportunities that have arisen that 
we need to grasp to hasten the development of 
the Staffordshire economy;  the most obvious 
being the positive environmental impacts bought 
about by the general reduction in travel and 

much greater prevalence of home working. 
But there are a whole range of opportunities 
considered throughout the strategy. Delivering 
the strategy and taking full advantage of these 
opportunities will further enable the Staffordshire 
economy to renew and ultimately transform into 
a place where clean, productive businesses are 
created and thrive whilst existing business are 
supported to fully participate in the new economy.

Page 44



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

8 9

Why a five year plan?  Our economic priorities for 
the next five years

Our Economic Recovery, Renewal & Transformation Strategy sets out our priorities for the 
next five years through four, non-linear phases:

 	Respond – support our businesses and residents through the COVID-19 crisis.

 		Recover – create the conditions to support our businesses and residents to return-to-
work as soon as possible.

 		Renew – continue to progress those priorities that will play an important role in achieving 
our ambitions to develop the local economy beyond the current crisis.

 		Transform – utilise the opportunities presented by the current economic conditions by 
supporting the transformation of the local economy to be digital, clean and higher-value.

These will be flexible in view of:

				The possible need to reinstate lockdown (the 
‘respond’ phase) at some level in response to 
regional spikes of COVID-19 cases. 

			The possible need for the county council to 
revise the corporate Strategic Plan, Medium-
Term Financial Strategy, other wider strategies 
and transformation programmes, and that 
our economic partners may need to do the 
same or at least refresh their approach.  
The Economic Recovery, Renewal & 
Transformation Strategy sets out our economic 
priorities that will form an important part of all 
our own strategies and enable us to influence 
and shape the strategies of others.

Our Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation Strategy should therefore be 
seen in the wider context in which we operate.

Our strategy will both support and shape the wider 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Local Resilience 
Forum Recovery Planning and the Local Enterprise 
Partnerships plans.
Furthermore, we will feed into and shape wider 
regional and cross-boundary approaches such as 
the Constellation Partnership and the Midlands 
Engine (to name but two).  

It is essential the county council has its own 
Strategy, as we are uniquely placed to support 
a whole-system approach to recovery, renewal 
and transformation of our economy, due to our 
responsibilities for transport, infrastructure, 
environment, education, skills and health.

Page 45



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

10

Where we are now - Staffordshire’s economy, strengths   
and opportunities

A challenge....
Many economic commentators are currently 
suggesting that there is likely to be a significant 
economic downturn as a result of the COVID-19 
crisis, the size of which will at least partly depend 
on the effectiveness and duration of public health 
measures and ultimately the exit strategy.

In terms of unemployment there are early signs 
that there is likely to be the sharpest spike 
on record.   Staffordshire is already seeing in 
an increase in the number of people claiming 
unemployment benefits with more expected due 
to the prevalence of jobs in high-risk sectors.

It would be expected and hoped that the 
interventions made will enable at least some of 
the sectors most immediately affected by the 
crisis to quickly recover.  The hospitality industry 
for instance should be able to operate from July, 
alongside government guidelines and if it is safe 
to do so.  Although there must be recognition 
that it is likely that will enter a sustained period of 

recession which will continue to affect jobs, wages 
and spending.  This will undoubtedly include some 
business closures whilst many other businesses will 
adapt to survive and thrive.

A longer-term recession has the potential to affect 
a range of different industries and therefore jobs 
than those that have been immediately affected.  
Whilst the Staffordshire economy has continued 
to restructure in recent years, manufacturing and 
construction industries remain vulnerable and are 
a vital part of the local economy accounting for a 
fifth of all total employment within the county.

However, it remains important to remember 
that Staffordshire remains a powerful economic 
entity whilst significant progress has been made 
in supporting the growth of the local economy 
in recent years. The county is home to around 
875,000 people with the right skills for recovery 
and a vast array of world-renowned international 
companies, world-class connectivity and the right 
conditions for businesses to recover, grow and 
thrive.

Page 46



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

10 11

Our strengths and opportunities...
World class connectivity
While we face challenges, our strengths are 
numerous, not least our location at the heart of the 
country.  Forward thinking and outward looking, 
we already have plans in place or in development 
with a number of bordering economies.  Through 
a common purpose and shared resource, we are 
fully exploiting our unique geography and world-
class connectivity to maximise growth, particularly 
through the Midlands Engine, Midlands Connect 
and Constellation Partnership.  

Our location makes Staffordshire a hugely attractive 
place to live, work and invest.  This has made 
Staffordshire particularly attractive to the logistics 
industry which continues to grow and presents 
significant opportunities for the future as the sector 
moves towards greater use of technology and 
cleaner ways to move goods around the country 
and beyond.

Skills expansion
Staffordshire’s skills gap is also decreasing.  No 
longer just the place for traditional skills, the 
rate at which our skill base is improving is one of 
the fastest in the UK, with a workforce of over 3 
million all within an hour. The Skills Strategy has 
responded to business need for more advanced 
manufacturing, engineering and digital skills, and 
our three main universities will allow us to further 
develop the skills of residents. 

We have several high performing colleges 
across all parts of the county, including the 
Newcastle and Stafford College Group, the first 
college to achieve a rating of outstanding under 
the new Ofsted regime.

Closing the skills gap
Since 2014, we have seen

growth of people with qualifications

45%
We have a well-established and high-performing 
skills system with providers that have had to 
adapt to deliver education and training through 
other means.  Existing programmes and potential 
flexibilities provide the opportunity to address 
the recovery in skills, but there is an opportunity 
to be more transformative and start to deliver 
programmes that address longer-term skills issues 
such as digital, leadership and management, 
business improvement, lean, agile and automation 
programmes.

Page 47



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

12

Clean Innovation
Innovation within Staffordshire is also on the rise, 
both within businesses and through our universities.  
Ongoing innovation projects within the county 
include the Smart Energy Network Demonstrator, 
the HyDeploy project to trial injecting hydrogen 
into the gas network and the Association of 
Directors of Environment, Economy, Planning and 
Transport’s (ADEPT)- supported SMART transport 
‘live-lab’ project at Keele University, as well as the 
Digital Kiln project at Staffordshire University.

Continued investment for long–term stability
Our success in creating the conditions to support 
growth has led to many large-scale investments 
made by companies indigenous to the county 
and from beyond.  The continued development of 
employment sites will undoubtedly be important 
in continuing to support growth within the 
county.

The county council’s Strategic Infrastructure Plan 
(SIP) highlights the vast amount of housing 
planned to be delivered in Staffordshire in the 
coming years, and the amount of infrastructure 
spending required to support this growth.  Whilst 
any economic downturn will result in a suppression 
in housing demand, the severe shortage of housing 
in the country remains an issue and therefore 
continuing to support housing and associated 
infrastructure delivery will remain important 
moving forwards.

Cleaner working and commuting
The shift to a greater prevalence of homeworking 
has had undoubted positive environmental 
impacts.  If at least a proportion of the increase 
is sustained, this has the potential to impact 
future investment decisions, not least related to 
transport.  Staffordshire remains a manufacturing 
heartland though, with the concentration of 
manufacturing and supply chain industries unlikely 
to be able to shift to such new ways of working.  
After all, we cannot yet build products remotely.

A key finding of the SIP is also that there has 
been underinvestment in our transport system, 
particularly roads, and there is therefore a need 
for investment to ensure what we currently have 
operates as effectively as possible before even 
considering the substantial growth in housing and 
employment planned over the next twenty years

In summary, the Staffordshire economy has clearly 
been greatly affected by the COVID-19 crisis and 
is likely to continue to be for some time to come.  
However, the local economy remains strong and 
there are huge opportunities that the county is well 
placed to take advantage of if we make the right 
interventions and investments in the coming years.
The Strategy and associated delivery plan(s) 
are underpinned by a live evidence base that is 
updated weekly when new data, evidence and 
research is released at a local, regional   
and national level.

Page 48



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

12 13

Whist the COVID-19 crisis has undoubtedly 
had a negative impact on the global economy, 
the situation has raised several challenges and 
opportunities that it will be important for us to 
consider further.  Grasping these opportunities 
will likely go a long way to helping us achieve 
our vision over the next five years.

   Perhaps most prominently, the COVID-19 
crisis has shown many organisations, 
especially those within office-based sectors, 
that employees working remotely can 
and does work.  Of course, this change in 
working patterns was already happening, 
but the current situation has expediated this 
change exponentially.  This will undoubtedly 
affect future business investment decisions, 
but whilst it may seem that this could 
simply lead to a reduction in the demand for 
office space, we could actually experience 
a shift in where there is demand with many 
companies likely to question the value of 
spending £50 per square foot upwards for 
an office in parts of London, for example.  

   As we already know within the county 
council, the shift to greater levels of remote 
working can have several benefits including 
for productivity and the work-life balance of 
employees.  This shift is likely to mean the 
workforce of many organisations, particularly 
office-based, will be far more dispersed.  
Many businesses within the county are 
likely to be less reliant therefore on the 
local workforce, whilst equally Staffordshire 
residents may be more likely to work for 
companies from a far wider geography.  
This presents issues that will need to be 
considered through delivery planning across 
a number of themes including skills and 
inward investment.

   Increase our digital infrastructure as the 
demand will be there - The shift for many 
businesses to operating digitally has 
happened in a number of weeks rather 
than years as part of this move to remote 
working.  This presents an opportunity 
for Staffordshire to speed up its plans for 
high-quality digital infrastructure across the 
county.

Care
More widely than office-based sectors, many other 
industries have been affected by the crisis and will 
continue to be affected in the future.  We have 
a thriving care market which has never been so 
revered as a career as it is now.  We can support 
new entrants to the care market to support these 
essential services for our ageing population at a 
competitive price. 

Logistics transformation
Logistics has been one of our key growth sectors 
in recent years and whilst the closure of non-
essential shops will have affected many logistics 
companies, the overall impact on the sector 
should only be relatively short to medium-term.  
However, how logistics firms operate in the future 
may change particularly as shopping habits 
continue to shift online.  This sector will also need 
to respond to the low-carbon agenda, with the 
granting of planning permission for the Strategic 
Rail Freight Interchange proposal at Four Ashes, 
supporting the shift towards moving more freight 
by rail, with more smaller logistics operations 
potentially required to serve local markets. Given 
Staffordshire’s location and the prevalence of 
logistics companies in our county there is a real 
opportunity to transform the sector as part of 
recovery.

The silver-lining of COVID-19 – Future challenges and further 
opportunities to consider

Page 49



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

14

The ‘Grand Challenges’
The ‘Grand Challenges’ outlined in the national 
Industrial Strategy remain absolutely, if not more, 
relevant despite the COVID-19 crisis:

   Artificial Intelligence and data

   Ageing society

   Clean growth

   Future of mobility

Creating the conditions for growth in businesses 
that will help to address these challenges will go 
a long way to achieving the vision and aims of 
our Strategy. The environmental impacts, people 
travelling more sustainably, the care sector being 
revered more than it ever has been and many 
businesses innovating and making far greater 
use of digital connectivity are just a few of the 
positives to come from the crisis that are directly 
related to the ‘Grand Challenges’. We need to 
ensure that we build upon these positives and not 
simply return to the way things were before. 

Exit from the European Union - providing 
more to our domestic market 
Our exit from the European Union was already a 
key consideration for where businesses choose to 
locate in the future, but the COVID-19 crisis and its 
effects on international movements of both people 
and goods will now also affect future international 
investment decisions.  Being able to supply goods 
to local markets and source supplies from the 
same country are substantial opportunities for us 
to grasp.

Air quality improvements
The lockdown has produced an overall reduction in 
pollution, primarily due to the decline in transport 
movements with many choosing to run, walk and 
cycle.  This, and how people are now more socially 
aware, are the right conditions to continue to 
develop and support the transition to sustainable 
methods of travel.  Having declared a Climate 
Emergency prior to the COVID-19 outbreak, the 
county council welcomes this, and is leading the 
way in many regards not least those innovation 
projects.

Simply returning to the way things were before 
the crisis would therefore be a missed opportunity 
and, alongside changing business practices and 
sustainable transport, further measures to continue 
the shift towards a low carbon, clean economy need 
to be developed.

Getting people back to work
One of the main challenges that we will face in the 
coming months and possibly years is the need to 
support the unemployed to become economically 
active, in whatever form, once more.  We know 
from the past experiences of economic downturns 
that there is an opportunity to support more 
people to start their own business, including as an 
alternative to re-entering the labour market.  The 
government’s Job Retention Scheme means that 
there will be a proportion of our workforce that are 
currently furloughed but are at significant risk of 
being made redundant once that scheme comes to 
an end.

Town Centres and high streets
The wider impact on Staffordshire as a place 
remains to be seen, particularly with regards to 
how town centres recover following the easing 
of the lockdown measures.  As mentioned 
previously, the closing of non-essential shops has 
led to a significant increase in online shopping, 
with retailers such as Amazon having to prioritise 
deliveries in response to increased demand.  
Whether this shift in the way people shop will 
persist will only become clear as we enter the 
recovery phase, but longer-term impacts on town 
centres may expediate the need to reconsider and 
reshape town centres.

These are likely just a few of the issues we will 
need to consider further moving forwards, with 
many more likely to come to the fore through the 
different phases of the Strategy.  The priorities set 
out in section 9 provide a broad framework as to 
how such issues will be considered, with further 
detail of specific programmes developed through 
the delivery plan(s).

Page 50



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

14 15

Following the general election in December 2019, 
the current government planned to progress 
several important Bills through Parliament that are 
related to the wider economic agenda.  Clearly 
there is a degree of uncertainty as to how and 
when these will indeed now progress but what 
remains clear is that many of the national priorities 
prior to crisis will remain priorities afterwards, 
although with potentially differing levels of 
importance and focus.  This section considers 
some of the most significant national policy 
agendas and what these may mean in the context 
of COVID-19 and beyond.

Levelling-up
The government’s levelling-up agenda is both 
a response to support received in the general 
election from areas that have failed to fully 
experience the benefits of economic growth in 
recent years and a recognition that there has been 
underinvestment in areas outside of the South East 
from successive governments.

Our Strategic Infrastructure Plan shows that there 
is evidence of underinvestment in Staffordshire 
whilst forthcoming changes to the Treasury Green 
Book appraisal process and planned substantial 
increases in public sector investment mean 
Staffordshire is well placed to fully implement the 
government’s levelling-up agenda.

Clearly there is a possibility that levels of planned 
spending may change in response to the vast 
level of investment made to support the economy 
through the crisis.  However, whilst this is 
currently uncertain, areas such as Staffordshire 
may be more susceptible to being adversely 
affected by a prolonged economic downturn.  

It also seems highly likely that there could be 
a strong correlation between such areas and 
primarily areas outside of the South East that it 
seemed would be the focus of the government’s 
levelling-up agenda.  There is a strong argument 
therefore for this to still progress although likely 
with a greater focus on economic recovery.

Devolution
The devolution of powers and funding has been 
a major national policy agenda for many years.  
Much of this stems from Lord Heseltine’s No 
Stone Unturned report, a review into supporting 
economic growth across the country.  So far, 
the primary beneficiaries of devolution have 
been those areas that have a Mayoral Combined 
Authority, with the devolved powers and funding 
differing somewhat for each area.

The government has committed to producing a 
Devolution White Paper this year.  It is expected 
that the paper will bring some consistency to what 
powers and funding can and will be devolved 
whilst also setting out the governance model(s) 
that will be required, thereby enabling all parts of 
the country to benefit from devolution.  It can be 
argued that the COVID-19 crisis has clearly shown 
the need to expediate greater levels of devolution, 
with many local organisations playing vital roles in 
supporting their residents and businesses.  There 
is also a link to the ‘levelling-up’ agenda and how 
associated funding and powers can be devolved 
to areas.  One of the major outputs of this strategy 
is a piece of work by an external body considering 
options of a Staffordshire model of devolution. 

Policy context

Page 51



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

16

The Industrial Strategy
The government’s Industrial Strategy sets out 
a long-term plan to boost the productivity 
and earning power of people throughout the 
UK whilst providing the framework for Local 
Industrial strategiess.  Local industrial strategy’s, 
led by Mayoral Combined Authorities or Local 
Enterprise Partnerships, set out how local areas 
will deliver the priorities set out within the national 
Industrial Strategy, thereby having a strong focus 
on increased levels of productivity.  They intend 
to promote the coordination of local and national 
economic policy and funding streams and establish 
new ways of working between national and local 
government, and the public and private sectors.

The primary focus on productivity will need 
to change in the short to medium-term at least 
given the need to support the national and local 
economy to recover from the downturn.  Ensuring 
that people can return-to-work as soon as possible, 
thereby limiting longer-term implications, will 
therefore be a top priority.  However, the issue of 
relatively poor levels of productivity within the UK 
remains a major issue and improving productivity 
levels, linked to the levelling-up agenda, will be 
one of the main priorities in the longer-term.  The 
opportunities presented through the crisis may 
enable the creation of many more high-value, clean 
jobs, an issue that needs to be considered at both 
the national and local level. 

The Housing Strategy
Government published its Housing White Paper 
for tackling problems in the housing market at 
the beginning of 2017.  This recognises that if 
more new housing is to be built, at a faster rate, 
it will have to be accompanied by investment in 
new infrastructure.  The housing strategy also 
recognises the importance of strategic planning for 
long-term growth.

Government has already committed to new 
investment in housing, industry and infrastructure 
in Staffordshire through various funding 
programmes, primarily delivered through Homes 
England.  The sheer scale of the housing challenge 
and the amount and type of housing being built in 
recent years not meeting what the country requires 
means that housebuilding will remain a major 
priority moving forwards, although the demand 
for housing is likely to be suppressed in the 
short-term.

Page 52



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

16 17

National Infrastructure Strategy 
The National Infrastructure Commission published 
the first-ever National Infrastructure Assessment 
for the UK in July 2018, making recommendations 
for how the identified infrastructure needs and 
priorities of the country should be addressed.  The 
assessment takes a long-term view, up to 2050 for 
most infrastructure themes, and is an important 
consideration as to what and how infrastructure 
may need to change in the future, such as the 
rollout of gigabit-capable digital connectivity 
and the move towards electric and autonomous 
vehicles.

It is expected that Government will respond to the 
National Infrastructure Assessment through the 
National Infrastructure Strategy this year and this 
will clearly be vital to future priorities and funding.

The Fair Funding Review
The Fair Funding Review was begun in early 
2016 and will affect how funding is allocated and 
redistributed between local authorities.  There 
has been a clear recognition that the way local 
authorities are funded is no longer sensible, 
particularly relative to the significant decreases in 
funding directed from central government to local 
authorities over the last decade.

A particularly important aspect of the review 
has been how the retention of business rates can 
play its part in future local government funding, 
with a clear desire for a greater proportion of 
business rates to be retained locally, thereby 
incentivising growth.  Several pilots have taken 
place as to how this may operate, one of which 
the county council was part of.

Also relevant is New Homes Bonus, a payment 
made to local authorities based on the number 
of houses built in the area, incentivising housing 
growth.  Due to the split between upper and 
lower-tier authorities, New Homes Bonus has been 
of particular importance to the funding of District 

/ Borough Councils in recent years.  It is expected 
that New Homes Bonus will be reviewed as part of 
the 2020 Comprehensive Spending Review.

All these issues are clearly vital to the funding 
available to the county council and many of our 
partners in the coming years, whilst devolution 
also clearly has the potential to be important 
to the future funding mix.  We will therefore 
need to continue to lobby for increased levels 
of funding for local government, including the 
county council, if we are to be able to continue to 
deliver high-quality services for our residents and 
businesses and support the development of the 
local economy, as detailed within this strategy.

Exit from the European Union (EU)
The United Kingdom left the EU on 31st January. 
We are currently within the transition period, 
during which negotiations over our future 
relationship with the EU are taking place and will 
conclude at the end of the year. These negotiations 
are on several matters that could have implications 
for the local and national economy, but of most 
importance to our businesses will be trade and 
immigration.

Those businesses that rely on trading with 
countries within the EU, both for imports and 
exports, and those reliant on EU workers will be 
affected by these negotiations. The COVID-19 
crisis will have also affected the ability of 
businesses to trade and source labour from the 
EU given border restrictions that have been in 
place, and continue to be in place, although 
the true impact of this will not be known until 
all businesses begin to operate fully once more. 
This does present opportunities, although there 
are also risks and our future relationship with the 
EU will be an important determinant of the future 
dynamics of the local and national economies.

Page 53



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

1818

Our strategic priorities that will achieve our overall vision and aims in response to the Covid-19 
crisis and possible prolonged economic downtown will be guided by Respond, Recover, Renew and 
Transform. These phases of the strategy will be non-linear.

There are several issues that will be considered that cut across all the five themes including the:

  need to meet carbon-neutral targets.

   supporting inclusive growth to ensure all our residents benefit from the development of the 
local economy including within urban and rural areas.

   communicating and engaging effectively with our businesses and residents, thereby 
creating a strong Staffordshire identity.

RESPOND RECOVER RENEW TRANSFORM

PEOPLE

INFRASTRUCTURE

PLACE

IDEAS

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

What we’ll do

Page 54



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

1918 19

What we’ll do – the Business Environment
Respond – support our businesses to survive 
through the crisis and continue to operate 
if appropriate, including supporting those 
businesses struggling with cashflow but remain 
viable in the medium to long-term.

Recover – support those businesses affected 
by the crisis to recover at the earliest 
opportunity.

 Sub-priorities

   Continue to support those businesses 
with cashflow issues but remain viable.

   Support businesses to diversify into 
new areas where the market they were 
previously operating within has changed.

   Consider how we may support those 
businesses that rely on overseas trade if 
the crisis continues to adversely impact 
imports and exports.

   Support people to start their own business 
with a focus on the unemployed and those 
people currently furloughed but at risk of 
becoming unemployed.

Transform – support and deliver schemes where 
these are supporting companies to start-up, invest 
and thrive within those clean, high-value and 
transformational sectors that will form a vital part 
of the future Staffordshire economy including sites, 
premises and finance schemes.

Renew – continue to support people to start their 
own business and enable existing businesses to 
invest within the county and thrive.
 
Sub-priorities

   Ensure that we have suitable sites and 
premises ready and available so that 
we can take advantage of future business 
investment opportunities, which includes 
the expansion and refurbishment of some 
Enterprise Centres.e.

   Following the withdrawal from the EU, 
continue to consider and shape the 
forthcoming Shared Prosperity Fund to 
deliver an effective business support 
service in Staffordshire.

   As international markets begin to open-
up once more, support all our businesses 
to trade by helping them to identify 
opportunities to build their customer base.

   Consider the types of business premises 
that we are encouraging and directly 
developing in Staffordshire in order to 
ensure that developments are having 
a positive impact on local government 
finances and providing a revenue stream 
to fund other schemes.

Page 55



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2020

What we’ll do - People
Respond – ensure that residents are aware 
of and able to access appropriate support 
schemes through the crisis.

 Sub-priorities

   Support rapid-retraining programmes to 
support people to find employment in 
those sectors that have grown during the 
crisis.

   Work proactively with our skills providers 
to ensure they continue to operate digitally 
where possible through the crisis.

Recover – support and deliver employment 
support schemes to ensure people that are made 
redundant can return to work as quickly   
as possible.

 Sub-priorities

   Ensure that support is provided to those 
socio-economic groups most impacted by 
the downturn including through equipping 
people with skills for key sectors, of 
particular importance for young people 
who are most likely to suffer in the long-
term.

   Work with our skills providers to return to 
operating and delivering education and 
training courses at the earliest possible 
opportunity, including consideration of what 
training opportunities may be required 
to assist our businesses in their recovery.

Renew – ensure that residents within Staffordshire 
have the skills to meet the needs of our existing 
and future businesses.

Sub-priorities

   Retain and attract skilled workers, 
including graduates, by ensuring that 
Staffordshire is an attractive place to live 
and work.

   Encourage a greater level of lifelong 
learning and support people to upskill 
and reskill throughout their working 
lives.

   Develop an effective local careers advice 
service that supports people in making 
good career choices throughout their 
lives, not only in terms of meeting the 
needs of existing and future employers 
but also encouraging people to start 
their own business and develop the 
leadership, management and other skills 
necessary to ensure local businesses 
have the greatest opportunities to 
innovate and grow.

   Develop further vocational education 
and training provision within 
Staffordshire to support our key sectors 
that require more technical skills.  This 
will include maximising the benefits of 
the apprenticeship levy by encouraging 
a greater number of higher-level 
apprenticeship opportunities within the 
county, enabling larger employers to 
take greater ownership of their future 
skills requirements.

   Address any issues that are either 
discouraging or stopping residents from 
entering employment, which depending 
on the area can include generational 
factors, health issues, poor educational 
attainment, a lack of appropriate and 
affordable childcare, a lack of affordable 
housing in areas where there are good 
employment opportunities, etc.

Transform – work with local and surrounding 
skills providers to develop the skills amongst our 
population that will meet the needs of the clean, 
high-value and transformational businesses we 
are aiming to develop and attract.

Page 56



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2120 21

What we’ll do - Infrastructure
Respond – continue to maintain our transport 
system to ensure that essential business and 
workers are still able to move freely around the 
county.

 Sub-priorities

   Support our public transport operators to 
access available funding opportunities to 
remain operational.

   Work with our digital infrastructure 
providers to ensure all organisations and 
residents can continue to operate digitally 
where possible.

Recover – ensure that infrastructure within 
Staffordshire can support businesses and residents 
in returning to work at the earliest opportunity.

 Sub-priorities

   Work with public transport operators in 
returning appropriate levels of service 
through the recovery.

   Further enable and support residents 
and workers in being able to travel by 
sustainable transport methods, particularly 
walking and cycling, given the increases in 
these activities seen during the crisis.

Renew – reconsider infrastructure projects in 
response to the downturn and continue to 
promote, deliver and support the delivery of 
projects as appropriate.

 Sub-priorities

   Ensure that the substantial levels of 
growth planned for Staffordshire can 
be accommodated without being 
detrimental to levels of accessibility and 
connectivity.

   Continue to support and work to 
maximise the local economic benefits 
of major infrastructure schemes such 
as HS2, the A50(T) North Midlands 
Manufacturing Growth Corridor and 
M54-M6 Toll Link Road.

   Continue to improve broadband speed and 
availability across Staffordshire, ensuring 
that new housing and employment 
developments have access to gigabit-
capable broadband whilst also considering 
how we maximise the benefits of improved 
digital connectivity, including the use of 5G 
and other emerging technologies.

Transform – deliver those infrastructure projects 
that will support the growth of those clean, high-
value and transformational sectors that will form a 
vital part of the local economy in the future, with a 
particularly focus on digital connectivity given the 
significant shift in businesses / working practices 
through the crisis and the inward investment 
opportunities this presents.

Page 57



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2222

What we’ll do - Place
Respond – support those places that are most 
adversely impacted by the crisis due to their 
industrial structure by proactively sign-posting 
to appropriate schemes.

Recover – consider how positive environmental 
impacts can be at least partly maintained through 
the recovery whilst also ensuring we prioritise the 
recovery of those areas most impacted by the 
downturn.

Renew – continue to ensure that Staffordshire is an 
attractive place to live, work, invest and visit.

 Sub-priorities

   Address the issues related to the balance 
of housing in Staffordshire, including a 
lack of aspirational homes within parts of 
the county and a need for smaller affordable 
housing in rural areas to attract and retain 
a younger population, whilst also allowing 
older residents the opportunity to downsize 
and free-up family housing.

   Continue to progress those aspirational, 
transformational projects that will form a 
vital part of the county’s future including 
those schemes developed through the 
Constellation Partnership such as Stafford 
Gateway.

   Continue to support our District / Borough 
Council partners in their efforts to revitalise 
and reshape their town centres.

Transform – consider the long-term vision for 
Staffordshire as a place, including the changing 
role of many town centres and how we continue 
to protect and support the development of our 
cultural and environmental assets and rural 
areas.

Page 58



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2322 23

What we’ll do - Innovation
Respond – support those businesses and 
organisations that are innovating and taking 
advantage of new markets and opportunities 
presented by the crisis.

Recover – support those businesses and 
organisations involved in innovation activities and 
projects affected by the crisis to begin operating 
at the earliest opportunity given their importance 
to the future local economy.

Renew – continue to support and deliver those 
innovation projects that will continue to be vital to 
Staffordshire moving forwards.

 Sub-priorities

   Take full advantage of and build upon the 
innovation strengths that we already have 
within Staffordshire.  This could include 
the development of Catapult-type centres 
relevant to our key sectors.

   Encourage a greater level of innovation 
amongst our local businesses and support 
stronger links between businesses and 
relevant research institutions.

Transform – develop those innovation assets, 
employment sites and premises that will support 
the creation and investment of clean, high-value 
and transformational businesses.  This may include 
the development of further science parks where 
businesses and the university co-exist and co-
operate.

 Sub-priorities

   Support our businesses to diversify into 
new, innovative markets, particularly where 
the crisis has had a negative impact on the 
business’s viability.

Page 59



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

24

How we’ll do it
Achieving our mission and objectives will require 
the delivery of projects and programmes aligned 
to our strategic priorities.  These projects and 
programmes will evolve throughout the delivery 
of the strategy.  They are therefore set out in the 
strategy’s supporting delivery plan which will be 
reviewed on a regular basis, including against 
performance of the delivery plan in achieving 
the strategy’s vision and aims.  This section 
sets out the overarching strategic principles for 
the delivery plan, including brief consideration 
of some of the activity already taking place in 
response to the COVID-19 crisis.

What we’re already doing
We’ve moved at speed to make a difference at the 
time when people and businesses most needed it.

At a local level we have so far:

Offered the Emergency Grant Scheme for 
micro-businesses
 The £500,000 fund has made a considerable 
difference to micro-businesses across Staffordshire 
not eligible for other grants or support and was 
closed due to demand in just five days.

The National Careers Service (NCS) are leading 
this work with the employers and individuals in 
scope. For people at risk of redundancy or already 
redundant/ laid off, NCS carry out a telephone 
skills analysis and give whatever support is 
needed.  This includes signposting businesses and 
individuals to other support provision offered via 
a range of partners.  NCS match people to the 
vacancies that they have been notified of and the 
ones they have obtained for themselves.

Redundancy & Recruitment Triage service
The County Council and City Council, on behalf 
of SSLEP, have created a triage service to help 
those made jobless, as a result of the COVID-19 
crisis, back into employment, 

including many in Apprenticeship roles. The 
National Careers Service (NCS) are leading this 
work with the employers and individuals in 
scope.

For people at risk of redundancy or already 
redundant/ laid off, NCS carry out a telephone 
skills analysis and give whatever support is 
needed.  This includes signposting businesses and 
individuals to other support provision offered via 
a range of partners.  NCS match people to the 
vacancies that they have been notified of and the 
ones they have obtained for themselves.

Start-up support scheme
A £0.36m business start-up scheme has been 
developed to enable and support residents at 
risk of redundancy in starting their own business, 
enabling residents to remain economically active 
and hopefully create successful businesses that go 
on to become employers.

Delayed rent payments
For those businesses that the county council 
is their tenant, we have agreed to delay rent 
payments to support these businesses through 
these difficult times and help with their cashflow.

Page 60



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2524 25

Prior to and during the COVID-19 crisis, a range 
of activities have continued to progress.  Many, if 
not all, of these will remain vital to achieving our 
ambitions for the Staffordshire economy over the 
next 5 years as they lay the conditions for growth 
and develop long-term stability.  However, through 
the development of the delivery plan all activities, 
existing and new, will need the following 
considered against principles:

 1.  Delivery of the Economic Recovery, Renewal 
& Transformation

 2.  Alignment to one or more of the strategic 
priorities

 3. Outputs

 4. Deliverability

 5. Funding

 6. Risk
In the development of the delivery plan and the 
consideration of existing and new schemes, it will 
also be important to consider what needs to stop, 
what needs to continue, what needs to start and 
where there may be gaps in interventions against 
the strategic priorities that need to be filled, across 
all phases of the strategy.

Funding the strategy
A vast amount of funding has been allocated to 
respond to the immediate crisis, including £38 
million of funding to help towards the county 
council’s efforts to manage the pandemic.

In future phases of the strategy, many of the 
projects and programmes that we will deliver and 
support to deliver could either be entirely funded 
by the private sector or locally using existing 
funding sources.  Where public sector funding is 
required, we will ensure investment is prioritised 
to deliver those projects that ensure the greatest 
impact in achieving our vision and aims.

In the longer-term, funding to the deliver the 
strategy is more uncertain and will be dependent 
on several factors. We have an opportunity to 
explore different approaches to funding growth 
as a county council as well as influencing how the 
government progresses its various policy agendas 
including ‘Fair-Funding’ for local government, 
‘levelling-up’, devolution and the Shared Prosperity 
Fund.  We will continue to work with our partners, 
including government, to shape and access 
funding to deliver the strategy as appropriate.

Working with our partners to get the  
job done
Working with our partners is critical to getting 
the job done:

Government

The county council works directly with many 
government departments.  In recent years this 
has included the Department for Business, Energy 
and Industrial Strategy on several skills projects, 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government and particularly Homes England on 
housing schemes including the proposal for a 
new garden settlement in Stafford Borough, the 
Department for Transport on a number of major 
road schemes, the Department for Digital, Culture, 
Media and Sport on the delivery of the superfast 
broadband project and the Department for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs on a number 
of funding schemes for rural areas and businesses.

Whilst devolution should provide greater autonomy 
for local areas and this is something we will 
support, it will be clearly be vital for us to continue 
to work closely with government to deliver our 
vision and aims through the crisis and beyond.

What we’ll continue to do - laying the conditions for growth

Page 61



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2626

Midlands Engine
The Midlands Engine partnership brings together 
public sector partners and businesses to 
complement the activity of local and combined 
authorities, LEPs, universities, businesses and 
others.

The Midlands Engine Strategy sets out a collective 
ambition for economic growth and prosperity 
across the East and West Midlands.  It aligns with 
the national Industrial Strategy and highlights how 
the region can build upon existing business sectors 
and areas of opportunity.  It highlights many of our 
key industries, universities and employment areas 
as places of national and global significance.

The Midlands Engine priorities are all vital to the 
future economic growth of the Midlands and 
Staffordshire and we will continue to proactively 
engage in the Midlands Engine to support 
investment in the area.  Partners within the 
Midlands Engine are currently considering priorities 
in response to the COVID-19 crisis with emerging 
themes including:

   Access to finance and cashflow

   Skills and labour supply (including 
furloughing)

   New business models including digitisation

   Social distancing and implications for 
coming out of lockdown

   Trade agreements

   Consumer behaviour – persistence of 
changing consumption and mobility 
patterns

   Supply chain readiness and pinch points

   Rural and urban economies e.g. food supply, 
processing and consumers

   Consequences of reported inflexibilities and 
gaps in coverage of current government 
business support measures

   Productivity and logistical consequences of 
the large-scale switch to remote working 
and e-commerce which, depending on 
persistence, may have implications for long 
term land-use and transportation policy and 
planning

   Long term health and well-being 
consequences of enforced isolation (health, 
education, psychological)

   Vulnerability of the young to employment 
effects and concerns about potential long 
term ‘scarring’ impacts on labour market 
participation and career progression 

These themes clearly align closely to many of our 
own priorities and we will continue to engage 
with the Midlands Engine to shape the regional 
response to the current crisis as appropriate.

What we’ll continue to do - laying the conditions for growth Cont...

Page 62



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2726 27

Midlands Connect
Midlands Connect researches, develops and 
recommends transport projects which will provide 
the biggest possible economic and social benefits 
for the Midlands and the rest of the UK.  Through 
Midlands Connect we are considering the wider 
future requirements for investment in the strategic 
road and rail network.  We view this as being a key 
mechanism for the development of connectivity 
improvements, particularly investments by 
Highways England and National Rail.

The partnership is currently conducting a range 
of studies in to how we can alleviate congestion 
and support growth across several strategic 
transport corridors that are within or affect 
Staffordshire, particularly the A50/A500 corridor 
and connectivity to the west of the West Midlands 
conurbation.  We are actively engaged in these 
studies and future transport investment will 
remain vital to supporting the future growth of 
Staffordshire.

Enterprise Partnership

Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership
The Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) brings businesses 
and local authorities together to drive economic 
growth, create jobs and raise skills levels.  Since 
its inception, the county council has secured 
a significant amount of investment through 
the LEP for many projects across the county 
including several roads, employment sites, 
housing and business premises projects.  The LEP 
also has responsibility for the Stoke-on-Trent and 
Staffordshire Growth Hub which provides support 
services for our local businesses.  It will clearly be 
vital to continue to work with the LEP to secure 
investment into Staffordshire moving forwards.

LEPs will have a role in bringing together partners 
to consider wider strategic economic recovery 
priorities across their geographies.  The county 
council will therefore continue to work with the 
Stoke-on-Trent and Staffordshire LEP and all our 
adjacent LEPs to ensure that the priorities across 
the wider sub-region benefit Staffordshire, and vice 
versa.

In addition to the LEP, the county council also 
proactively works with our business representative 
organisations, particularly the Staffordshire 

Chambers of Commerce and Federation for Small 
Businesses.  These organisations have a vital role 
in having direct contact and working with our 
business community.

Staffordshire’s District / Borough Councils
Staffordshire County Council has a strong 
track record of working proactively with the 
Staffordshire district / borough councils, including 
on many programmes that have had a substantial 
positive impact on the local economy.  We 
need to work closely with our district / borough 
councils as many, if not all, of our economic 
programmes require a multi-disciplinary approach 
with the county and district / borough councils 
having different but complementary relevant 
responsibilities.  This includes the Districts / 
Boroughs role as Local Planning Authorities.

This Strategy recognises the importance of 
Staffordshire as a place to the future recovery, 
renewal and transformation of the local economy 
and alongside planning policy responsibilities, the 
districts / boroughs work and responsibilities to 
reshape town centres, in tandem with the county 
council’s roles particularly regarding infrastructure 
delivery, will play a vital role in achieving the aims 
of the strategy.

Page 63



www.staffordshire.gov.ukwww.staffordshire.gov.uk

2828

Governance
A governance model has been created within the county council to ensure effective decision-
making and delivery through the immediate crisis, as set out below. 

SLT GOLD

SCC PLANNING AND RECOVERY GROUP

STAFFORDSHIRE RESILIENCE FORUM
RECOVERY CO-ORDINATING GROUP

GROUPS TBC

GROUPS TBC

GROUPS TBC

GROUPS TBC

GROUPS TBC

CA
BI

NE
T 

M
EM

BE
R 

LE
A

D

H&C SUBGROUPS

FAMILIES AND COMMUNITIES

F&C SUBGROUPS

ECONOMY AND PROPERITY 
(EI&S)

EI&S SUBGROUPS

CORPORATE SERVICES

CS SUBGROUPS

CO
M

M
UN

IT
IE

S

PE
OP

LE

DI
GI

TA
L

CL
IM

AT
E 

CH
A

N
GE

Included within the governance model is 
an ‘Economic Recovery Cell’ which has the 
responsibility of delivering this strategy through 
the ‘respond’ phase.  Once we move into 
the ‘recovery’ phase and beyond, the county 
council’s usual governance models will manage 
and monitor the delivery of this strategy and 
supporting delivery plan(s), including scrutiny by 
the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee

It will clearly be vital to ensure that we continue 
to work proactively with all our partners in the 
delivery of the strategy.  We will need to continue 
to work closely with our district / borough 
councils and Stoke-on-Trent City Council; through 
the Staffordshire Chief Executive Officers Group 
we will establish a steering group of officers with 
relevant responsibilities from the all of the local 
authorities to consider and drive forward the 
delivery of this Strategy and those of the districts 
/ boroughs / city.  We will also continue to ensure 

that there is political engagement in the delivery 
of the strategy throughout its duration through the 
Staffordshire Leaders & Chief Executives Group.  
The delivery of joint programmes will be managed 
through existing and new locality working 
arrangements, as appropriate.

To complement the work we do with the LEP we 
will bring together a business advisory board to 
help shape our thinking through a ‘Star Chamber’ 
with a limited number of representatives from 
major businesses from key sectors across 
Staffordshire.  The ‘Star Chamber’ will help to 
shape the delivery plan(s) and drive forward the 
delivery of the strategy.

Page 64



www.staffordshire.gov.uk

28 29

Performance Monitoring
Detailed performance metrics will be dependent 
upon the specific interventions made and are 
therefore set out within the supporting delivery 
plans.  There are however several metrics that 
are important in monitoring our performance 
through the immediate crisis, including:

    Growth Hub support metrics

    Redundancy and recruitment triage service 
metrics 

    Regular performance metrics to understand 
state of local economy including:

     Job losses by district and sector

     Claimants

     Job vacancies

    Regular performance metrics to understand 
state of learning and training including:

     People not in employment, education or 
training (NEET)

     Learning and training provider failures

     Learner declines

      Apprentices furloughed / made 
redundant

    Regular performance metrics to understand 
the state of transport including:

     Passenger and provider declines

www.staffordshire.gov.uk
Moving to a renewed and

strong economic landscapePage 65





 

 

Local Members Interest 

N/A 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee - Thursday 17 
September 2020 

 

Infrastructure+ and Lighting for Staffordshire Performance Review 
 
Recommendations  
 
I recommend that the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee (PSSC): 
 
a. Is provided with an update of contract performance for the Infrastructure+ 

partnership and Lighting for Staffordshire Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
respectively; and 

   
b. Considers what additional performance information would be beneficial in 

ensuring both contracts are achieving the required aims. 
 

Report of Cllr David Williams, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport 
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
1. To receive operational performance on two long-term highway service delivery 

contracts: Infrastructure+ and Streetlighting Private Finance Initiative (PFI); and 
provide direction on future or additional performance measures necessary to 
demonstrate these contracts are achieving their required aims. 

 

Report 
 
PART 1: INFRASTRUCTURE+ 
 
Background 
 
2. Infrastructure+ is an Overarching Agreement between Staffordshire County 

Council and Amey LG providing an outcome focused approach to the delivery of 
highway and non-property infrastructure services across Staffordshire.  It is 
aligned to the Council’s Strategic Plan through the achievement of priority 
outcomes as demonstrated in Appendix 1. 

 
3. The contract went live on 1 October 2014, since then it has: 

 
a. Successfully delivered over £260m of highway maintenance operations and 

projects;  
b. Achieved over £30m of front-line service cost savings; and 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5



 

 

c. Implemented over £100m of inward investment highway and transport 
infrastructure improvements to support the creation of over 10,000 new jobs 
and 8,500 new houses across Staffordshire. 

 
4. A core element of the Infrastructure+ partnership is a Term Service Contract 

(TSC) for the maintenance, management and improvement of over 6,300Kms of 
highway network. Good performance in this challenging front-line service area is 
commercially incentivised with priority access to additional ‘call-off’ contracts for 
the delivery of major highway infrastructure improvement projects, subject to Best-
Value also being demonstrated. Major infrastructure projects have their own 
performance management system, including assurance around key measures 
such as the predictability of time, cost and quality. 

 
5. With regards to the TSC activities the best use of resources is achieved by 

adopting preventive maintenance strategies and targeting resources as set out in 
the council’s Cabinet approved Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan 
(HIAMP).  

 
6. However, working within the limits of the available funding means that achieving 

locally desirable service levels is not always possible. This elevates the need for 
effective local engagement, timely communication and availability of clear 
information.  To support this need early in the life of the Infrastructure+ 
partnership the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee (PSSC) developed an 
Action Plan, which was agreed on 26 April 2016 and completed on 19 September 
2018. 

 
Governance Arrangements 
 
7. The Governance Framework for Infrastructure Plus, which includes Performance 

Management, operates within three tiers: 
 

a. Strategic Partnership Board (SPB); 
b. Operational Commissioning Board (OCB); and 
c. Delivery Project Teams (DPT’s) and Outcome Groups (OG’s).  

 
8. The SPB generally meets three or four times per year and receives a report on 

performance at each if its meetings. From August 2020 membership of the SPB 
from the county council is: Darryl Eyers Director for Economy, Infrastructure and 
Skills (Chair); Rob Salmon, County Treasurer; Mark Deaville, Cabinet Member for 
Commercial; Philip White, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Skills; and David Williams, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation. 

 
9. The OCB generally meets monthly and receives performance reports from each of 

the DPTs on a rotating quarterly basis. Membership of OCB includes senior 
managers from both the county council and Amey. 

 
10. The DPT’s and OG’s similarly meet monthly to review the performance and 

continually improve the services for which the respective groups are responsible. 
Membership is made up of operational delivery managers from both the county 
council and Amey.  The Customer Outcome Group is chaired by David Williams, 

Page 68



 

 

Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport, and has cross-party support from 
seven local Members, providing geographical coverage of all Borough and District 
areas of Staffordshire.    

 
Performance Management 

 
11. An overview of the Infrastructure+ Performance Management framework is 

provided in Appendix 2.   
 
12. Operational performance is managed through a balanced scorecard process for 

each of the following areas: 
 

a. Staffing 
b. Routine, reactive and cyclical maintenance 
c. Asset Management 
d. Planning 
e. Network Management & Inspections 
f. Quality 
g. Laboratory 
h. Insurance and Claims 

 
13. The scorecards compare each measure against a target to produce a score on a 

range of +/-1. Two targets are generally set for each measure, including one 
based on historic performance and a higher stretched target based on being able 
to secure performance improvements.  Each DPT is responsible for agreeing 
these targets and will also seek to use wider benchmarking information across 
Amey or the wider sector wherever this is available. 

 
14. Operational performance of the partnership is discussed at each meeting of the 

Strategic Partnership Board.  At the last meeting of the SPB on 7 July 2020 
operational performance was scored as +23 on a range of +/-58 and accepted as 
satisfactory taking into consideration the funding constraints particularly around 
highway maintenance. The SPB Performance report and supporting scorecards is 
attached as Appendix 3.   

 
15. There are also several other activities and programmes that require bespoke 

performance reporting arrangements. The following provides a summary of each. 
 

a. Finance: Expenditure against budget allocations is monitored through the year 
and adjustments made as necessary, for example to be able to respond to 
weather events. The partnership has an excellent track record of ensuring that 
service delivery is constrained to within the overall level of financial resources.   
Up to the end of April 2020 around 85% of Infrastructure+ supply chain 
expenditure has been retained within the geography of Staffordshire and 
neighbouring authority areas. 

 
b. Value for Money:  Value for money continues to be ensured through 

commercial competition within the supply chain (subcontractors, plant and 
materials) as well as benchmarking of direct labour costs and operational 
performance.  An independent Value for Money (VfM) review completed in the 

Page 69



 

 

summer of 2018 by the Future Highways Research Club (FHRC) concluded 
that: “Infrastructure+ is providing satisfactory value for money through a forward 
looking and constructive partnership” and that “the service compares favourably 
to many peers and peer authorities are often keen to understand how the 
partnership operates”. Additionally, early in 2019 an independent review of the 
Target Cost estimate for Stafford Western Access Road completed by Faithful 
and Gould concluded that: “Amey’s Target cost is competitive and reflective of 
current market conditions”. 

 
c. Public Satisfaction: National Highways and Transport Public Satisfaction 

Survey. Comparing the results of the one hundred and six Authorities that took 
part in the Survey in 2018 and 2019 the overall trend in public satisfaction for 
the 2019 survey is slightly up with seventy percent of authorities seeing either 
no change or, an improvement to the overall satisfaction. In Staffordshire, 
overall satisfaction improved slightly by one percentage point to 51%. The 
average score for County Councils is 52%, with Staffordshire being 18th out of 
28. The chart below shows the levels of satisfaction for each of the key themes. 

 

 
 

d. For highway maintenance activities, the main change in Staffordshire is with the 
condition of highways (KBI 23) which is up by 7% compared to the previous 
year. This measure has improved nationally with an average increase of 5%. 
Although this is an improved level of satisfaction, levels of satisfaction remain 
low compared to the average of 33% for County Councils with Staffordshire 
being placed 25th out of 28 in the peer group.   The chart below shows the 
levels of satisfaction for the key measures within the highway maintenance 
theme. 

 
 

Page 70



 

 

 
 

e. For the detailed measures that form part of the Highway Maintenance theme, 
there has been significant improvement (>=4%) on the condition of road 
surfaces, speed of repair, dealing with potholes and damaged roads and, 
undertakes cold weather gritting. Satisfaction levels have significantly (>=4%) 
reduced on the provision and cleaning of drains, and flooding of roads and 
pavements. 

 

 
 

Page 71



 

 

 
16. As part of the 2020/21 Infrastructure+ Business Plan the Strategic Partnership 

Board has agreed the following improvement-plan priorities: 
 

a. Implement new national code of practice ‘Well Managed Highway 
Infrastructure’ 2016; 

b. Develop and implement a long-term sustainable asset management plan and 
investment strategy; 

c. Review of management of highway trees; 
d. Development of a policy for sustainable highways and, climate change 

adaptation plan; 
e. Data Management Policy Review and update, strengthening and enhancing 

information sharing  
f. Engagement with the supply chain to identify opportunities for innovation in the 

partnership 
g. Maintenance management tracker (for investment) and reporting; 
h. Develop and implement a Communication Strategy, roadmap and delivery plan; 
i. Develop and implement a new workforce plan including review of competency 

framework taking into account national guidance; 
j. Review of governance structure; 
k. Delivery of the successful £2m DfT/ADEPT Live Labs project; 
l. Quality assurance and value for money; 
m. Define a future depot strategy including that depots meet minimum workforce 

standards; 
n. Review how the partnership manages third-party claims, including allocation of 

risk and liability; 
o. Review how the partnership undertakes asset management, from strategic role 

to life cycle planning and delivery mechanisms; and 
p. Review and develop an asset-based Performance Management Framework. 

 
Extra Investment Strategy 

 
17. The local road network is the council’s single largest physical asset, with a gross 

replace value of over £7 Billion. The Government’s own endorsed Asset 
Management approach to highway maintenance recognises that a highway 
network the size of Staffordshire’s requires a one-off investment of around £75m 
to bring it up to target condition followed by  £42m/year ongoing to achieve 
‘steady-state’ condition in carriageway condition alone. This figure rises to around 
£50m/year ongoing when taking account of other highway assets including 
bridges and retaining walls. 

 

Page 72



 

 

18. In March 2020, Government announced £2.5 billion additional highway 
maintenance funding over 5 years starting in in 2020/21.  This has equated to an 
additional £11.1m for Staffordshire, and a total of £33.8m government capital 
grant funding in 20/21.   

 
19. Additionally, over the last 10 years the service has made savings of over 

£13m/year (57%) ongoing to ensure we can live within our means. 
 
20. To help achieve these savings some of the capital grant funding allocation is now 

being used to fund elements of routine highway maintenance traditionally funded 
from revenue. The consequence being that less capital funding is available for the 
larger life-adding asset renewal and resurfacing schemes. 

 
21. The total remaining highway revenue budget is £26m, which equates to 

approximately 5% of the Councils total annual revenue budget.  After 
commitments including the streetlighting PFI, School Crossing Patrols and a 
range of statutory functions approximately £10m (2% of the Council’s total 
revenue budget) remains for highway maintenance operations.  This provides the 
following functions: 

 
a. Response to emergency defects, accidents and weather events (£3m) 
b. Winter Gritting operations (£3m) 
c. Grass cutting, weed treatment and tree management (£1m) 
d. Signing, lining, barriers, fencing, etc. (£1m) 
e. Gully emptying (£1m) 
f. Other e.g. Recycling, safety equipment and training (£1m) 

 
22. Early in 2017 due to the growing pressure on highway resources and customer 

feedback Cabinet approved a £5m/year extra investment strategy between 
2017/18 – 2020/21. The aim of this money is to reduce the backlog, and 
associated reputational and financial liability, of long-standing low-risk pothole 
defects.  

 
23. Progress is monitored monthly through a specific governance meeting chaired by 

the cabinet Member for Highways and Transport. By the end of this financial year 
this Extra Investment will have provided c.200,000m2 of additional pothole 
repairs, over 100 miles of pothole prevention surface treatments and £3m of 
targeted drainage improvements.  The positive effect can be seen both in terms of 
reducing the total number and long-standing low-risk carriageway and footway 
pothole defects. Levels of public satisfaction measured through the NHT survey 
have also started to see improvement in some aspects of highway maintenance 
associated with this investment.  

 
Table 1: Extra Investment Progress 
 

 01/05/2017 26/03/18 25/03/19 01/04/20 Notes Trend 

Total number of 
pothole defects 

recorded on network 
at the start of new 

Financial Year. 

11,908 9,652 7,281 6,748  
 

Page 73



 

 

No. of Cat 3 defects 
greater than 90-days 

old 
8,812 7,376 

 
5,356 

 
4,882  

 

New customer 
reports of pothole 

defects 
23,000* 19,934 16,565 13,897 

*Report system changed 
in 17/18. The 16/17 data 

is a pro-rata estimate. 

 

 
Right 1

st
 time repair 

 
96% 96% 96% 96% 

Quality maintained 
despite the increase in 

work volume. 

 

 
24. The investment strategy during 2020/21 is to provide an extra:  

 
a. £2m to provide a further 40,000m2 of extra pothole repairs (approx. 9,000 

individual defects); 
b. £2m to provide approximately 40 miles of additional low-cost pothole prevention 

surface treatments; and  
c. £1m towards additional drainage repairs, targeted at locations where poor 

drainage is leading to premature road surface deterioration.  
 

PART 2: LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE 
 

Contract Summary  
 

25. In May 2003 Lighting for Staffordshire Ltd commenced delivery of the street 
lighting Private Finance Initiative (PFI) contract. The contract formerly commenced 
on the 19 May 2003 and will operate for a period of 25 years. Lighting for 
Staffordshire Ltd is a holdings company commissioned to deliver the contract via 
an appointed Service Provider. The appointed Service Provider tasked with works 
delivery is E.on Energy Solutions Ltd. E.on UK Energy Services Ltd is the majority 
shareholder of Lighting for Staffordshire Ltd. The value of the contract at its 
commencement was £250m and the Council receives a Revenue Support Grant 
of £1.54m per annum to support delivery of the contract. 

 
Reasons Challenge/Aims 

 
26. The primary reason for the PFI contract was to redress a continued lack of 

investment in street lighting assets to maintain the equipment at an appropriate 
condition level. Prior to contract commencement 24% of the street lighting stock of 
99,343 assets was at significant risk of catastrophic failure. The PFI procurement 
route was determined as the most appropriate solution to secure the additional 
funds required to bring the street lighting assets up to the required standards to 
maintain highway safety. 

 
27. The majority of PFI contracts complete their asset renewal programme within the 

first five years of operation, with the remainder of the contract period, typically 20 
years, focused upon asset maintenance. The Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI 
contract is fundamentally different in that we have a continuous programme of 
asset renewal throughout the full contract period. This approach prevents a big 
bang scenario in future years, when a large number of assets would potentially 
require renewal over a short period of time, demanding a significant peak in 
financial demands. This also allows the authority and the PFI contractor to 

Page 74



 

 

continuously benefit from any technological advancements that would enhance 
service delivery. 

 
28. Since the contract commenced back in 2003 the number of street lighting assets 

on the highway network has risen from 99,343 to 108,626 (June 2020), a growth 
of 9.3% over a 17-year period. This level of growth will continue proportionately; 
however, the recent announcement for planning system reform may impact upon 
our original predictions for asset growth. 

 
Governance Arrangements 

 
29. The governance arrangements for PFI contracts are generally undertaken by the 

appointed PFI contractor i.e. self-monitoring. However, as with most PFI contracts 
some degree of ancillary monitoring is undertaken by the authority to ensure 
contract compliance. For this particular contract high level governance is provided 
by the Lighting for Staffordshire project board whose primary focus is to monitor 
the delivery of the project against their financial risks. Staffordshire’s officers are 
invited to board meetings on an ad-hoc basis to provide input on specific elements 
e.g. SCC requested Contract Change Notices. 

 
30. For day to day governance SCC’s officers liaise with the appointed Service 

provider, E.on Energy Solutions Ltd. Regular contract review meetings are held to 
monitor / review the delivery of the service against a series of Performance 
Standards 1-6 (PSI to PSVI). The Service Provider submits a monthly report that 
summarises progress over the specific period (Appendix 5). The Service Provider 
is also required to produce an annual report that provides an overview of the 
project achievements for the year (Appendix 6). 

 
31. In addition to the above an appointed Engineering Certifier undertakes a series of 

additional checks against the Performance Standards PSI to PSVI. The 
Engineering Certifier also commissions annual external and internal audits of the 
asset management system. This to verify compliance with specific contract 
requirements. 

 
32. Due to the high financial value of the contract the authorities own audit team 

undertake regular audits of the management and monitoring arrangements in 
place for the Street Lighting PFI contract. The most recent audit (2016/17) 
provided a level of ‘Substantial’ assurance for the management and monitoring 
arrangements applied to the contract.  

 
Progress / Performance Summary  

 
33. In terms of performance the PFI contract has two distinct elements: asset renewal 

programme; and general maintenance operations. 
 

Asset Renewal 
 

34. The asset renewal programme is delivered in 5 yearly blocks and can be broken 
down as detailed in Table 1.0.  
 

Page 75



 

 

Table 1.0 – Asset Renewal Programme 
 

Block Period Target Asset No. Actual Asset No. 

IARP   - (2003 to 2008) 27,059 25,503 

AARP-1 (2008 to 2013) 11,590 12,188 

AARP-2 (2013 to 2018) 9,370 10,616 

AARP-3 (2018 to 2023) 9,170   4,639  

AARP-4 (2023 to 2028) 7,700  - 

Total 64,889 52,946    
(at June 2020) 

 

 
35. The asset renewal programme is continuously assessed to ensure that assets 

with a longer than expected life cycle are not replaced earlier than necessary. To 
verify this once a street lighting column reaches the age of either 25 or 35 years 
(depending upon construction) it is subject to a structural testing regime to 
maximise the life of assets with a residual life and to identify assets that have 
degraded earlier than anticipated. 

 
36. The discrepancies in Table 1.0 between the Target and Actual number of assets 

replaced is due to the mechanism used for the value of an asset. Each type of 
asset scores points between 1 and 4 and depending upon the type of asset 
renewed will generate a specific points claim. We are limited to a maximum 
permissible points claim per Block Period due to the payment mechanism 
contained within the contract. We believe that our approach when assessing 
which assets require renewal provides the most cost-effective solution to 
maximise the benefits of the PFI contract. 

 
General Maintenance 

 
37. The PFI contract provides a consistency of funding which sustains asset condition 

at a manageable level. The benefits of this continuous investment with respect to 
general maintenance operations are significant and we consistently achieve the 
following outcomes from the contract:  

 
a. When compared to the contract commencement year, the number of reported 

faults has reduced by almost 50%, with emergency fault reports down by the 
same value; 

b. The number of lights lit an any point in time remains consistently high at over 
99.4% against a performance target of 98%; 

c. A customer satisfaction rating of over 98% has been consistently achieved 
since the completion of the first Block period of investment IARP in May 2008. 

 
Additional Achievements 

 
38. Following the credit crunch high value contracts such as the Street Lighting PFI 

contract were re-assessed for their value and to ascertain if costs could be 
reduced. To assist with this evaluation Ernst & Young were commissioned to 
independently review several of the council’s high value contracts. Just prior to 
this commission, officers entered into negotiations with the PFI contractor with a 
view to achieving increased value against the requirements of the contract. Ernst 
& Young confirmed the officers’ approach and outcomes from the negotiation 

Page 76



 

 

process achieved maximum results on behalf of the council.  A Contract 
Modernisation exercise was completed in December 2012, with the additional 
savings detailed in Table 2.0 being recovered by the council over the residual life 
of the contract. 

 
 Table 2.0 – Street Lighting PFI Contract Modernisation 
 

Item Proposal Benefit 
(£000) 

1.0 In accordance with HM Treasury Guidance  

1.1 Modernise the service specification whilst maintaining front line 
services requirements. 

3,780 

1.2 Insurance – annual release of insurance gain share benefits. 573 

2.0 Street Light Renewal Programme  

2.1 Permit PFI partner to manage street light renewal programme on a 
risk managed basis. 

 
 

3.0 Energy Conservation Measures  

3.1 SCC and PFI partner to share inherent energy savings following 
street lighting asset renewal. 

1,032 

3.2 PFI partner to introduce dimming facilities for street lights included in 
the forward renewal plan (circa 26,000 units)  

395 

3.3 PFI partner to retrofit dimming facilities at previously renewed street 
lights (circa 15,000 units) 

2,244 

3.4 Those local communities which support the introduction of part night 
street lights, PFI partner offer to introduce the facility when included 
within the street light renewal programme (circa 3,200 units). 

 
*200 

3.5 Those local communities which support the introduction of part night 
street lights where street lighting renewal has already occurred, PFI 
partner offer to retrofit the facility (circa 3,200 units). 

 
*200 

4.0 Miscellaneous Items  

4.1 PFI partner to paint all columns to be renewed within conservation 
areas. 

176 

4.2 Inventory Management System – system managed by PFI partner 
and procured by the council. Procurement fee refund. 

96 

                                                Total Benefit Over Contract Term *8,296 

 
* Items 3.4 and 3.5 will be subject to a formal request on behalf of local communities and will not be 
imposed by the county council. The take up for part night switching may therefore be lower than the 
figures quoted and have therefore not been included in the ‘Total Benefit Over Contract Term’. 

 
39. The total cumulative savings against each of the relevant headings applied from 

January 2013 to the end of June 2020 are summarised as follows: 
 

a. Modernisation of service specification     £1,781,659 
b. Insurance Savings                                             £429,672 
c. Asset Renewal High Efficiency      1,811,208 kWh/annum* 
d. Asset Renewal Dimming                567,843 kWh/annum* 
e. Retro Fit Dimming                3,829,314 kWh/annum 

     
(*For reference items c and d are subject to an agreed gain share mechanism.) 

 

40. Converting the energy savings per annum to a fiscal value generated savings of 
£2.3m over the period April 2013 to June 2020. The total savings to the end of 
June 2020 because of the contract modernisation is £4.5m. 

Page 77



 

 

 
LED Investment Programme 

 
41. As part of the Contract Modernisation the core specification was amended so 

the authority could benefit from the rapidly advancing LED street lighting market. 
Since January 2013 the price of LED street lights has gradually declined and is 
now the standard product to be procured for illuminating the highway network. As 
a consequence of market changes, we now have over 15,000 energy saving LED 
luminaires installed across the highway network. This is great news; however, with 
ever increasing energy prices and a more than acceptable payback period against 
investments, it was recommended that an Invest to Save approach be considered 
to replace as many energy inefficient street lights without compromising the 
overarching benefits of the PFI contract.  

 
42. Preliminary assessments indicated that we could convert approximately 36,000 

existing street lights over to energy efficient LED lanterns for a cost approaching 
£10m. This level of investment would recover energy savings of £1m per annum. 
The £10m investment loan would in addition incur interest charges. 

 
43. The above figures determined incorporation into the corporate MTFS savings 

strategy and established the project as an Invest to Save deliverable project. 
 
44. Further detailed assessment was undertaken of the street lighting inventory to 

establish a clearly defined programme of investment. In addition, the organisation 
known as Salix was approached to look at funding opportunities. Salix provides 
interest-free Government funding to the public sector to improve their energy 
efficiency. 

 
45. Following an in-depth review of the street lighting inventory with the PFI contractor 

and the submission of a detailed business case to Salix the authority has secured 
an interest free loan of £8.8m to convert over 47,000 street lights to energy 
efficient LED lanterns, generating energy savings of £1.6m per annum. 
 

46. To implement the LED invest to save initiative requires formal agreement with the 
PFI Contractor (Lighting for Staffordshire Ltd). Unfortunately, this process has 
taken longer than originally anticipated due to the need to embed the arrangement 
within the PFI contract. The current status of the contractual change requirements 
is finally approaching completion and works are planned to commence Nov / Dec 
2020 against a 4-year delivery programme. 

 
Energy Procurement 

 
47. Energy for highway electrical assets is currently procured through the 

procurement organisation Crown Commercial Services via a framework contract 
for Energy Supply and Ancillary Services. Electricity volumes are procured in 
advance from the wholesale market using experienced traders who monitor the 
energy market. Crown Commercial Services  consistently achieve below average 
market energy costs due to their procurement strategy.  

 

Page 78



 

 

48. In October 2019 all highway electricity supply arrangements were converted to 
renewable energy supplies resulting with zero carbon emissions from this date. 
Prior to this arrangement the Councils emissions for street lighting assets 
generated circa. 8,000 tCO2 per annum.  

 
Link to Strategic Plan  

 
49. Infrastructure+ is aligned to ‘Leading for a Connected Staffordshire’ as set out in 

Appendix 1. 
 

Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 

50. Highways Infrastructure Asset Management Plan (HIAMP) 
 

List of Background Documents/Appendices:  
 

Appendix 1 – Infrastructure Plus Outcomes 2020 
Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Plus Performance Management Roadmap 
Appendix 3 – Infrastructure Plus Performance Report July 2020 
Appendix 4 – Lighting for Staffordshire Progress Report 206 June 2020 
Appendix 5 – Lighting for Staffordshire Annual Service Report 2018/19 
 

Contact Details 
 
Report Author:   James Bailey 
Job Title:    Assistant Director for Highways and the Built County  
Telephone No.:   01785 276591  
E-Mail Address:   james.bailey@staffordshire.gov.uk   

Page 79

mailto:james.bailey@staffordshire.gov.uk




 

 Page 1 of 1 

Appendix 1 – Infrastructure Plus Outcomes 2020 
 
 
Staffordshire County Council 
 
“A connected Staffordshire where everyone has the opportunity to prosper, be healthy 
and happy”  
 
More good jobs - Positive impact on jobs and growth - increased value and prosperity 

 Enable developments through new infrastructure 

 Improve network availability 

 Increase opportunities for Staffordshire residents and businesses 

 Support economic recovery from COVID19 

Healthier and more independent - Everyone in Staffordshire has a great start to life and 
can live and age well 

 Keep the network in good condition  

 The public realm is improved and enhanced 

 Build community resilience 

 Enable healthier and sustainable travel options 

Happier and safer - Customer focused – enhancing public engagement and satisfaction 

 Keep the network safe for all users 

 Improve resident engagement  

 Improve customer satisfaction in Staffordshire County Council and to enhance its 

reputation 

 More free flowing network 

A sustainable and successful partnership  

 Taking action to tackle climate change 

 Ensuring that we keep people safe from harm and empower everyone to deliver and 
grow 

 Innovating, collaborating and sharing knowledge and best practice adapting to the 
changing needs of the operating environment 

 To reduce the cost of delivering infrastructure services to reach the lowest whole life 
cost of asset ownership 

 

 

 climate change and supporting economic recovery. 

 
 
 

 

Page 81





Appendices

· Performance Packs

Strategic Partnership Board Operational Commissioning Board Delivery Project Teams Outcome Groups

Partnership Summary Scorecard (A4)
Overall Partnership Score & Monthly Summary Score 

for each Performance Pack

Partnership Summary Report

· Overview of overall partnership performance
· Summary of performance in each area (one 

paragraph each by performance pack)
· Summary to highlight good performance, areas 

for improvement where action already taken 
and, areas for improvement requiring decision 
by SPB

DPT Summary Report

· Overview of each service area performance 
Service (or Outcome) Performance Pack 
Scorecard

· Summary of performance by Service (or 
Outcome) scorecard

· Summary to highlight good performance, areas 
for improvement where action already taken 
and, areas for improvement requiring decision 
by OCB

Appendices

· Service Summary Scorecard
· Performance Packs

Quarterly Monthly Monthly Varying

A Performance Pack consists of a number of service 
activities grouped together covering a particular service 
activity or, group of service activities

Performance Packs developed include
Asset Management
Network Management and Inspections
Reactive Maintenance
Staffing – Government
Staffing – Consulting
Health and Safety

Other packs under development/to be developed
Quality
Environment
Social Value
Customer
Financial
Winter Service

Performance Pack

Service (or Outcome) 
Performance Pack Scorecard

Activity (or Outcome) Scorecard

Each Performance Pack contains a number of 
Activity Scorecards containing varying 
numbers of Operational Performance 

Indicators (OPI)

These OPI’s are combined to create an Activity 
Score

Activity Scores are combined to create a 
Service (or Outcome) Performance Pack and 

Score. Performance Packs are generally aligned 
to a Delivery Project Team or Outcome Group 

Service (or Outcome) Balanced Scorecard 
Score

Activity Score

Service (or Outcome) Performance Pack Scorecard
Service (or Outcome) Performance Pack Scorecard for 

all activities/groups

Activity Scorecard
Service Performance Pack Scorecards and Activity 

Scorecards for areas of activity covered by DPT

Outcome Scorecard
Outcome Performance Pack Scorecards and Outcome 
Scorecards for areas of activity covered by Outcome 

Group

P
age 83





 

 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE+ 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER  7 DATE 7th July 2020 

TITLE OF ACCOMPANYING PAPER Performance report – OCB Commentary &  

Performance Scorecards 7_1 to 7_9 

1. DECISION / APPROVAL REQUIRED -   

This report provides confirmation from the Operational Commissioning Board that across the suite of 
performance measures there is enough confidence that performance is either acceptable or where 
not, that sufficient focus is being given to improvement actions. 

2. BACKGROUND / CONTEXT  

Each month, the Delivery Partnership Boards (DPT) for the various I+ activities meet and review the 
performance of each service area and collaboratively work together on delivering improvement. Each 
month, the Operational Commissioning Board (OCB) receives a performance presentation from one 
of the DPT’s arranged on a month to month cyclical basis. On a quarterly basis, the Strategic 
Partnership Board receive a summary report from OCB of all the performance issues from the DPT’s 
as well as a report on cross cutting partnership themes such as staffing and safety.  
 
 

3. SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE / PROPOSAL FOR DISCUSSION  

Overall the OCB believes that the standard of performance within the partnership is generally good 
but with a few areas that still require improvements. 

Areas where performance is good or improving: 

• Response to emergency, Cat 1 and Cat 2 defects 

• Arresting of the rate footway / carriageway defect backlog accumulation  

• Construction scheme delivery 

• Construction outturn cost against target cost 

• Gully Emptying 

• Highway Safety Inspections 

• Structures General Inspections 

• Recycling of highways waste material 

• Health and safety management 

• Delivery of ‘social value’ issues (not well evidenced in the KPI reports) 

• Utility and Safety inspection programme compliance. 

• Claim’s management. 

• Quality and Safety Inspection regime 

 

 

 

Page 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. WIDER IMPLICATIONS THAT MAY NEED CONSIDERATION. 

Staffordshire County Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and additional capital 
allocation may have implications for the Infrastructure+ contract. 

5. RECOMMENDATION BEING MADE TO THE BOARD : It is recommended that : 

(a) The Board notes and discusses the performance commentary and summary of performance 
provided by the Operational Commissioning Board (OCB) 

(b) That the Board approves the recommendation from the Operational Commissioning Board that 
although there are areas for performance improvement, on the whole, performance of the 
partnership is currently acceptable. Consequently, any new Best Value reports on the allocation 
of capital schemes should be considered on their individual merits on a case by case basis. 

6. CONTACT DETAILS: - Richard Harris 

Page 86



 

 

OCB Performance commentary 

1. Improvement Plan 

Implementation of Well Managed Highway Infrastructure 2016  

The project is underway, Highway Infrastructure Policy and Strategy drafted and considered by 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee on 20th June 2019. Cabinet considered at the August 

meeting and recommended to delegate approval of supporting plans and policies to Director of 

Economy Infrastructure and Skills in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways & 

Transport. 

 Business Case’s 

• Highway Third Party Claims - review of risk and liability including delivery mechanisms – 

Review has commenced through the finance committee.  

• Maintenance management tracker and reporting – ongoing, regular reporting to Cabinet 

Member, which includes pothole, drainage and surface dressing dashboards. 

• Develop and implement a Communication Strategy, roadmap and plan – Work continues the 

creation of a strategic Customer Experience Strategy & Engagement Plan, informed by 

insight from the NHT and Members’ Survey.  Specific progress has been made in identified 

Customer Outcome Group priorities such as providing information and programmes of work 

in a digital format and streamlining the report-it process.   

• Business Case - review of asset management from strategic role to life cycle planning and 

delivery mechanisms – to be commenced 2020 

• The permit scheme has had final approval from cabinet and the associated order has been 

sealed on 31st March 2020. Staffordshire has been a permitting Authority since Wednesday 

1st April 2020. 

• Streetmanager has been extensively tested with both internal and external users and 

Staffordshire are ready for transition on the 1st July 2020. Following go live testing has been 

agreed with HS2 to allow for schedule 4 applications to be submitted via Streetmanager in 

future, streamlining the administrative process in managing these applications 

• Charging for permits commenced on the 4th May 2020, first month permit value totalled 

£80,287.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



 

 

Operational Performance 

2. Health &Safety, Environmental and Quality (HSEQ) 

Staffordshire continues to be a safe and proactive account.  On a 12 month rolling score, the Amey 

employee injury rate per 100 people is 0.00 (-100%). The all injury rate on the account (including 

supply chain) per 100 people is 0.42.  

 

In January 2020, the account suffered a RIDDOR.  The injured person returned to work 10 working 

days after the incident and returned to normal working duties.  The injury, which was caused when 

the Injured Person (IP) reached into a Slurry mixing machine to remove a blockage.  The machine 

was still operational and the IP’s index finger came into contact with the mixing paddles.  The 

incident led to the amputation of the IP’s index finger above the first knuckle.      

Any action logged in the system used to record health and safety issues (AIRSWeb) has a target 

close out date. The action close out rate is 94% for the Staffordshire account.  Visible Felt 

Leadership (VFL) have been put on hold due to Covid-19.  

The table below shows comparative injury statistics for the Staffordshire account over the past 6 

years.  The account has seen considerable growth over that period, resulting in turnover increasing 

from £40m to £70m (2019).  During 2019 the SMT worked tirelessly to improve the accounts close 

call reporting rate and employee engagement and this led to a 24% increase in our close call 

reporting from that in 2018.  Despite Covid-19 we continue to see healthy close call numbers; 

however, trend analysis suggests an upturn in the number of traffic incursions and personal threats 

to our workforce.  Body and dash cams are in use and footage is being reported to the Police.  Cllr 

Helen Fisher has agreed to take this up with the Police and Crime Commissioner and has requested 

footage.    

 

Year 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019  2020 (inc 

May) 

Total Injuries 18 10 15 17 3 5 

RIDDOR 1 0 1 1 0 1 

LTI’s 0 0 1 0 1 0 

NTLI’s 17 10 13 16 2 4 

Total Close 

Calls 

903 987 1319 1912 2374 1150 

 

Page 88



 

 

Quality Management 

The aggregated score for the Quality pack is +4 March, +5 April, May +4 on a range of -9 to +9.  

Quality and safety Inspections continue to exceed the agreed schedule (with ‘work in progress’ 

scores regularly achieving 4.8/5 (Stretch target 4.5). 

The graph on the left below shows the number of quality inspections undertaken during the last 

three months along with any associated non-conformities.  Inspections are undertaken across the 

range of services including Routine & Reactive, Inspections, structural and preventative 

maintenance.  Our Construction sites have bespoke quality and inspection schedules based on the 

activities being undertaken.   

Even throughout Covid-19, It is encouraging that the number of required inspections undertaken is 

above that required (35).  A non-conformity register is maintained by our Quality Manager and 

details the failing, corrective action and preventative action so we can undertake lessons learnt 

discussions.  It also enables us to target inspections were failures have been identified.   

The graph on the right shows the thematic audits completed on contract.  No audits were 

undertaken in April and May due to Covid-19.  Our thematic audits target specific areas of concern 

or routine activities and we again track major, minor or opportunities for improvement through a non-

conformance register.  Audits that have been undertaken this year include: 

• All Depots - Night Working / Lone Working / Call out Processes / Winter Maintenance  

• Lichfield Depot – COSHH 

• OCR – Routine & Reactive Operations 

• All Depots – Training Records 

• Gailey Depot - Environmental Review / Inspection (Desktop) 

• Stone Depot - Environmental Review / Inspection (Desktop) 

• Supplier Training Records  
 

    

At the beginning of June, the account welcomed BSI for a National Highways Sector Scheme 16 
(Laying of Asphalt Mixes) audit.  The audit was undertaken via Teams which proved to be a 
challenge but with only 1 OFI a success.  We welcome BSI back to the account on July 10th for an 
ISO9001/14001 Audit.    

We are currently reviewing the quality scorecard following the introduction of Confirm Workzone and 
expect to make changes to the type of information presented.  Between March and May over 300 
audits were undertaken which focused on the use of the new handheld devices.  Although the 
accuracy of data input is better further training has been identified for the operational staff.     

Areas of focus over the coming month will be on site preparation ahead of surface dressing 
following several concerns highlighted by the partnership’s compliance officer.  A review is currently 
underway with findings expected to be reported back to the relevant DPT in July. 

 

Page 89



 

 

3. Operational performance 

Road condition indicators:  

The latest set of condition indicators for road condition (carriageway) relate to surveys carried out on 
the network in 2019 for reporting 2019/20. The headline figures are above the performance 
predictions expected based on current funding and which had predicted a managed decline across 
all road classes. Whilst condition still declined across ‘A’ and ‘B’ roads, the condition of ‘C’ and ‘U’ 
roads has improved. 

The actual performance for the percentage of roads requiring the immediate planning for major 
maintenance (Red) are ‘A’ roads = 3.0% (2018/19 = 2.8%), ‘B’ Roads = 4.2% (2018/19 = 3.9%), ‘C’ 
Roads = 8.3% (2018/19 = 9.0%) (B/C combined = 7% (2018/19 = 8%) and ‘U’ roads = 10.3% 
(2018/19 = 11.8%). 

Whilst this is testament to our asset management experience and capabilities and the use of 
innovative preventative surface treatments, the underlying condition of the network remains 
challenging. For example, roads requiring major maintenance i.e. structural maintenance will 
continue to deteriorate and will lead to an increasing number of safety defects that will place 
additional demands on the reactive maintenance service. Whilst ‘A’ and ‘B’ roads make up the 
smaller part of the network (Circ.1,000kms/20% of the total network), they carry the most traffic, 
much of it heavier and are the most expensive to maintain. 

In the 2020 national budget, postponed from October 2019 due to Brexit and the General Election, 
an additional funding allocation of £2.5 billion for local roads highway authorities was announced. 
This additional funding is divided equally over 5 year beginning this year and equates to an 
additional £11.141m per year for Staffordshire. This was included in the highway investment report 
approved by Cabinet in April. In May, the DfT made a further allocation to authorities, made up of 
Challenge fund finance (allocated in accordance with formula funding due to Covid-19 rather than 
on a bid basis) and the last year of a pothole action fund. This equated to further additional finance 
of £3.14m being allocated to Staffordshire for this year only. 

The above additional allocations of finance have been programmed (£11.140m) and tentatively 
programmed (£3.14m, awaiting formal sign off by the Cabinet member as at 19th June) and include 
additional structural carriageway and footway works. This, along with our preventative maintenance 
programme for 2020 onwards will contribute towards us achieving a steady state in the condition of 
the network if the level of capital finance directed to reactive activities can be controlled. 

The autumn Comprehensive Spending Review will determine the level of standard formula ‘block’ 
funding for authorities for the next 5 years beginning 2021/22. 

 

 Implementation of Confirm Workzone 

Workzone has now been implemented and has enabled: 

• improved customer feedback (amazon experience). Trial currently underway with one 
CHEO.  The new automated feedback will advise the customer when works are planned, 
started on site, fail to start providing reason, i.e. parked vehicle obstruction, completed, 
require further works to be scheduled, or third-party works are required. The OCR are 
currently monitoring quality and the reliability of information and will be rolled out across 
further work types and areas following the trial.   
 

• automation of stats – reducing workload as confirm Workzone triggers the automatic request 
of stats, also improving safety, as it’s no longer manual and reduces opportunity for human 
error 
 

• additional daily reporting, including SOR items completed with change variation identified. 
Realtime map update of complete jobs and gang whereabouts. Realtime map update of 
planned work in the next 48 hrs to assist in identifying issues. Work report of everything on 
the gangs for the following day to ensure stock levels. 

 

Page 90



 

 

• automated identification of collaborative opportunities. A desktop has been created and is 

being rolled out to schedulers. Identifies when outstanding works are within the scope of 

planned utility closures to allow for utilisation of planned TM, saving TM costs and reducing 

impact on the network. The desktop has already identified seven potential jobs that could be 

co-ordinated within a planned STW closure.  Workzone allows direct access to permit details 

and TM plans to review extents of planned closures and assess viability. 

• improved photos from site, allowing quicker identification of correct defect on site for 
operatives, will support claims in the defence of section 58, and support recharges to 
validate the work / cost being recharged. Will enable desktop post completion quality and 
permit compliance checks  
 
Quality of old images (actual size) 

 

Example of new images 

 

 

 Routine Maintenance, Reactive & Cyclical Performance Pack  

 

Overall Aggregated Score: The overall aggregated score for Routine, reactive and Cyclical 
maintenance trended positively throughout the entire 2019 calendar year and this has continued 
thus far in 2020 for year to date, as at the end of May.  

 
Reactive Maintenance Performance 
 
Reactive maintenance also trended positively throughout the entire 2019 calendar year and again 
this has continued thus far into 2020. 

 

Page 91



 

 

Performance targets for high risk defects (Emergency, Cat1, and Cat 2) continue to be routinely 
monitored and completion within associated timescales remains very good.  

            High Risk Defect Performance in May 2020 were as follows:-  

70 Emergencies completed of which 100% were delivered on time 

24 Cat 1's completed of which 100% were delivered on time    

440 Cat 2's completed of which 95.6% were delivered on time 

 

            Workstack:  

As we commenced the new financial year, in April the overall workstack stood at 12’440 and in May 
this number stood at 13’118. We have seen an increase in identified defects during the latter part of 
2019 and in the early part of 2020 due to accelerated network deterioration from freeze-thaw of 
saturated network during the winter period. 

Additional funding into patching and drainage activities has continued in the 2020-21 financial year 
and this additional investment is being tracked.  

 

Cyclical Maintenance / Tree Maintenance 

Grass Cutting & Weed Treatment : With regard to cyclical maintenance (grass & weeds) levels of 
service have reduced for the 2020 growing season, as part of MTFS savings the funding of Urban 
grass has been reduced to 6no cuts during the growing season and weed treatment has been 
reduced to 1no treatment during the growing season (June-August). The weed treatment 
commenced in June and will run through to August and the urban grass is currently on its second 
cut of the season. Rural grass levels of service remain unchanged to last season.  

Trees: with regard to expediting tree asset collection, Amey approached and meetings were held 
with ‘Gaist’, ‘Carbontech’ and ‘Bluesky’. Following a discussion, it was felt that ‘Bluesky’ offered a 
cost effective and quick solution and indicative associated costs and contacts were passed to SCC 
to progress. SCC have further investigated wider tree stock capability and not just highways trees 
and are in discussion with current users of ‘BlueSky’ data. It is envisaged an order will be raised 
with ‘BlueSky’ late June/early July.  

Performance relating to dealing with high risk tree defects remains very good, with 100% completed 
on time in May 20. 

           Gully Emptying: 

Gully emptying performance was of a good standard throughout 2019 and we have continued to 
trend positively year to date in 2020.  

Productivity and adherence to programme was continuously hindered by numerous severe wet 
weather events in 2019 and early 2020 due to the associated increased volume of high-risk reactive 
flooding attendance. Further flash flooding events have also been experienced in June 20. Due to 
the above factors adherence to the communicated annual programme, which is approximately 
82’000 gullies, is currently at 92.5%. We are endeavouring to pull this back through the summer 
months with the more favourable weather. 

The DPT have made some changes to the scorecard for the 2020 financial year, measures include: 

• How many of visited gullies are emptied - this ensures we are getting planning correct in 
terms of; Traffic Management, Parked Cars, Existing Lid Jammed removed prior to visit, to 
ensure vehicles are spending as much time as possible emptying  

• How many gullies are left defect free - this will give greater asset condition and greater 
control of follow up works. Related drainage runs are now also being captured in Confirm 
which will aid resolution for future issues. 

 

 

Page 92



 

 

Winter Service 

The winter service budget for the 2019-20 season was set at £2.98M this included all winter related 
activity both Amey & SCC, it also included a £50k MTFS saving relating to grit bin provision and 
refilling for the 19-20 season. 

From comparison with previous years treatment and out-turns in Feb 2020 we predicted a final out-
turn of in the region of £3.2m, the actual final out-turn was 276k above allocated budget at £3.256m. 

In light of the allocated budget being consistently exceeded when an ‘average’ winter is experienced 
an ongoing in-depth review is being conducted of the entire service. Alongside this service review a 
risk rated gap analysis is being conducted against NWSRG best practice guidance and any 
potential budgetary implications. 

 

 

Performance: 
 
In 2020 the scores for the final two months of winter service season were +2 for March and +3 for 
April. Despite Covid 19 lockdown we managed to get the end of season survey measures of salt 
piles completed in late March/early April.  Summer re-stock is to be arranged for July/August 2020 
to take advantage of the ‘summer salt’ prices. 
 
Service Delivery – The 2019-20 winter season delivery mechanism remained unchanged both in 
terms of; the treated network/ treatment criteria and the operation of a night shift with the exclusion 
of the Northern operational depots. As detailed above a full review of the Winter Service provision is 
ongoing to explore any potential areas of improvement and further VFM. Following which if it is not 
felt that the current level of service can be delivered within the available budget an options paper 
will be produced for consideration of OCB/SPB. It is envisaged this paper will be complete by mid-
July for consideration.  

 
Forecast Provision – MetDesk continued to provide forecasts for the 2019-20 winter season. The 
2019-20 season appears to have been difficult from a forecasting perspective, forecasts have 
always been provided on time, but they have been variable, particularly the longer term 2-5 day 
forecast where we have often seen considerable change on a daily basis. This has made 
programming of other works challenging during milder periods. The contractual period with Metdesk 
ends in 2022 and Vaisala ends April 2021. 
 
Salt Stocks – summer restock is planned as stated above and SCC are currently awaiting ‘ESPO’ 
salt prices from compass minerals following re-procurement. Early indications are that salt prices 
will increase putting additional pressure on the available budget. 

Page 93



 

 

Grit Bins – A 50K MTFS saving was identified and implemented through grit bin provision for the 
2019-20 season, lower risk bins (approx. 500) received an initial fill only. Re filling exercises are 
captured in confirm, which provides greater asset understanding; bin condition, level of salt on 
arrival, bins prone to needles/litter/dog fouling etc. With the relatively mild winter in terms of snow 
events, only one complete filling operation was carried out during the 2019-20 season. Additional 
bins have come to light during this season which will be assessed and plotted in Confirm during the 
2020-21 off season. Grit bin provision will be considered as part of the overall service review. 
 
Fleet – With regard to the new fleet for the 2019-20 season, there were some minor teething 
problems with the new technology which required repairs by the provider Schmidt and caused some 
issues with vehicle availability at times in the season but these on the whole were resolved. For the 
2020-21 season 10 no gritters required replacement, indicative costs were provided by CFC 
(MAN/Schmidt 18Tonne Automatic Gritting Vehicle @ £22,243pa) which offered a service cost 
saving of approx. 30k (old fleet 25’198pa), the DPT have discussed and instructed CFC to proceed 
with procurement of these vehicles. The next replacement is then 1no vehicle in 2023.  

 

Network Management and Inspections 

Finance 

Administration Charges for Licences: On profile for year to date. 

Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders: TTRO’s are charged upon approval so invoicing is up to date. 

Sample Inspection Income: Sample inspections have been agreed for 20/21, with a total agreed 
value of £245,850 (Total value of inspections 19/20 = £244,500). First quarter invoices due to be 
sent early July. 

FPN’s: Since permitting go live 183 FPN’s have been issued with a minimum value of £14,640 if 
paid at discounted rate.  
 
Section 74: £71,850 on the account in writing which is still to be agreed fully with the utilities.  
 

Performance: 

With regard to the scorecard, performance continues to be very good and trend positively with +7  
achieved in March, +9 April and +8 in May.   

Good Performance is summarised below: 

Highway Safety Inspections – Percentage of inspections delivered to target continues to be of a 
high standard 100%. 

Sample Inspections – Utility sample inspections on profile for year to date. Sample inspections for 
permitted highways works (cat a only) have started, cat b inspections to be undertaken from 
beginning of October 2020. 

Highway Reactive Inspections – Due to numerous severe weather events in the early months of 
2020, the number of reactive inspection enquiries received had increased hugely compared with 
previous years. As detailed below we received a 1/3 of total enquiries received in the whole of 
previous years in the first 2 months of 2020. As this is a static team in terms of numbers, 
accordingly response times increased. However, these numbers have been managed down since 
Feb and the current total outstanding enquiries stands at approx. 2300 as at end of June 2020. 
Trend analysis detailed below. 

 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

January  2063 3446 2785 4484 2253 4595 

February  2185 3255 3992 4501 2308 5291 

March  2495 3174 4770 5704 2997 3594 

April  2128 2850 2058 4941 2030 1046 

Page 94



 

 

May  2007 2341 2118 2927 2617 1574 

June  2389 3323 2232 3018 3171  
July  2277 2744 2204 2499 3143  
August  1796 2189 2221 2151 2939  
September  1695 2384 1596 2091 2645  
October 2432 1501 1885 1746 2132 2991  
November 1967 1894 2075 1780 1798 2944  
December 1570 1877 1282 3166 1721 3264  
Annual Totals 5969 24307 30948 30668 37967 33302  
Ave Per Month 1990 2026 2579 2556 3164 2775  

 

Utility Performance: Regular Quality and Performance Meetings have now been established with 
the top six Utility Companies.  Virgin, BT, STW and Cadent have now provided action plans to 
improve their performance. Coring failures are still common across all utility companies which is 
highlighted during the meeting. We are still pushing all utilities to get their respective back log of 
defects reduced. 

 
Permitting Scheme: The permit scheme has had final approval from cabinet and the associated 

order was sealed on 31st March 2020. Staffordshire has been a permitting Authority since 

Wednesday 1st April 2020. 

Claim Management 

Lockdown has seen a reduction in overall claims, property damage claims have reduced but an 
increase in personal injury claims has been seen. Total claims, year to date 1129. Due to the 
reduction in overall claims resources have focused on recharges, 264 invoices raised year to date 
totalling £163,783. Over £20K settled within the first month. 

Improvements in the processes, training and awareness has seen our repudiation rates increase 

from 58% in 2016/17 to 76% in 2017/18 and improving in following years. Settlement values have 

seen a significant decrease from £746k in 2016/17 to £382k in 2017/18. Further meetings have 

been held with SCC Legal team who support the Claims team end to end management of 

Recharges. This process has now been finalised and the claims team are managing the end to end 

process. This will see a higher success rate in recharge settlements which currently stand at less 

than 30%. Work is ongoing with SCC Debt recovery team to receive full system data to enable 

accurate reporting. Progress in the enforcement process is now on old until further notice. 

The online claim form is now live and proving successful. Work is in progress to improve the status 

updates so that we are able to auto update claimants, saving administration time responding to 

claimants’ queries and providing improved claim status information to claimants. 

 

Capital Programme Progress 

Major schemes 

Whilst all projects have experienced challenges associated with the Covid-19 pandemic, the site 
teams have worked tirelessly to maintain works throughout the last three months to mitigate the 
impact on delivery timescales and finances. 

Stafford Western Access Route 

The Stafford Western Access Route works commenced on 29th July with the piling works 
commencing in early September for an 8-month period. The primary impact of Covid-19 was that 
the sub-contractor (Lowry) suspended piling works for approx. 2 weeks due to challenges in 
operative transport (from NI) and accommodation. The pre-cast driven piling was substantially 

Page 95



 

 

complete on 15th May; however, remedial works commence on 29th June for a period of approx. 3 
weeks to address a quality issue with a small number of the piles installed. Bored piling to the west 
of the river is complete and is well progressed within the retail park area with completion 
programmed for mid-July. 

The demolition of the former Saint Gobain units commenced in mid-November and was completed 
in March. The demolition arisings are being recycled to form the embankments including the safe 
encapsulation of asbestos arisings to avoid significant disposal costs. The project is also utilising 
approx. 3,000 tonnes of the contaminated planings stockpiled at the Meece depot that will 
considerably reduce this financial liability (c.£300k net saving).   

The financial impact of Covid-19 was initially forecast to be c.£1.4m; however, the effect has been 
less significant than initially anticipated and the project team are in the process of refining this 
estimate. 

 

Lichfield Southern Bypass 

The construction of the Lichfield Southern Bypass Phase 4 rail underbridge commenced on 25th 
February. The project budget has been constrained from the outset of the project and it has been 
agreed with SCC Finance that the contingencies for SWAR & LSB will be managed across the two 
projects. The project is currently forecasting a £710k overspend with £500k of funds identified. 

The railway bridge deck was successfully manoeuvred into position during a Christmas possession. 
Earthworks adjacent to and below the bridge, to enable construction of the road, are now 
substantially complete. Piling work below and adjacent to the bridge deck is complete and the 
retaining walls are now being constructed on these foundations. The publicly funded underbridge 
phase is due to be completed in early August. 

The remaining length of Lichfield Southern Bypass, between the rail underbridge and A51 London 
Road, is funded by Persimmon and Amey have completed the detailed design on their behalf. 
Planning consent was granted by Lichfield District Council in early September 2019 and subject to 
the signing of the Section 278 (terms and costs now agreed), works will commence on site in mid-
July. 

The most significant Covid-19 impact is the programme delay to the commencement of the privately 
funded section (spine road) which was programmed to start in early May prior to the pandemic. The 
cost impact of this is the lost opportunity to share prelim costs for the underbridge project (approx. 
£150-200k). There is also a financial impact of reduced productivity resulting from Covid-compliant 
methods of working which is currently being assessed. 

 

West Midlands Designer Outlet Village 

The construction phase of the s278 works at the Development Access and Churchbridge Island, 
associated with the £180m Designer Outlet Village in Cannock, commenced in early November 
2018. The works were designed by Amey Consulting and are being delivered by Amey Highways. 
They comprise the construction of a new curved underpass beneath the A460 and construction of 
additional lanes to increase capacity at the busy Churchbridge gyratory. The Churchbridge works 
were completed on programme at the end of November 2019. The planned completion of the 
Development Access is programmed for 29th June 2020. 

 

i54 Western Extension 

Amey Consulting were commissioned by the i54 Joint Venture Partners (SCC, SSDC and WCC) to 
provide Project Management and design services for the i54 Western Extension Project. The Phase 
1 works to construct the new access road were completed ahead of programme on 13th March 
2020.  

To maintain continuity on site, elements of the Phase 2 works to form the development plateau have 
been accelerated including compound relocation, topsoil disposal and an excavation/ compaction 
trial. These works are due to be complete in mid-July. 

Page 96



 

 

Cabinet ratified the award of the Phase 2 contract to Amey Transport Infrastructure (TI) at their 
meeting on 15th April. The Phase 2 contract was signed on 23rd June with an agreed Target Price of 
£10.06m. The works are programmed to be complete in mid-July 2021. 

 
Integrated Transport & Divisional Highways Programme 
 
Integrated Transport: 
 
Design and implementation of the 2020/21 IT programme has commenced following the approval of 
the Cabinet report in April 2020.  The IT programme, as per the Cabinet report, has started with an 
over commitment of £179k, however each year there are charges against historic codes which don’t 
have a specified budget (carry-forward projects).  Over the past few years the average of these has 
been £310k. Taking this into account, the current programme forecast overspend would be more 
like £489k.  This will be monitored closely, with frequent liaison with SCC to agree projects to be 
delayed and potentially delivered next financial year.  
 
Meetings have been undertaken with all of the SCIM’s to discuss the programme in detail and 
ensure the scope of schemes is understood. 
 
The whole programme has also been RAG rated for potential requirements for TRO’s, SU 
apparatus diversions, land acquisition, street lighting design, road closures during construction and 
the effects of COVID-19. 
 
A further review of the programme has been undertaken with SCC to understand the implications of 
COVID-19 on:- 

• Collection of required traffic data and its validity in the current situation. 

• Public meetings/drop-in engagement events being on hold and alternative methods 
of consultation. 

• Effect on schemes justified on traffic volume (potential permanent decrease) or air 
quality (potential permanent improvement). 

• The TRO process, for which new interim guidance has been produced by the DfT 
and now implemented. 
 

This review will be ongoing, and it is likely to result in the advancing of active mode related schemes 
in the programme and others adversely affected by the list above being pushed out in the 
programme until the issues can be addressed. 
 
There has also been discussion on whether town centre improvement schemes, notably Uttoxeter, 
are to be undertaken now in order to facilitate economic recovery or put on hold to avoid disruption.  
We will ensure that political representatives are party to such decisions to provide accountability. 
 
Connectivity Strategy (led by Annabel Chell) are currently applying for additional funding via the 
LEP who are promoting to accelerate the delivery of shovel-ready capital projects which can be 
delivered within 18 months (20/21 – 21/22) that have the objective of driving economic growth and 
jobs and supporting green recovery. SCC/Amey have submitted a funding application comprising six 
sustainable transport schemes that are in this year’s capital programme that require additional funds 
to be delivered but have already been designed and costed. The LEP will establish a ‘long list’ from 
all such applications that they will assess and recommend to HCLG. 
 
 
Divisional Highways Programme 

 
As above for IT, meetings have been undertaken with all of the SCIM’s to discuss the DHP’s in 
detail and ensure the schemes scope is understood.  An internal meeting is also programmed to 
RAG rate the DHP’s in a similar manner to the IT schemes.  Any DHP scheme that proposes on-
street parking, guardrails or other constraint to the free movement of pedestrians is to be reviewed 
against the requirements to maintain social distancing. 
 

Page 97



 

 

For 2020/21 the DHP allocation for each member has been set at £10k, but this is not ringfenced to 
Integrated Transport and can be used for a specific maintenance issue.  We are now undertaking a 
more frequent review of DHP schemes and costs and have implemented a DHP design cost tracker 
to identify any potential issue as early as possible. 
 
The team undertook an exercise to plan and implement the temporary traffic management 
arrangements required to facilitate the reopening of the Household Waste Recycling Centres in a 
very short timescale. 
The team are now also undertaking a similar exercise related the implementation of temporary 
measures to encourage active modes for the Emergency Active Travel Funds initiative. 
 

Third Party Work 

Technical checks continue to be commissioned to the design hub, however there has been a 
noticeable downturn in applications since March attributable to the on-going pandemic and the 
nervousness of the housing sector to commit funds.  We are now seeing (June) that developers are 
re-engaging on existing design checks to focus on starting from August on-wards.  We are still 
utilising additional resource from Birmingham (IDH) and the South East Hub in S278/S111/S7 
design checks.  Dialogue and communication with developers continues to improve to the benefit of 
delivery.  Amey Highways continue to be promoted through the design hub which has led to two 
large construction contracts with Lovell Homes and Bloor Homes, both projects were DCA’s and 
further demonstrates our red carpet ‘one-stop-shop’ approach to developing in Staffordshire.   
 
Large S278’s due to start in the coming months include: 
 
• Taylor Wimpey – Beaconside Widening – July  
• Lovell Homes – Little Tixall – Late July/Early August 
• Bovis Homes – Beggars Bush Lane, Wombourne – September 
• Blythe Business Park – September/October  
 
The partnership has secured several high profile DCA’s for Taylor Wimpey and Bovis/Barrett 
associated with the Stafford North developments.  This has enabled the project team to steer the 
upcoming widening works and begin to take control over the design and delivery of the four S278’s 
in the North of Stafford.  Discussions have also been held with Cannock Chase DC for design work 
and Newcastle BC for structural inspections.  Relationships with developers continue in the main to 
prosper, to the benefit of the partnership.  
 
DCA Financial summary 
 
The high-level summary below shows the total to date DCA value (closed), the credit to SCC and 
the in progress DCA’s.   
 
Whilst the DCA process was being set up the average credit to SCC was 3%.  From July last year 
this is now 5% for all projects.   
 
 

 DCA Value  SCC Credit 

Total to Date 1,932,580.54 57,682.15 

In Progress 628,901 31,445 

Forecast Total 2,561,481.54  89,127.15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



 

 

 Asset Management 
 
Preventative Carriageway Maintenance 

Due to continually reducing budgets, a reduced programme of preventative maintenance, £6.2m 
(2018/19 = £8.2m) was undertaken in 2019. This has been increased to normal investment levels 
for 2020/21, utilising some of the expected and planned for additional finance allocated in the 
national budget on the 11th March.  Our collaborative preventative surface treatments partnering 
sub-contractor has moved into their new management office in Stafford and are planning to move 
their Staffordshire Operations from Cheshire to either a shared depot with ourselves at Yarnfield or 
an individual depot by the 2022 season. The local facilities will allow them to recruit local people 
who can work on the Staffordshire contract and further improve the efficiency and retention of skilled 
people in the industry. Due to the closure of hotels with Covid-19, we worked with our partnering 
sub-contractor to set up an emergency depot at Yarlet to enable them to undertake our programme 
this year. This has included self-contained accommodation units and a catering facility and is 
testament to our continued ISO44001 collaboration. 

The percentage of pre-patching versus the overall site has increased over the early part of this year 
due to the very wet winter period but has now begun to reduce again, ensuring the efficiency of our 
preventative surface treatments continues. This also demonstrates the correct use of innovative and 
semi-structural preventative treatments on sites that would otherwise be uneconomical to treat due 
to required extensive and inefficient pre-patching works. This enables us to achieve an ‘additional’ 
or ‘extended’ whole life cycle providing further efficiency and improvements in the condition of the 
overall network. 

Preventative Footway Maintenance 

The percentage of pre-patching versus the overall site has been below target this year, averaging 
under 10%, following the implementation of a focus on this area facilitated by revised management 
arrangements. The planned versus programme performance has been poor in the year to date due 
to the wet winter weather and the suspension of works earlier in the year due to a safety review 
following a lost time injury accident. However, we are expecting to catch up and this will include an 
innovative semi structural preventative footway treatment this year known as Ecopath. Following our 
highway laboratory tests on a site in Derbyshire, this innovative treatment will be used on sites that 
would otherwise require a high percentage of pre-patching, making them uneconomical for standard 
footway preventative treatments. 

Structural Maintenance Schemes 

Following the report to the councils Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee on the 20th June 
2019, that included deterioration modelled graphs reported from our Horizons asset management 
system, a further report was due to be put before the councils Informal Cabinet in April.  This report 
sets out the required funding to arrest the deterioration of the network and the consequent 
outcomes that can be achieved were the authority to make the required funding available. If 
supported by Informal Cabinet, it would see further additional funding and works on the ground 
begin in 2020/21. Unfortunately, the client has delayed the presentation of the report until later in the 
year and the earliest date for additional council capital funding will therefore be 2021/22. 

As a result of the much quieter roads during lockdown, several structural maintenance schemes 
were brought forward to Q1, minimising the effect of delays on road users as traffic volumes 
increase. The asset management and operations team worked tirelessly to design and plan these 
schemes, some of which were funded from the additional DfT capital funding announced in March 
and should be applauded for their achievements. The allocation of the further additional finance has 
ensured several additional schemes have been programmed for delivery throughout the rest of the 
year. 

The planned duration and 12-month cost accuracy of completed schemes performance remains 
excellent.  

Structures General Inspections (GI’s) are ahead of programme and PROW Inspections will continue 
subject to funding.  

 

Page 99



 

 

 Staffing 
  

The total headcount on contract is 287, with 215 highway staff and 72 Consulting Staff.  Of the 

287staff, 18% are female and 82% male   

The Account is working hard to address the gender balance split at all levels.  It is recognised that 

our current depot facilities do not afford the best conditions for our current operative pool and 

especially female members of staff.  However new female toilets have been installed at Lichfield 

Depot which is a positive move.  Depot minimum standard audits are planned at all current depots 

within the next month.  Our band C pool is rich with talent and the AD is working with HR to ensure 

succession planning is put into place to develop this talent.   

Progress with the planned new super depot at Yarlet, to replace at least Stone and Stafford depots, 

has been slow due to the SCC planning team being directed to Covid-19 duties. However, work has 

recently restarted, and it is planned to bring an outline business case to OCB and SPB later this 

year following further user stakeholder engagement and discussion with Stafford Borough Council 

regarding their potential requirements. 

Recruitment to the agreed new OCR and NMU structures commenced following submission of the 

business case and approval of the associated ATR’s on the 16th January 2020. Following 

advertisement of the roles from the 20th January 2020 for two weeks, interviews for the new 

vacancies started on the 4th February, with offers being made and agreed with all successful 

candidates by the 14th February. 

Across both teams four existing team members where successful in applying for change of role 

(promotion). Seven new members have been recruited to NMU and five new team members to the 

OCR. New starters joined the teams on the 16th March, to allow two weeks prior to go live for 

prestart training. The recent restrictions associated to Covid-19 have seen us successfully switch 

this training and onboarding to online sessions via Microsoft Teams.  The remaining vacancies in 

the OCR and NMU have been approved and are awaiting advertisement.   

The monthly team sickness for Highways is as follows: 

 

The Highways data is above the 3% target for the first five months of the year.  Covid-19 cases are 

contained within the data and an exercise is underway to remove these from the data to provide a 

true and accurate picture of sickness on the account.  In May we had 8 long term sickness cases, 5 

are shielded staff related to Covid-19.  The remainder are being managed in line with the Amey HR 

polices. 

Page 100



 

 

 

The Consulting data is below the 3% target for the first five months of 2020 with no long-term 

sickness cases.   

Developing our people - Talent 

 

• Apprentices – we currently have 23 members of the team on Talent Tracker.  14 members 

of the team are enrolled on course’s funded through the apprenticeship levy.  We also have 

3 apprentices on the Stafford contract, 2 in Highways and 1 in Consulting.  We had planned 

to recruit a further 10 during Q1 2020, however this has been put on hold due to Convid-19.  

We have established mentors as managers to support the development of these key roles 

and will be part of the succession plans for the account.  Key focus on skills, knowledge, 

experience and behaviours need to progress through various roles on the account.  

• Graduates – we currently have 8 Graduates on the Stafford contract, 3 within the design 

team and 5 operational.  We had planned to recruit a further 2 in Q1 2020, however this was 

put on hold due to Covid-19.  The Environmental Graduate role has been advertised with 

over 80 applications.  A sifting process is currently underway with interviews scheduled for 

July 2020.  The chart below shows the current Highways Talent Pool.    

 

 
  

• ICE Training Agreement – Our Consulting team currently have 11 members of the team 

enrolled on ICE training agreements.  

Engaging our staff 

• Employee Survey and results – we have received the results of our 2019 Employee 

survey, which showed a 95% response rate.  We are sharing the key results of this 

survey – the highlights of which are: 

• Amey takes health and safety in the workplace seriously – 96% 

• My manager trusts me to get on with my job – 95% 

• I feel empowered to speak up if I see anything potentially unsafe in the workplace 
– 93% 

• My team never compromises health and safety to get the job done – 92% 
 

The engagement plan has been shared with all staff and any actions monitored via the SMT team 

meeting.   

 
Page 101



 

 

During the current lockdown the account has established weekly calls that are regularly being 

attended by 100+ staff.  A weekly digest has also been produced to provide key messages, along 

with good news stories from across the account. 

 

Employee Wellbeing  

a. Wellbeing Ambassadors – As part of our wellbeing programme within Amey, we have 

appointed 14 Wellbeing Ambassadors at Stafford, all of whom have been trained to Mental 

Health First Aiders standard. These roles support wellbeing and are trained to support our 

staff and wellbeing events.  

b. Forums and events – We have established a Wellbeing calendar to address appropriate 

issues on a monthly basis.  Such events have included Mental Health Awareness week, 

which involved external motivational speakers, Men’s Health week and Blood Pressure 

checks for employees.   

 

4. Customer 

The Infrastructure+ Partnership has a clear vision for customer engagement and satisfaction, with 

their customer goals written into the contract Outcomes and Critical Success Factors. Customer 

engagement and satisfaction is governed by the Customer Outcome Group (chaired by Cllr Helen 

Fisher, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport). 

The account received its biannual internal customer maturity assessment in June 2020.  The 

partnership maintained its previous score of 4 out of a possible 5.  The assessment was undertaken 

jointly with SCC officers to provide a 360-degree review of the current situation.   The contract has 

an improvement plan and workshops have been arranged to address any outstanding issues.     

 

Client success survey’s have been undertaken as part of the strategy with Darryl Eyers, James 

Bailey, David Walters, Mary Anne Raftery and Dale Arthur.  The Net Promoter Score is the 

percentage of promoters minus the percentage of detractors. NPS ranges from −100 (meaning 

everyone is a detractor) to +100 (meaning everyone is a promoter).  Staffordshire currently has an 

Page 102



 

 

NPS of +46 with 10 returns.  This compares favourable to other highways contracts, but still scope 

to improve.   

 

The Staffordshire account has been identified to take part in the BSI Customer Kitemark audit 

scheduled for late 2020.  A gap analysis has been completed and we are currently compiling an 

action plan to close the gaps identified.   

 

Page 103



Bridge Maintenance Performance

Asset Management Performance Pack Report - May-20

Score

Lowest Score Possible -8

( - 9 in Period Mar - Sep) 6 Highest Score Possible +8

( + 9 in Period Mar - Sep)

Preventative Maintenance Performance

Structural Maintenance Performance

2
3 3 3

6

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-11

-8

-5

-2

1

4

7

10

January February March April May June July August September October November December

-1 -1 -1 -1

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

1 1 1

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

January February March April May June July August September October November December

3 3 3 3 3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 104



Score 0 Score 1

Score -1 Score 1

Notes:

Carriageway - % of Prepatching Vs Overall Site

Footway - % of Prepatching Vs Overall Site

Footway -  Planned Vs Actual programme (Cumulative) Footway - % of Prepatching Vs Overall Site (Cumulative)

1

Report - May-20

Carriageway- % Planned Vs Actual programme (Cumulative) Carriageway - % of Prepatching Vs Overall Site (Cumulative)

Score

Preventative Maintenance Performance

Lowest Score Possible -4

( -4 in Period Mar - Sep)

Highest Score Possible +4

( + 4 in Period Mar - Sep)

-1 -1 -1 -1

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

0

5

10

15

20

25

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

10.6

9.6
10.3

10.7

6.9

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

7

12
14

9

23

0

5

10

15

20

25

The c/w preventative programme is back on track after a delayed start due to Covid-19.
Prep percentage is also back under control after the effects of the wet winter period.
The f/w preventative programme is still behind but additional resources using a new 
innovative treatment are planned. Prep percentage remains excellent.

Page 105



No of programme completed Score 1 No of programme completed Score 1

Notes:

Planned Duration Vs Actual Duration +/- CE’s 12 Month Cost Accuracy of Jobs Completed

Structural Maintenance Performance Report - May-20

Score

Lowest Score Possible -2 2 Highest Score Possible +2

0

1 1 1

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

1

2

3

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

0

1

2

3

4

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

The structural programme and cost accuracy remains excellent.

Page 106



Score 1 Score 1

Score 1

Notes:

Number of Monthly Inspections 

Bridge Maintenance Performance Report - Jun-20

Score

Lowest Score Possible -3 3 Highest Score Possible +3

% of Inspections Completed to Programme (Cumulative)

Capital Planned Duration Vs Actual Duration +/- CE’s 

12 Month Cost Accuracy of Jobs Completed

80

90

100

110

120

130

140

3 3 3 3 3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

January February March April May June July August September October November December

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

40

64

39 39 39

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

The structures General Inspections continue to be completed to programme.
There have still been no structures capital schemes completing this year. Schemes will
begin to complete from July.

Page 107



Green Claims Summary

Red Claims Summary

Claims Performance Pack May-20

Lowest Score Possible - 5 3 Highest Score Possible + 5

 Aggregated Score

1
3 3

4
3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-14

-10

-6

-2

2

6

10

14

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2

4 4
3

4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

-1 -1 -1

1

-1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 108



Score 1 Score 1

Score 1 Score 1

Key Findings and Trends:

New Claim logged Vs Received (Cumulative)

Agreed Target Stretch Target

Reports submitted to GB (Productivity)

Agreed Target Stretch Target

Lowest Score Possible - 4 4 Highest Score Possible + 4

% of Personal Injury claim reports to GB within 21 Days of Target % of Property Damage claims Reports to GB within 90 Days of Target

Agreed Target Stretch Target Agreed Target Stretch Target

Red Claims Summary May-20

 Aggregated Score

2

4 4
3

4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

75

80

85

90

95

100

105

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Page 109

lwils8sc
Typewritten Text
The team have achieved outstanding results this month and have cleared the large volume of claims received thisyear



Score -1

% Responsible parties informed Vs claims received 

Number of Recharge received (Cumulative)

Number of recharges closed paid

Number of recharge claim Responsible parties identified (Cumulative)

Target Stretch Target

Green Claims Summary May-20

 Aggregated Score

Lowest Score Possible - 1 -1 Highest Score Possible + 1

-1 -1 -1

1

-1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

60

89

10
1

96

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

7

2

0 0
1

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

0

20

40

60

80

100

11
17

4 1

80

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Page 110



Key Findings and Trends:

Amount of recharges agreed to settle within the Month  (£)

Amount Recharges Invoiced within the Month (£)

Claims to be settled within 90 days of invoiced date

3760.91

706.34

0 0

578.05

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000

18535.82
5002.88 0

116432.36

30463

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Claims to be settled within 90 days of invoiced date 33 26 1 2 1

No of claims settled within 90 days 12 10 0 0 0

No of claims settled after 90 days 2 0 0 0 0
Claims still to Settle 19 16 1 2 1

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Page 111

lwils8sc_1
Typewritten Text
Resource has been directed to Red Claims due to the large volume of claims received in 2020. This changed on18 May 2020 and results should be reflected for June 2020



Staff Figures - Highways

Staff Figures - Consulting

Staffing Performance Report - May-20

Score

Lowest Score Possible -10 0 Highest Score Possible +10

2 2
1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-10

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

-1 -1 -1 -1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-5

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2

3

2

1 1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-5

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 112



Score -1 Score 1

Score 1 Score -1

Score -1

Notes:

Amey Target Stretch Target

Amey Target Stretch Target

Amey Target Stretch Target

% of staff who have used Community Day

Number of Apprentices / Trainees/ Graduates Staff Wellness

Bid Target Stretch Target

-1

Report - May-20

Training Days Per Employee Staff Retention

Score

Staff Figures - Highways

Lowest Score Possible -5 Highest Score Possible +5

Bid Target Stretch Target

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

0

-1 -1 -1 -1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-5

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

75

80

85

90

95

100

0

5

10

15

20

25

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Page 113



Score -1 Score 1

Score 1 Score 1

Score -1

Notes:

Amey Target Stretch Target

Bid Target Stretch Target

Bid Target Stretch Target

% of staff who have used Community Day

Staff Figures - Consulting Report - May-20

Score

Lowest Score Possible -5 1 Highest Score Possible +5

Amey Target Stretch Target

Training Days Per Employee Staff Retention

Number of Apprentices / Trainees/ Graduates Staff Wellness

Amey Target Stretch Target

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

2

3

2

1 1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-5

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

75

80

85

90

95

100

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Page 114



SCC Lab Income

Laboratory General Measure 

Laboratory Performance Pack May-20

Lowest Score Possible -6 1 Highest Score Possible +6

 Aggregated Score

External Client Lab Income

2
1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-14

-10

-6

-2

2

6

10

14

April May June July August September October November December January February March

1 1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

April May June July August September October November December January February March

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

April May June July August September October November December January February March

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

April May June July August September October November December January February March

Page 115



Score 1

Budget

Key Findings and Trends:

Average 6.23 days out of 13 tests.

Lowest Score Possible -1 1 Highest Score Possible +1

Average days for binder content and grading testing 

Agreed Target Stretch Target

Cumulative Actual  vs Cumulative Budget Income

Laboratory General Measure May-20

 Aggregated Score

1 1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-2

-1

0

1

2

April May June July August September October November December January February March

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

108277.55 151,734.37

-188000

12000

212000

412000

612000

812000

Page 116



Score 0 Score 1

Score -1

Key Findings and Trends:

Lowest Score Possible -3 0 Highest Score Possible +3

Cumulative Air quality testing Actual Vs budget income 

External Client Lab Income May-20

 Aggregated Score

Cumulative other local authorities Actual Vs Budget income 

Agreed Target Stretch Target Agreed Target Stretch Target

Cumulative External Work Actual Vs Budget income 

Value of work from Amey 

There has been no section 38 work due to all the housing sites being closed but we are starting to see that work coming back.

Cumulative section 38 within SCC Actual Vs budget income 

Agreed Target Stretch Target

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

April May June July August September October November December January February March

-5000

5000

15000

25000

35000

45000

55000

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

5000

55000

105000

155000

Page 117



Score 1 Score -1

Key Findings and Trends:

Lowest Score Possible -2 0 Highest Score Possible +2

SCC Lab Income May-20

 Aggregated Score

Cumulative HAUC for SCC Actual Vs Budget income 

Agreed Target Stretch Target

Cumulative SCC- S278/S106 Dev Ag Actual Vs Budget income 

HAUC coring was not restarted until late April due to Covi-19 and is now being prioritised so that we can catch up. General income levels are lower due to changes in Health and Safety, a 

reduction in client requests for testing and changes in processes. This will be monitored to look at the impact on the business

Agreed Target Stretch Target

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

April May June July August September October November December January February March

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

Page 118



Staffing Performance Pack

Routine, Reactive and Cyclical Performance Pack

Overall SPB Pack Report - May-20

 Aggregated Score

Lowest Score Possible -58 23 Highest Score Possible +58

0Lowest Score Possible -10 Highest Score Possible +10

Lowest Score Possible -12 5 Highest Score Possible +12

Lowest Score Possible -3 -1 Highest Score Possible +3

Planning I+ Performance Pack

Quality Performance Pack

Asset Management Performance Pack

Lowest Score Possible -9 6 Highest Score Possible +9

Network & Inspections Performance pack

Lowest Score Possible -9 8 Highest Score Possible +9

Laboratory Performance Pack 

Lowest Score Possible -6 1 Highest Score Possible +6

Lowest Score Possible -9+ 4 Highest Score Possible +9

27
21 20

24 23

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-55

-45

-35

-25

-15

-5

5

15

25

35

45

55

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2 2
1

0 0

-10

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2
3 3 3

6

-10

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

9

5 5

8

5

-15

-12

-9

-6

-3

0

3

6

9

12

15

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

-2 -2
-1 -1 -1

-10

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

9

6
4

3
4

-15

-12

-9

-6

-3

0

3

6

9

12

15

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

9
7 7

9
8

-15

-12

-9

-6

-3

0

3

6

9

12

15

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

-2

0
1

2
1

-15

-12

-9

-6

-3

0

3

6

9

12

15

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Page 119



Planning I+

Planning Performance Pack Report - Apr-20

 Aggregated Score

Lowest Score Possible -3 0 Highest Score Possible +3

-2 -2

-1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

-2 -2
-1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 120



Score 0 Score -1

Score 1

Notes:

Pre App & VAC's Amey -100% (Zero passed to Amey)

Pre App & VAC's SCC - 43%

Full Applications Amey - 90% (9 out of 217 passed to Amey)

Full Applications SCC - 89% 

Planning I+

Lowest Score Possible -3 Highest Score Possible +30

Report - Apr-20

SCC & Amey Planning Applications - Response within 21 days SCC & Amey Pre Apps - Response within 21 days

Score

Amey S7 Applications - Initial Response within 28 Days

72

74

76

78

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

-2 -2

-1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-5

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

Page 121



Notes:

Added Value Report - Apr-20

Sell Out to other Profit Centres (Hrs) Desk Charge (£'s Generated)

Third Party Turnover (£000's) Buy in (Hrs)

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

Page 122



Quality Assurance

Quality & Audit Management

Quality Performance Pack May-20

Lowest Score Possible -9 4 Highest Score Possible +9

 Aggregated Score

9

6

4
3

4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-14

-10

-6

-2

2

6

10

14

January February March April May June July August September October November December

5

2

1 1

3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

4 4

3

2

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 123



Score 1 Score 1

Score 0 Score 1

Score 0 Score 0

Key Findings and Trends:

Lowest Score Possible -5 3 Highest Score Possible +5

Quality & Audit Management May-20

 Aggregated Score

Stretch Target

Number of Audits carried out against the treatment matrix

Quality Inspections Completed v Planned (Works in progress)

Agreed Target Stretch Target

Average Quality inspection Score (Works in progress)

Agreed Target Stretch Target

Average score of treatment matrix audit

Average score PDA desk top task audits per monthNumber of PDA desk top task audits completed per month

Agreed TargetAgreed Target Stretch Target Stretch Target

Desktop Audits in March -May were reviewing handheld use.  Questions and volumes of aduits changed to suit - OCR currently reivewing audit process will be reflected in July 

Scorepack

Agreed Target Stretch Target Agreed Target

5

2

1 1

3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0

1

2

3

4

5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Page 124



Score 1 Score 0

Score -1 Score 1

Key Findings and Trends:

Quality Assurance May-20

 Aggregated Score

Lowest Score Possible -4 1 Highest Score Possible +4

Action Requests (AR's) raised in the month Completion at first time (Right First Time)

Bid Target Stretch Target

Bid Target Stretch Target

Amey Target Stretch Target

Action Requests (AR's) closed in month on time Quality plan documents reviewed vs. due for review

Bid Target Stretch Target

4 4

3

2

1

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

Page 125



ss of 

8048 

Identified Completed

Routine, Reactive and Cyclical Performance Pack Report - May-20

Lowest Score Possible -12
(-16 Oct - April) 5 Highest Score Possible +12

(+ 12 Oct - April)

 Aggregated Score

Winter Maintenance Performance

Tree Maintenance Performance

Staffordshire Safety Defects

Reactive Maintenance Performance

Gully Emptying Performance

9

5 5

8

5

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-16

-12

-8

-4

0

4

8

12

16

January February March April May June July August September October November December

4 4

2

4
3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2 2

1 1

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

January February March April May June July August September October November December

1

-1

2

3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-2

-1

0

1

2

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Outstanding
11919

Outstanding
12013

Outstanding
11764

Outstanding
12440

Outstanding
13188

0

400

800

1200

1600

2000

2400

2800

3200

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 126



Score 1 Score 1

Score 1 Score -1

8048 
gullies 

Score 1 Score 0

Notes:
EM - 70 - 100%

Bid Target Stretch Target

Cat 2 - 421/440 - 95.6% 
RFT score drop due to incorrect Handheld Use - Training to be reinvigorated and monitored in June

Cross ContractTarget Stretch Target Amey Target Stretch Target

% Increase in Workstack

2018 Actual 2019 Actual

Average Gang Utilisation Defects Completed Right First Time

% Of Category 2 Defects Delivered Within Response Time % of Cat 3 Defects Delivered Within 60 Days

Bid Target Stretch Target Agreed Target Stretch Target

Cat 1 - 24 - 100%

Report - May-20

% Of Emergency Defects Delivered Within Response Time % Of Category 1 Defects Delivered Within Response Time

Reactive Maintenance Performance

3Lowest Score Possible -6 Highest Score Possible +6

 Aggregated Score

Stretch TargetBid Target

95

96

97

98

99

100

4 4

2

4
3

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

January February March April May June July August September October November December

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

50

60

70

80

90

100

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

-8.0

-6.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

Page 127



Score 0 Score 1

Score 0 Score 1

Notes:

% of gullies visited to published programme Average Silt Level of Gullies Cleansed

Gully Emptying Performance Report - May-20

Lowest Score Possible -4 2 Highest Score Possible +4

 Aggregated Score

% of gullies - Cleansable on visit % of Cleansed gullies - Left running

Avg Target Stretch Target

Agreed Target Stretch TargetStretch TargetAvg Target

Gullies Emptied 

Avg Target Stretch Target

6764 gullies behind rolling annual communicated programme of 82000 (Peaked at 7700 recovery in place)
8.4% of gullies visited unable to clean due to Lid jammed - Additional crews deployed to eleviate backlog of drainage issues
Gangs Recording accessibility issue pre work. i.e reporting overgrown but the crew manage to cleanse gully  - handheld training ongoing

80.00

83.00

86.00

89.00

92.00

95.00

98.00

2 2

1 1

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-4

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Page 128



Score 1 Score -1

Timelines
s of 

Asset collected monthly

Identified Completed

Notes:

116 Cat 3 tree works completed of which 27 were on time

2019 Actual 

Agreed Target

Tree Asset Collection

2018 Actual 

Tree Jobs

44 Emergencies - Cat 2 tree works all completed on time

Tree Maintenance Performance Report - May-20

Lowest Score Possible -2 0 Highest Score Possible +2

 Aggregated Score

Average Age of Outstanding Tree Jobs

% of Em-Cat 2 Tree Works Completed Within Response Time % Of Cat 3 Tree Works Delivered Within Response Time

Agreed Target Stretch Target Stretch Target

2

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-2

-1.5

-1

-0.5

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

January February March April May June July August September October November December

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0

250

500

750

1000

73113 73289 73778 75278 78046
0

500
1000
1500
2000
2500
3000

Outstanding 
1083

Outstanding 
890

Outstanding 
811

Outstanding 
720

Outstanding 
523

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Page 129



Notes:

Drainage Enquiries Received

Tree Enquiries Received

2019 Actual2018 Actual

Customer Contact Report - May-20

Grass Cutting Enquiries Received

Weed Spraying Enquiries Received

Winter Enquiries Received

2019 Actual

2019 Actual

2019 Actual

2019 Actual

2018 Actual

2018 Actual

2018 Actual

2018 Actual

0

200

400

600

800

0

200

400

600

800

1000

0

50

100

150

0

50

100

150

200

250

0
100
200
300
400
500
600

Page 130



Regulations

Networks  Inspections

Network and Inspections May-20

Lowest Score Possible -9 8 Highest Score Possible +9

 Aggregated Score

9
8

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-14

-10

-6

-2

2

6

10

14

April May June July August September October November December January February March

4 4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

April May June July August September October November December January February March

5

4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

April May June July August September October November December January February March

Page 131



Score 1 Score 1

Score 1 20% Tolerance 10% Tolerance Score 1

Key Findings and Trends:

Due to coring process and notification to utility, coring results there is always a three months or more lag with results.

4090 safety inspection sections completed of which 0 was late. Late are completed within a month.

496 Total Sample Inspections completed against the target of 482.49. 

175 Cat A sample inspections completed against the target of 160.83 of  which 34 Failed

163 Cat B sample inspections completed against the target of 160.83 of which 2 Failed 

158 Cat C sample inspections completed against the target of 160.83 of which 8 Failed 

Sample inspections delivered against agreed Profile (A)% of Section 58 safety inspections delivered on time 

10% Tolerance Agreed Target

% investigatory core samples requested against target

No of sample of Section 75 (NRSWA) Category A inspections completed in accordance with NRSWA Code of Practice for inspections

Sample inspections delivered against agreed Profile (B) Sample inspections delivered against agreed Profile (C)

20% Tolerance 10% Tolerance

Stretch TargetAgreed Target

Lowest Score Possible -4 4 Highest Score Possible +4

Networks  Inspections May-20

 Aggregated Score

4 4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

April May June July August September October November December January February March

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

153

141

0

5

10
15

20

25

30
35

40

135

140

145

150

155
Pass

Fail

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

Page 132



2018/19

Number of reactive Enquires received 

2017/18

% defects identified from sample inspections

Networks  Inspections May-20

Utility Defects (A, B & C Inspections only)

% investigatory core samples do not comply with specification

% Carriageway only  samples do not comply with specification

% Footway only samples do not comply with specification

12
19

2

1

1

5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

% defects identified from sample A inspections % defects identified from sample B inspections % defects identified from sample C inspections

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

% investigatory core samples do not comply with specification % Carriageway samples do not comply with specification % Footway samples do not comply with specification

1027
1529

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

12
19

2

1

1

5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

% defects identified from sample A inspections % defects identified from sample B inspections % defects identified from sample C inspections

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

% investigatory core samples do not comply with specification % Carriageway samples do not comply with specification % Footway samples do not comply with specification

1027
1529

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

April May June July August September October November December January February March

Utility Defects Outstanding -16 -1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Utility Defects Completed 42 45

Utility Defects Issued 26 44

26
44

42

45

-16
-1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

Page 133



Score 1 Score 1

Score 0 Score 1

Score 1

Key Findings and Trends:

Historic perfomance Stretch Target Historic perfomance 

9 of 11  Private Apparatus processed within timeframe

% of Scaff /Hoard/ Tower application requests processed and 

responded to within timescales

Historic perfomance Stretch Target

% of private apparatus application requests processed and responded 

to within timescales

% of TTR processed within time

Historic perfomance Stretch Target

241 of 255 TTR processed within timeframe

71 of 76 Skip/item/cabin applications processed within timeframe

26 of 30 permit to dig applications  processed within timeframe 

27 of 27 Scaff/Hoard/Tower applications processed within timeframe

Regulations May-20

 Aggregated Score

Lowest Score Possible -5 4 Highest Score Possible +5

% of permit to dig application requests processed and responded to 

within timescales

Historic perfomance Stretch Target

% of Skip/ Item/ Cabin application requests processed and responded to 

within timescales

Stretch Target

5

4

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-8

-6

-4

-2

0

2

4

6

8

April May June July August September October November December January February March

60

70

80

90

100

60

70

80

90

100

60

70

80

90

100

60

70

80

90

100

60

70

80

90

100

Page 134



   

% FPN actual paid within time

Regulations May-20

Total Revenue of Permit applications Invoiced  (£)

Vehicle Access crossing request processed

Total FPN issued

Total revenue of FPN's (£)

80

1840

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

66213

47095

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000 Total Revenue of Permit applications Invoiced  (£)

2019/2020 Invoiced

16

17.3

15

15.5

16

16.5

17

17.5

50

133

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

21 19

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70 Vehicle Access crossing request processed

2019/20

Page 135





 
 
 

 
  

Energy Solutions Limited 
 
 
 
 
 

HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
 
 
 

STAFFORDSHIRE PFI 
 

SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 
 

No.206: Period Ending 30 June 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 137



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 2 of 9 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 General Overview 
  

The contract continues to progress well and in line with contract requirements. 
During this period of Government restrictions in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, E.ON are operating in line with the guidelines and continuing to 
deliver the PFI Service Agreement as per our contractual obligations. E.ON will 
use best endeavours to maintain this position and continue to communicate with 
relevant partners as the restrictions are amended.  

 

1.2 Safety/Environmental 
  
 There were no Health and Safety / Environmental incidents reported during 

the period.  
 
 Due to changes in the way that fuel data is collected by our suppliers CO² 

data will now be declared 1 month in arrears to avoid delays to the 
production of this report. 

  
 The emissions from vehicle and plant fuel use during the May  2020 period 

resulted in 15.57 tonnes of CO², which equates to a 28% decrease from the 
same period last year. The year-end total impact of CO² emissions from 
vehicles and plant will be measured against the previous years and 
reconciled for operational factors such as geographical work areas.  

 
1.3 Asset Replacement 

 
The installation teams delivered 491 points to certification for the May 2020 
period. The cumulative delivery against the rolling target for AARP Block 3 is 
now 295 points ahead of programme.  
 

1.4 Maintenance 
 

The percentage of lights lit (PS2) across the period was 99.35% which is 
measured against a 98% target. 
 

For the reporting period a total of 1106 fault repairs (excluding emergency call-
outs) were completed which represents a 21% increase against the same period 
last year. 
 

A total of 32 emergency call-outs were attended to, which represents a 35% 
decrease against the same period last year.  
 

Proactive maintenance to clean and change lamps continues in line with 
contract requirements. 

 
1.5 Performance Standard Deductions 

 
One performance deduction was applied during the month.  
 
 

Page 138



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 3 of 9 

1.6 Contract Modernisation 
 

The process of implementing the various elements of modernisation is 
continuing in line with the programme as follows: 
 
a) Maintenance regime standards of service – the reduction in visits for 

maintenance regimes and night patrols have been implemented and the 
savings applied to the Authority. 

b) Cyclic Maintenance Realignment – the process of ensuring all assets will 
not exceed the application of the new regimes through early/secondary 
testing and lamp replacement has been completed. All savings are applied 
in a) above. 

c) Asset Renewal Programme – as part of the day to day activities of designed 
asset renewal scheme replacement, the use of modern efficient technologies 
can create energy saving. The Authority shares in these savings via 
reductions in energy consumption. 

d) Asset Renewal Dimming – in addition to c) above the new designs where 
required include an agreed part night dimming regime. Elexon Codes have 
been awarded against each regime and all savings can be declared within 
the overall energy declaration. The Authority shares in these savings via 
reductions in energy consumption. 

e) Retro fit Dimming – The programme of schemes to complete 15,000 assets 
before December 2015 is now complete. The savings were passed back to 
the Authority via reductions in energy consumption on a share basis until 
the initial cost of installation was recovered by the Service Provider, which 
occured in February 2020. The full savings will now be provided to the 
Authority. 

1.7 Contract Modernisation Savings 
 

The adjustments to the standards of service completed as part of the Contract 
Modernisation generate savings to the authority across the different aspects. 
The total cumulative savings against each of the headings provided in 1.6 above 
are as follows: 
 
a) Maintenance Regime Standards of Service  £1,781,658.51 
b) Cyclic Maintenance Realignment                 Incl in a) above 
c) Asset Renewal High efficiency Lanterns    1,811,208kWh/annum 
d) Asset Renewal Dimming                             567,843kWh/annum 
e) Retro Fit Dimming                                                  3,829,314 kWh/annum 

The cumulative reductions in energy consumption will generate an equivalent 
annual Carbon (CO²) saving of 3,069 tonnes. 
 
In line with the successful implementation of the new Asset Management 
System, the savings indicated in the Maintenance Regime Standards of Service 

Page 139



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 4 of 9 

above have been reduced to reflect the reversion of the costs and risk associated 
with the Service Provider supplying that system. 

 
2.0 HEALTH & SAFETY, QUALITY & ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
2.1 Introduction 

 

E.ON Energy Solutions are acting as Principal Contractor for the purposes of 
the CDM Regulations.  

 
2.2 Accidents and Incidents 

 

There were no incidents reported during the period directly related to the 
project.  
 
Near miss and hazard reporting offers an excellent opportunity to review and 
consider events which under other circumstances could have resulted in an 
accident or incident. All near miss and hazard data is catalogued and reviewed 
as a means of continuous improvement for our business’s Health and Safety. 
 

2.3 Environmental Impact 
  

There were no environmental incidents reported within the period for the 
Staffordshire PFI project.  
 

As part of the wider issues and concerns regarding the environment; the 
business is seeking to measure its carbon footprint in respect of building 
emissions and vehicle emissions in order to seek ways of reducing or mitigating 
the effects. The following data details the fuel consumption, mileage and CO2 
emissions for fleet used within the Staffordshire PFI business. The graphs plot 
fuel usage and mileage separately and can be reviewed against the same periods 
for previous years. 
 
Note: From June 2017 all fuel data may be declared 1 month in arrears due to 
changes in the way fuel information is collected by our suppliers. This is to 
avoid unnecessary delays to the production of this report. 
 
The following graphs indicate the 2020 year to date.  
 

 
 

2020 January February March April May June July August Sept October Nov Dec Total YTD

Fleet 43 43 43 43 43 43

23,367 22,578 32,646 16,404 18,881 113,876

9,956 10,062 8,990 6,802 5,881 41,691

0 0 0 0 0 0

26.19 26.47 23.65 17.89 15.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 109.66

Plant 0 0 0 0 0 0

81 36 45 54 44 261

0.19 0.08 0.11 0.13 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60

Total 26.38 26.55 23.75 18.02 15.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 110.27

CO 2 (Tonnes)

Diesel (Litres)

Petrol (Litres)

CO 2 (Tonnes)

CO 2 (Tonnes)

SPFI: Fleet Vehicle Emissions

Commercial Vehicle Emissions

Number of Vehicles

Mileage

Diesel (Litres)

Petrol (Litres)

Page 140



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 5 of 9 

 
 

 
 
3.0 PROGRESS REPORT: ASSET REPLACEMENT 
 
3.1 Introduction 

 
Asset replacement work delivered 491 points in total for the June 2020 period. 
All of these points have been delivered from AARP schemes and one stops. 
The target requirement for the AARP block 3 is a total of 27,821 points which 
is due for completion in March 2023.  
 
Since commencement of the project, the demand in road space through other 
infrastructure and utility delivery projects has increased considerably. The 
progressive increases on regulation, noticing, authorisations and permissions 
impact primary administrative duties extending planning and pre-construction 
activities which in turn impacts the ability to be flexible and reactive to certain 
events. In parallel with this is the increase in material procurement and delivery 
periods from all key manufacturers within the industry, which can impact on 
lead times and reactive ability to some works. 
 
The cumulative delivery of points for the asset renewal schemes can be seen in 
Appendix 3 for the 5 year period. 

 

Page 141



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 6 of 9 

3.2 Designs & Work in Progress 
 
Design production for the AARP generally continues as required to meet the 
operational planned targets and the extended lantern delivery periods. Regular 
meetings are in place for the Design and County Engineers to discuss and agree 
best practice and application of standards where necessary for unique schemes 
and general day to day issues arising. 

 
3.3 Asset Replacement Detailed Summary. 
 
3.3.1 IARP Deferred Schemes.  
 

All Category A and C schemes contained within the August 2008 Deed of 
Variation have been successfully completed. 
 
The Category B scheme assets cannot be delivered due to significant 
engineering restrictions on the Horninglow Street bridge section precluding 
any possible column erection. The adjacent footbridge may be scheduled for 
replacement in future periods which should permit engineering solutions to be 
incorporated to replace these 3 assets. In the interim, the lanterns on the 
footbridge have been replaced and do provide a degree of lighting onto the 
highway. 
 

3.3.2 AARP Defined Schemes 
 

The following table details the breakdown of AARP schemes completed within 
the month. These were supplemented by one-stop work to equal the total points 
claimed. 
 

 

Street Name Parish Name Area Units Points
BAGOTS VIEW ABBOTS BROMLEY  Abbots Bromley - Burton Abbots Bromley - Burton EAST 2 6
SORBUS AMINGTON TAMWORTH  Amington - Tamworth Amington - Tamworth EAST 1 3
MARLBOROUGH WAY TAMWORTH  Belgrave - Tamworth Belgrave - Tamworth EAST 1 4
CEDAR ROAD BURNTWOOD  Chasetown - Burntwood Chasetown - Burntwood EAST 18 34
MANOR RISE BURNTWOOD  Chasetown - Burntwood Chasetown - Burntwood EAST 13 25
ANKER DRIVE/AMINGTON ROAD RAB  Dosthill - Tamworth Dosthill - Tamworth EAST 1 4
TAMWORTH ROAD TWO GATES  Dosthill - Tamworth Dosthill - Tamworth EAST 1 4
GYPSUM WAY DRAYCOTT  Draycott in the Clay - Burton Draycott in the Clay - Burton EAST 3 7
HOLLOW LANE DRAYCOTT  Draycott in the Clay - Burton Draycott in the Clay - Burton EAST 8 18
SWAN ROAD DRAYCOTT  Draycott in the Clay - Burton Draycott in the Clay - Burton EAST 5 13
NEW ROAD UTTOXETER  Heath - Uttoxeter Heath - Uttoxeter EAST 19 70
SLADE ROAD CANWELL  Hints - Lichfield Hints - Lichfield EAST 1 3
HORNINGLOW ROAD NORTH  Horninglow - Burton Horninglow - Burton EAST 1 0
FESTIVAL ROAD SHOBNALL  Shobnall - Burton Shobnall - Burton EAST 5 13
RIVERSIDE DRIVE SHOBNALL  Shobnall - Burton Shobnall - Burton EAST 3 9
ELLERBECK TAMWORTH  Stoneydelph - Tamworth Stoneydelph - Tamworth EAST 1 3
GREEN LANE TUTBURY  Tutbury - Burton Tutbury - Burton EAST 8 20
HILLSIDE TUTBURY  Tutbury - Burton Tutbury - Burton EAST 4 6
HOLTS LANE TUTBURY  Tutbury - Burton Tutbury - Burton EAST 20 39
IRONWALLS LANE TUTBURY  Tutbury - Burton Tutbury - Burton EAST 10 22
COMBERFORD ROAD EAST AREA  Wiggington - Lichfield Wiggington - Lichfield EAST 1 4
CHURCH ROAD BIDDULPH  Biddulph Town - Moorlands Biddulph Town A - Moorlands NORTH 2 8
LONDON ROAD CHESTERTON  Chesterton - Newcastle Chesterton - Newcastle NORTH 4 16
MOUNT ROAD KIDSGROVE  Kidsgrove - Newcastle Kidsgrove - Newcastle NORTH 1 4
CREWE ROAD MADELEY HEATH  Madeley - Stone Madeley - Stone NORTH 1 4
NEWCASTLE ROAD MADELEY HEATH  Madeley - Stone Madeley - Stone NORTH 1 4
OULTON ROAD STONE  Stone Town Council - Stone Stone Town Council C - Stone NORTH 28 87
ENDERLEY STREET NEWCASTLE  Town Ward - Newcastle Town Ward - Newcastle NORTH 1 4
CINDER HILL LANE COVEN Brewood - Perton SOUTH 9 19
CANNOCK ROAD BROCTON  Brocton - Stafford Brocton - Stafford SOUTH 1 4
CLARENDON DRIVE STAFFORD  Highfields - Stafford Highfields - Stafford SOUTH 1 3
MONTVILLE DRIVE STAFFORD  Highfields - Stafford Highfields - Stafford SOUTH 1 3
MARSTON CLOSE WHEATON ASTON  Lapley & Stretton - Perton Lapley & Stretton - Perton SOUTH 1 3
ORCHARD CLOSE PATTINGHAM  Pattingham & Patsull - Perton Pattingham & Patsull - Perton SOUTH 8 12
FOXGLOVE WALK HEDNESFORD  Pye Green - Cannock Pye Green - Cannock SOUTH 3 9
ECCLESHALL ROAD GT BRIDGEFORD  Seighford - Stafford Seighford - Stafford SOUTH 1 4

GRAND TOTAL 189 491

Page 142



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 7 of 9 

4.0 PROGRESS REPORT: MAINTENANCE 
 
4.1 Introduction 

 
The number of standard response faults and proactive repairs has increased in 
the month and the number of emergency events has decreased. A comparison 
of current trends for both emergency and standard fault responses in relation to 
the previous 5 years can be seen in Appendix 4. 
 
The percentage of lights lit (PS2) remains relatively constant at 99.35% in the 
period. The month on month results remain fairly static and indicate a positive 
result continuing above the target percentage. 
 
PS 2 Summary data can be seen in Appendix 4. 
 

4.2 Routine Maintenance 
 
All routine maintenance tasks for the period were completed on time. 
 

4.3 Fault Repairs 
 

For the period 1 – 30 June 2020, a total of 1106 fault repairs (excluding 
emergency call-outs) were completed by the team, representing a 21% increase 
from the same period last year. 
 
One fault was completed outside the target performance response time.  
 

4.4 Emergency Call-Outs 
 

For the period 1 – 30 June 2020, a total of 32 emergency call-outs were 
attended to by the team, representing a 35% decrease from the same period last 
year. 

  
No faults were completed outside the target performance response time.  

 
4.5 Structural Testing 
 

Testing continues throughout the County for those assets reaching the target 
age and for those schedules by previous inspection reports.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 8 of 9 

5.0 CHANGES TO INVENTORY 
 
5.1 Accruals, Additions/Deletions and Growth 
  

Original inventory assets as at 31/01/03     99,343 
 
 Total cumulative asset accruals to date       4,108 
           
 Growth from Asset Renewal and         
 Net additions/deletions from asset data survey      5,175 
 
 TOTAL INVENTORY                 108,626 
 
5.2 Inventory analysis by Unit Type 
 
 Belisha beacons             356 

Bollards           1,594 
 Feeder Pillars              497 

Hatpins              283 
Lighting Units         93,880 

 School crossing flashers            208 
Sign Units         11,133 
Subway lights              675  

  
TOTAL       108,626 

 
6.0 ENERGY 
 

There are no reported problems with the current Energy Supplier or Power Data 
Associates who continue to operate very effectively and efficiently as the 
Meter Administrator. 
 
An external UMSO Inventory Audit has been completed and this Audit allows 
the Unmetered Supply operators to review the accuracy of the inventory detail 
in line with the unmetered supply agreement. The inventory was found to be 
within the agreed tolerances allowable. 
 
Ongoing reviews with the Meter Administrator continue and have identified 
no actions for improvements as the current strategies reperesent best practice 
and best value for the Client.  
 

7.0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 
7.1 Introduction 
 

Deductions which are applicable in the period against the performance 
standards in line with Schedule 4 of the Project Agreement are detailed below. 
 
Details of Performance Standards are provided in Appendix 5. 

 
 

Page 144



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited:   Highway Lighting - Staffordshire PFI 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206 Period Ending – 30 June 2020 
 

Page 9 of 9 

7.2 PS I(b): Electrical, Structural & Optical Inspection and Testing 
 

No deductions applicable in the period.  
 
7.3 PS II: Lighting Equipment & Illuminated Traffic Sign Equipment Lit 
 

No deductions applicable in the period. 
 
7.4 PS III: Photometric Performance 
 

90 streets were randomly selected and illuminance measured on a random unit 
within each street by the Night Patrollers. Checks on these readings are 
undertaken by the Engineering Certifier. There were no reported failures in the 
month. 

 
7.5 PS IV: Operational Response 
 
7.5.1 Responsiveness to Emergency Events 
 

No deductions applicable in the period. 
 

7.5.2 Non Emergency Repairs 
 

One deduction was applied in the period due to one non emergency repair being 
completed three days late.   
 

7.6 PS V: Design, Installation, Commissioning & Decommissioning 
 

No deductions applicable in the period. 
 
7.7 PS VI: Records and Management 
 

No deductions applicable in the period.   

Page 145



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited   
STAFFORDSHIRE PFI HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206                                                          Period Ending: 30 June 2020 
 

Service Providers’ Progress Report    
 

 
 
 

APPENDICES TO PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 
 

Appendix 1: Accident & Incident Register 
 
 Appendix 2: Engineering Certifier’s Report 
 
 Appendix 3: AARP Progress Report 
 

Appendix 4: Performance Statistics 
 

Appendix 5: Performance Standard Report 
 
 
 
  

Page 146



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited   
STAFFORDSHIRE PFI HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206                                                          Period Ending: 30 June 2020 
 

Service Providers’ Progress Report    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 
 

Accident & Incident Register 

Page 147



STAFFS PFI - ACCIDENT REGISTER –  AARP Block  
 

 
Ref 

 

 
Date 

 
Location 

 
Description 

 
Status 

 

 
Action / Comments 

 
 
 
001                                                                                                                                                                           

 
11/9/08 

 
Horninglow Road, 
Burton upon Trent 

 
Operative struck by concrete street 
lighting column during lifting operation 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete  

 
002 

 
10/08/09 

 
Monmouth Place, 
Clayton 

 
Operative struck by residents’ car whilst 
attempting to stop column installation. 
Police were called to the scene to protect 
workforce whilst work completed, no 
charges pressed. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete 

 
003 

 
11/08/09 

 
Lincoln Grove, 
Clayton 

 
Operative manoeuvring vehicle around 
another E.ON parked vehicle misjudged 
clearance catching rear end of other 
vehicle. No injuries were sustained. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete 

 
004 

 
01/09/09 
 

 
Whitehall Lane, 
Kidsgrove 

 
Operative caught bucket of MEWP on 
private wall dislodging bricks whilst 
attempting a turning manoeuvre 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete. 

 
005 

 
19/10/09 

 
Pennine Way, 
Tamworth 

 
Operative injured back whilst manually 
lifting a road breaker pack back into his 
vehicle. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete. 

 
006 

 
29/10/09 

 
High Street, Kinver 

 
Operative reversed into stationary vehicle 
causing damage to both MEWP and 
private car. No injuries were sustained. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete. 

 
007 

 
4/11/09 

 
A38/A50 Island 

 
Operative returning to depot driving round 
island, Driver pulled out of junction directly 
into path of MEWP. Minor injuries to other 
driver and damage to both vehicles. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation complete. 

P
age 148



STAFFS PFI - ACCIDENT REGISTER –  AARP Block  
 

 
Ref 

 

 
Date 

 
Location 

 
Description 

 
Status 

 

 
Action / Comments 

 
 
 
008 

 
10/11/09 

 
Anson Street, 
Rugeley 

 
Operative stopped vehicle but driver 
behind didn’t and collided with MEWP 
bucket. No injuries sustained but damage 
to both vehicles. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
009 

 
11/1/10 

 
Water Street, 
Stafford. 

 
Operative slipped on ice on untreated 
footpath causing injuries to his knee. This 
resulted in a medical treated incident and 
lost time of over 3 days. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete. 

 
010 

 
9/4/10 

 
Glascote Road, 
Tamworth. 

 
Whilst undertaking planned fault repairs to 
units under professional traffic 
management protection a 3rd part vehicle 
collided with the crash cushion vehicle. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete. 

 
011 

 
2/6/10 

 
Moor Street, Burton 
upon Trent 

 
Operative digging around base of 
concrete column prior to removal was 
struck on the back of the head by a 
section of concrete that had become 
dislodged from the bracket arm. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 
 

 
012 

 
3/6/10 

 
Station Road Car 
Park, Cheslyn Hay 

 
Undertaking routine maintenance for a 
Borough Council, the operative was 
opening a height restriction barrier to get 
vehicle access, the faulty barrier dropped 
striking the operative on the head causing 
an injury the required hospital treatment 
and four stitches. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
013 

 
21/9/10 

 
The Green, 
Armitage 

 
Whilst undertaking a routine clean and 
change, the lantern bowl slipped and the 
operative strained himself whilst 
preventing it from falling. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

P
age 149



STAFFS PFI - ACCIDENT REGISTER –  AARP Block  
 

 
Ref 

 

 
Date 

 
Location 

 
Description 

 
Status 

 

 
Action / Comments 

 
 
 
014 

 
7/12/10 

 
Wilnecote Road, 
Tamworth 

 
Whilst undertaking routine maintenance 
and repair, an operative slipped on the ice 
and snow sustaining minor bruising. 
 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
015 

 
2/2/11 

 
Eastern Avenue, 
Lichfield 

 
Street lighting column collapsed onto 
passing car causing material damage to 
the car but no injury. 
 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Investigation has been completed and subsequent 
documentation issued to the Insurance providers. 
Communication is still open whilst any subsequent 
claim is being processed. 

 
016 

 
13/4/11 

 
Tutbury Road, 
Burton 

 
Operative strained back whilst getting into 
MEWP bucket. 

 
Closed 
 

 
Investigation Complete 
 

 
017 

 
28/6/11 

 
Ballance Street, 
Uttoxeter. 

 
Operative slipped on wet grass walking  to 
column causing pain to pre-existing back 
condition 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
018 

 
30/5/12 

 
A449, 
Wolverhampton 
Road, Penkridge 

 
Operative twisted ankle caused by falling 
into open manhole in long grass on verge. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
019 

 
17/9/12 

 
New Road, Hixon 

 
Operative twisted ankle on pot hole in the 
tarmac footpath. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
020 

 
04/04/13 
 

 
Burton Depot 

 
Storeman changing gas bottle on Forklift 
truck suffered cold burn when gas leaked 
from faulty seal 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

 
021 

 
05/06/13 
 

 
Mariner, Tamworth 

 
Operative was shovelling sand from the 
back of the lorry when he twisted and fell 
injuring his right calf. 

 
Closed 

 
Investigation Complete 

P
age 150



STAFFS PFI - ACCIDENT REGISTER –  AARP Block  
 

 
Ref 

 

 
Date 

 
Location 

 
Description 

 
Status 

 

 
Action / Comments 

 
 
 
022 

 
28/5/14 

 
Western Springs 
Road, Rugeley 

 
Operative was kneeling on ground digging 
a hole for column when felt pain in knee 
which did not subside. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative has soft tissue damage requiring 
absence from work and a return on prolonged 
alternative duties, this has been RIDDOR reported 
as a lost time injury. 

 
023 

 
28/07/14 

 
Derby Road, Burton 
upon Trent 

 
Operative stopped vehicle after noticing 
door open warning light was on. On 
alighting from the van to close the door he 
twisted his ankle on uneven ground 
causing a minor break. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative sustained a minor break, this has been 
RIDDOR reported as a lost time injury. 

 
024 

 
16/10/14 

 
Farringdon, 
Tamworth 

 
Operative undertaking normal manual 
lifting operation injured his back in the 
process. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative sustained minor injury, this has been 
RIDDOR reported as a lost time injury. 

 
025 

 
17/11/14 

 
Glascote Road F/P 

 
Operative experienced a reoccurrence of 
an existing back pain whilst manual 
handling. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative sustained minor injury, this has been 
RIDDOR reported as a lost time injury. 

 
026 

 
14/5/15 

 
Wimblebury Road, 
Heath Hayes 

 
MEWP safety lowering device failed, 
operative considered and alighted from 
bucket which was not quite docked. 
Slipped and fell causing back injury. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative sustained significant bruising, this has 
been RIDDOR reported as a lost time injury. 

 
027 

 
02/06/15 

 
Heron Road, 
Rugeley 

 
Operative undertaking cyclic maintenance 
stepped out of vehicle into a large pot 
hole in the road causing his ankle to twist. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative sustained minor injury, this has been 
RIDDOR reported as a lost time injury. 

 
028 
 

 
19/06/15 

 
The Pippins, 
Rugeley 

 
Operative undertaking excavation for a 
new column when felt pain in back. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Operative sustained minor injury, this has been 
RIDDOR reported as a lost time injury. 

P
age 151



STAFFS PFI - ACCIDENT REGISTER –  AARP Block  
 

 
Ref 

 

 
Date 

 
Location 

 
Description 

 
Status 

 

 
Action / Comments 

 
 
 
029 

 
18/3/16 

 
Burton Depot 

 
Stores attendant completing a two man lift 
felt pain in his back. 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
Stores attendant sustain minor injury resulting in 
restricted duties for a limited time. 

 
030 

 
12/05/16 

 
Burgoyne Street, 
Chadsmoor 

 
Operative lost footing when climbing out 
of excavation and fell causing laceration 
which required medical treatment. 
 

 
Investigation 
Complete 

 
The incident did not result in any lost time, the 
learnings from the incident have been 
communicated. 

031 13/07/18 Shobnall Road, 
Burton upon Trent 

Operative lost footing when exiting the 
cage of MEWP and twisted ankle resulting 
in a sprain.  

Investigation 
complete 

Action 1: Issue of toolbox talk re-enforcing the 
correct method of exiting vehicles. 
Action 2: Review suitability of company issued 
Safety Footwear. 

032 23/07/18 Keele Road, Keele Operative was exiting lorry loader when 
twisted ankle as shifted weight resulting in 
fracture to ankle.  

Investigation 
complete 

Action 1: Issue of toolbox talk re-enforcing the 
correct method of exiting vehicles. 
Action 2: Review suitability of company issued 
Safety Footwear. 
Action3: Re-issue requirement that ALL incidents 
and accidents are to be reported to management 
at the EARLIEST opportunity 

033 13/03/19 Stapenhill Road, 
Burton 

Operative struck on hand by a kerb stone 
which resulted in multiple fractures to a 
finger.  

Investigation 
complete 

Operative sustained injury, this has been RIDDOR 
reported as a lost time injury. 
Bulletin created and shared across the business.  

034 21/10/19 Leycett Lane, 
Madeley Heath 

Operative was hit head on by another 
vehicle, which was travelling in the 
opposite direction.  

Investigation 
complete 

Operative sustained injury and was admitted to 
hospital. Incident was reported as a lost time injury 
in line with RIDDOR requirements.  

 

P
age 152



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited   
STAFFORDSHIRE PFI HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206                                                          Period Ending: 30 June 2020 
 

Service Providers’ Progress Report    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2 
 
 

Engineering Certifier’s Report 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 153



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                                                                             Page 1 of 12 
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS       
 

      
        Engineering Certifiers Monthly Report 
 

 
June 2020 

 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 1 (Electrical, Structural and Optical Condition) 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER TARGETS 
Maintenance and reporting to be carried out to a high standard with no defects 
Maintenance to be completed within one month of the date due, and details entered on to Asset Management System within 5 
days of completion of work 
Any defect reports to be actioned to ensure all equipment fully meets the requirements of the Service Specification. 
 
The following operatives were checked during the month. 
 
 
South Area. Steve Thomas. (Haughton) 
East Area. John Bagley. (Tamworth) 
North Area. Paul Bailey. (Silverdale)  
 
The checks were carried out with the area supervisors in attendance. 
 
 
Mr Steve Thomas was checked while carrying out cyclic maintenance on lit road lighting units in the 
Haughton area. He was seen to be carrying out these activities correctly, was using correct traffic 
management and he was wearing appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Mr Thomas had made 
an initial site inspection and had correctly filled in the risk assessment form before starting work, also noted 
was Mr Thomas had his field operations manual on board the vehicle for reference. Mr Thomas was 
observed dusting out column bases and washing the lantern bowls. The water used for washing was 
frequently replaced. All lamps that were replaced were correctly date marked. The supporting paperwork 
was filled in correctly. 
 
 
 
Mr John Bagley was checked while carrying out cyclic maintenance on lit road lighting units in the 
Tamworth area. He was seen to be carrying out these activities correctly, was using correct traffic 
management and he was wearing appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Mr Bagley had made 
an initial site inspection and had correctly filled in the risk assessment form before starting work, also noted 
was Mr Bagley had his field operations manual on board the vehicle for reference. Mr Bagley was observed 
dusting out column bases and washing the lantern bowls. The water used for washing was frequently 
replaced. All lamps that were replaced were correctly date marked. The supporting paperwork was filled in 
correctly. 
 
 
 
Mr Paul Bailey was checked while carrying out periodic electrical testing on lit road lighting units in the 
Silverdale area. He was seen to be carrying out these activities correctly, was using correct traffic 
management and he was wearing appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Mr Bailey had made an 
initial site inspection and had correctly filled in the risk assessment form before starting work, also noted 
was Mr Bailey had his field operations manual on board the vehicle for reference. Mr Bailey was observed 
checking polarity, continuity, insulation resistance and earth loop impedance. Fuse size and the tightness of 
electrical connections were also checked. The supporting paperwork was filled in correctly. 
 
 
 Page 154



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                  
                               Page 2 of 12                      
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS                                                        
Report: June 2020 - 2 – 

 

 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 2 (Lighting and Illuminated Traffic Sign Equipment to be Lit) 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER TARGETS 
At least 98% of all equipment to be correctly lit at all times 
Night time Monitors to correctly record all non-compliances to an accuracy of 0.25% 
 
Checks on the work of the Night Monitors were carried out as detailed below. 
 
Area MM4 (Leek). 
                                                                                                                                             
There are 2561 lighting units on this monitor, the patroller Mr Geoff Ruston found a total of 15 faults with 
the Engineering Certifier check monitor identifying 10 additional fault’s resulting in a total of 25 faults 
recorded. This gave a result of 99.02% lit. 
The number of additional faults on this monitor area was outside the acceptable tolerance as the trigger for 
the monitor to fail is >6.4 faults. The patroller will be rechecked in due course.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                  
                               Page 3 of 12                      
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS                                                        
Report: June 2020 - 3 – 

 

 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 3  (Photometric Performance of New & Renewed Lighting Schemes) 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER TARGETS 
The measured Target Illuminance of all selected test sites is to meet or exceed the specified Target Illuminance for the site 
 
90 random sites were checked by the service provider for compliance with this Service Standard. 
 
All the sites checked had readings that met or were above the required level.  
 
Details of the readings obtained can be found in the attached report. 
 
The EC check monitor of 15 random units did not reveal any discrepancies, details of which can be seen in 
the attached report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



CID Street Name Visual 
Ref

Selected for 
test

Date 
Tested

Date 
Updated

Target 
Illumination

Actual 
Illumination Difference

00246782 WOODSIDE CRESCENT 
CLAYTON  Clayton - Newcastle 003 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 27.7 30.2 2.5

00234027 YORK STREET NEWCASTLE  
Town Ward - Newcastle 005 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 45.8 50.4 4.6

00244559
MAYFIELD AVENUE 

THISTLEBERRY  Thistleberry - 
Newcastle

002 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 27.7 31.2 3.5

00247106 CAMBRIDGE DRIVE CLAYTON  
Clayton - Newcastle 008 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 12.3 19.33 7.03

00240993 DUNKIRK NEWCASTLE  Town 
Ward - Newcastle 010 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 48.4 47.8 -0.6

00246556 LINCOLN GROVE CLAYTON  
Clayton - Newcastle 002 02/06/2020 02/06/2020 03/06/2020 27.7 30.7 3

00225962 KIRKSTALL PLACE SEABRIDGE  
Seabridge - Newcastle 002 02/06/2020 02/06/2020 03/06/2020 45.8 44.6 -1.2

00232531 STAFFORD AVENUE CLAYTON  
Clayton - Newcastle 013 02/06/2020 02/06/2020 03/06/2020 36.2 21.76 -14.44

15250150 TURIN DRIVE THISTLEBERRY  
Thistleberry - Newcastle 006 02/06/2020 02/06/2020 03/06/2020 10.3 11.23 0.93

00234275
BRUNSWICK STREET 

NEWCASTLE  Town Ward - 
Newcastle

003 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 29.3 62.2 32.9

15250296 POOL STREET REAR ACCESS  
Thistleberry - Newcastle 001 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 10.3 41.1 30.8

00243509
SANDFORD STREET 

CHESTERTON  Chesterton - 
Newcastle

006 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 48.4 49.9 1.5

15233026 HENSHALL ROAD CHESTERTON  
Chesterton - Newcastle 002 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 48.4 46.4 -2

00103110 SILVERTON CLOSE NEWCASTLE  
Bradwell - Newcastle 001 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 45.8 58 12.2

00102595 ASHCROFT PLACE NEWCASTLE  
Bradwell - Newcastle 001 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 45.8 45.9 0.1

00109265 KEELING STREET WOLSTANTON 
 Porthill - Newcastle 008 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 45.8 46.8 1

00105921 REEVES AVENUE CROSS HEATH  
Cross Heath - Newcastle 009 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 45.8 45.8 0

00108037 BELLEFIELD VIEW MAY BANK  
May Bank - Newcastle 001 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 45.8 44.7 -1.1

15233252 BEATTIE AVENUE CROSS HEATH 
 Cross Heath - Newcastle 003 03/06/2020 03/06/2020 04/06/2020 27.7 28.9 1.2

00236450 LYN AVENUE LICHFIELD  
Christchurch - Lichfield 004 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 27.7 31.1 3.4

15238415
ST CATHERINES ROAD 

LICHFIELD  Christchurch - 
Lichfield

002 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 32.7 43.6 10.9

00239768 MEG LANE BONEY HAY  Boney 
Hay - Burntwood 001 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 27.7 38.4 10.7

00238241
CORSICAN CLOSE CHASE 
TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 

Burntwood
002 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 27.7 32.9 5.2

15238494 HEWITT CL OSE LICHFIELD 
Christchurch - Lichfield 001 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 17.2 20.49 3.29

15239392
ST MATTHEWS AVENUE 

BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - 
Burntwood

001 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 31.4 56.3 24.9

Staffordshire PFI Project Report Reference

Report Date

Page Number

PTOR

Page 1 of 4

17/06/2020

Photometric Testing Operative Results - June 2020

Page 157



15239404 ST LUKES ROAD BURNTWOOD  
Boney Hay - Burntwood 003 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 32.7 43.6 10.9

15241471
WHITEHOUSE CRESCENT 

BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - 
Burntwood

002 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 39.3 53.6 14.3

15239434
FAIRFORD GARDENS 

BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - 
Burntwood

003 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 17.2 21.75 4.55

00238240
BLANDFORD GARDENS 

BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - 
Burntwood

001 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 27.7 32.0 4.3

00037542 FECKNAM WAY LICHFIELD  
Stowe - Lichfield 006 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 45.8 48.3 2.5

00237568 GAIASTOWE LICHFIELD  
Christchurch - Lichfield 001 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 27.7 34.6 6.9

15245442 PARTRIDGE CROFT LICHFIELD  
Stowe - Lichfield 002 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 19 11.85 -7.15

15245769 STOWE ROAD RAB LICHFIELD  
Stowe - Lichfield 009 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 14.6 13.84 -0.76

15253511 KENILWORTH ROAD LICHFIELD  
Sandfields - Lichfield 003 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 16.6 13.18 -3.42

00238612 DARNFORD LANE LICHFIELD  
Sandfields - Lichfield 007 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 45.8 30.8 -15

15250217 SOUTHWARK CLOSE LICHFIELD  
Christchurch - Lichfield 002 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10.3 9.71 -0.59

15245760 ST CHADS ROAD LICHFIELD  
Stowe - Lichfield 015 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 31 42.8 11.8

15250508 LEYFIELDS LICHFIELD  
Christchurch - Lichfield 004 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10.3 9.20 -1.1

00241614 LOMBARD STREET LICHFIELD  
Stowe - Lichfield 004 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 39.5 43.1 3.6

CIP20001072
ASHMEAD ROAD CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

003 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 16.6 12.45 -4.15

CIP20000083 JOHNSON ROAD BURNTWOOD  
Chase Terrace - Burntwood 001 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 16.6 16.37 -0.23

CIP20000628
HIGHFIELD CLOSE 

BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

002 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 16.6 14.66 -1.94

CIP20009000 TEAN CLOSE BURNTWOOD  
Boney Hay - Burntwood 003 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 12.2 15.65 3.45

CIP20000711
BAMPTON AVENUE 

BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

002 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 16.6 14.77 -1.83

CIP20000959
PARKHILL ROAD CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

004 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 34.7 36.0 1.3

CIP20000691
BIRCH TERRACE CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

007 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 22.5 20.92 -1.58

00237889 SHELLEY ROAD CHASE TERRACE 
 Chase Terrace - Burntwood 005 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 36.2 23.01 -13.19

CIP20000874
ROCHESTER AVENUE 

BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

023 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 29.5 25.41 -4.09

CIP20001164
FERNLEIGH AVENUE 

BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

004 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 16.6 14.44 -2.16

Staffordshire PFI Project Report Reference

Report Date

Page Number

PTOR

Page 2 of 4

17/06/2020

Photometric Testing Operative Results - June 2020

Page 158



15250246
ST MARYS ROAD 

CHRISTCHURCH  Christchurch - 
Lichfield

005 08/06/2020 08/06/2020 09/06/2020 14.8 13.72 -1.08

CIP20000672
VISCOUNT ROAD CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

002 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 16.6 19.49 2.89

15241301
SCHOOL CLOSE CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

001 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 38.3 55.9 17.6

00238877 RAILWAY LANE CHASE TERRACE 
 Chase Terrace - Burntwood 004 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 45.8 58.8 13

CIP20001506 LORNE STREET CHASE TERRACE 
 Chase Terrace - Burntwood 002 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 12.3 10.61 -1.69

CIP20000251
VICTORY AVENUE CHASE 
TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 

Burntwood
003 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 16.6 14.90 -1.7

15239736 KEEPERS CLOSE BURNTWOOD  
Chasetown - Burntwood 002 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 32.7 37.6 4.9

15239296 ST PETERS ROAD BURNTWOOD  
Boney Hay - Burntwood 002 09/06/2020 09/06/2020 10/06/2020 25.6 56 30.4

00012151 MAYBURY CLOSE CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 27.7 28.41 0.71

00012122 LANSDOWNE AVENUE CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 007 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.8 44.1 -1.7

00011769 ACACIA CRESCENT CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 003 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 27.7 32.4 4.7

00012474 WHEELER CLOSE CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.8 44.90 -0.9

00239142 BARGATE LANE BREWOOD  
Brewood - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 27.7 26.77 -0.93

00228276 BIRCHES PARK ROAD CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 008 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.8 43.51 -2.29

00246853 AZALEA CLOSE CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 27.7 29.53 1.83

00011935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  
Codsall - Perton 002 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.8 45.1 -0.7

00235297 BENSON CLOSE PERTON  Perton 
- Perton 003 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.8 49.4 3.6

15240006
OUNSDALE CRESCENT 

WOMBOURNE  Womborne - 
Perton

002 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 25.6 59.5 33.9

15239957 MOUNT DRIVE WOMBOURNE  
Womborne - Perton 003 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 17.2 27.88 10.68

15240237 WHITES WOOD WOMBOURNE  
Womborne - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 36.6 52.3 15.7

15240316
VAN DIEMANS ROAD 

WOMBOURNE  Womborne - 
Perton

006 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 31.4 54.6 23.2

00238719 WINDSOR ROAD WOMBOURNE  
Womborne - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.8 54.2 8.4

15240227 JENKS ROAD WOMBOURNE  
Womborne - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 17.3 57.6 40.3

15249944 DUCK LANE CODSALL  Codsall - 
Perton 003 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 33.4 36.6 3.2

15246653 BIGGIN CLOSE PERTON  Perton 
- Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 21.8 23.32 1.52

15249923 MILL SIDE WOMBOURNE  
Womborne - Perton 001 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 10.3 18.45 8.15

Staffordshire PFI Project Report Reference

Report Date

Page Number

PTOR

Page 3 of 4

17/06/2020

Photometric Testing Operative Results - June 2020

Page 159



CIP20005426
COPPER BEECH DRIVE 

WOMBOURNE  Womborne - 
Perton

004 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 16.6 26.36 9.76

CIP20006240 COMMON ROAD WOMBOURNE  
Womborne - Perton 016 15/06/2020 15/06/2020 16/06/2020 45.0 45.3 0.3

15242806 ROMAN VIEW GREAT WYRLEY 002 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16.3 20.63 4.33

15246651 CROSS STREET CHESLYN HAY  
Cheslyn Hay - Perton 003 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 21.8 25.12 3.32

15238999 PARK CLOSE CHESLYN HAY  
Cheslyn Hay - Perton 001 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 25.3 50.7 25.4

15239011 SANDOWN AVENUE CHESLYN 
HAY  Cheslyn Hay - Perton 001 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 28 53.3 25.3

15239418 GLENTHORNE DRIVE GREAT 
WYRLEY  Great Wyrley - Perton 002 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 25.6 39.5 13.9

15242615 TREVOR AVENUE GREAT 
WYRLEY  Great Wyrley - Perton 001 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 27.7 30.5 2.8

00247069 CLUMBER AVENUE CLAYTON  
Clayton - Newcastle 007 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 48.4 51.1 2.7

00242324 KINGSWAY EAST WESTLANDS  
Westlands - Newcastle 003 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 48.4 50 1.6

00225975 DEE LANE SEABRIDGE  
Seabridge - Newcastle 001 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 45.8 51.3 5.5

00245519 WESLEY PLACE THISTLEBERRY  
Thistleberry - Newcastle 007 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 48.4 50.2 1.8

00105562 JASON STREET CROSS HEATH  
Cross Heath - Newcastle 001 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 45.8 49.9 4.1

00108282 MAYFIELD PLACE NEWCASTLE  
May Bank - Newcastle 002 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 45.8 48.8 3

00115059 RUSSELL STREET WOLSTANTON 
 Wolstanton - Newcastle 004 16/06/2020 16/06/2020 17/06/2020 45.8 53.00 7.2

90Number of Items Tested

Staffordshire PFI Project Report Reference

Report Date

Page Number

PTOR

Page 4 of 4

17/06/2020

Photometric Testing Operative Results - June 2020

Page 160



CID Street Name Visual 
Ref

Operative 
Test Date

EC Test 
Date

Operative 
Illuminatio

n
EC 

Illumination Difference Target 
Illumination

15239736 KEEPERS CLOSE BURNTWOOD  
Chasetown - Burntwood 002 08/06/2020 

23:12:53
09/06/2020 

23:20:53 38.1 37.6 -0.50 32.7

CIP20001506 LORNE STREET CHASE TERRACE 
 Chase Terrace - Burntwood 002 08/06/2020 

22:29:53
09/06/2020 

23:00:53 10.53 10.61 0.08 12.3

00238877 RAILWAY LANE CHASE TERRACE 
 Chase Terrace - Burntwood 004 08/06/2020 

22:00:53
09/06/2020 

22:40:53 59.6 58.8 -0.80 45.8

15241301
SCHOOL CLOSE CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

001 08/06/2020 
22:25:53

09/06/2020 
22:50:53 55.7 55.9 0.20 38.3

15239296 ST PETERS ROAD BURNTWOOD  
Boney Hay - Burntwood 002 08/06/2020 

23:17:53
09/06/2020 

23:30:53 55.1 56 0.90 25.6

CIP20000251
VICTORY AVENUE CHASE 
TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 

Burntwood
003 08/06/2020 

22:32:53
09/06/2020 

23:10:53 14.45 14.90 0.45 16.6

CIP20000672
VISCOUNT ROAD CHASE 

TERRACE  Chase Terrace - 
Burntwood

002 08/06/2020 
22:05:53

09/06/2020 
22:30:53 19.58 19.49 -0.09 16.6

00102595 ASHCROFT PLACE NEWCASTLE  
Bradwell - Newcastle 001 02/06/2020 

22:20:40
03/06/2020 

22:45:52 46.1 45.9 -0.20 45.8

15233252 BEATTIE AVENUE CROSS HEATH 
 Cross Heath - Newcastle 003 03/06/2020 

00:42:40
03/06/2020 

23:30:52 28.87 28.9 0.03 27.7

00108037 BELLEFIELD VIEW MAY BANK  
May Bank - Newcastle 001 02/06/2020 

22:50:40
03/06/2020 

23:20:52 43.9 44.7 0.80 45.8

15233026 HENSHALL ROAD CHESTERTON  
Chesterton - Newcastle 002 02/06/2020 

21:59:40
03/06/2020 

22:25:52 46.2 46.4 0.20 48.4

00109265 KEELING STREET WOLSTANTON 
 Porthill - Newcastle 008 02/06/2020 

23:30:40
03/06/2020 

22:55:52 47.1 46.8 -0.30 45.8

00105921 REEVES AVENUE CROSS HEATH  
Cross Heath - Newcastle 009 02/06/2020 

22:41:40
03/06/2020 

23:10:52 44.0 45.8 1.80 45.8

00243509
SANDFORD STREET 

CHESTERTON  Chesterton - 
Newcastle

006 02/06/2020 
22:06:40

03/06/2020 
22:15:52 50.4 49.9 -0.50 48.4

00103110 SILVERTON CLOSE NEWCASTLE  
Bradwell - Newcastle 001 02/06/2020 

21:50:40
03/06/2020 

22:35:52 58.5 58 -0.50 45.8

Number of Tests - 15

Staffordshire PFI Project Report Reference

Report Date

Page Number

PTOR

Page 1 of 1

10/06/2020

Photometric Testing EC Results - June 2020

Page 161



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                  
                               Page 9 of 12                      
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS                                                        
Report: June 2020 - 9 – 

 

 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 4 (Records and Management). 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER TARGETS 
To correctly record details and times as required by appendix G of the Service Specification 
To meet or exceed the operational response times of appendix H of the Service Specification. 
 
The Service Specification does not require the Engineering Certifier (EC) to directly monitor Operational 
Response. The EC does however carry out random checks when undertaking checks of the other 
performance standards. 
 
 
During the month 3 individual fault tickets and 3 emergency call outs, chosen at random were monitored to 
check that the actual attendance times were as recorded on the Asset Management System. 
In all cases the actual repair and call out dates and times agreed with those subsequently recorded. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 162



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                  
                               Page 10 of 12                      
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS                                                        
Report: June 2020 - 10 – 

 

 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 5  (Design, Installation, Commissioning and Decommissioning) 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER TARGETS 
To identify and replace items of equipment that do not meet the service requirements of Appendix B 
To correctly design all new works and to ensure that they meet the Service Requirements of Appendix N 
Carry out all works correctly and within the timescale of Appendix I 
Record all details and times so that any non compliance can be monitored. 
 
A minimum of 10% of new designs were examined and the design process reviewed to ensure the correct 
procedures had been followed. All designs checked appeared to have been correctly prepared. 
 
New Lighting Schemes submitted as completed were checked and verified for compliance with the Service 
Specification. 
 
18 X one stop column replacements were inspected during the month. 
 
  
Any noted defects were passed on to the Asset renewal team for rectification. 
 
 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 6 (Records and Management) 
 
SERVICE PROVIDER TARGETS 
To operate the Records and Management System in accordance with the requirements of Appendix G and Appendix S. 
 
The Engineering Certifier shall arrange for the Asset Management System used to ensure compliance with 
the response times of Appendix G to be audited by an Internal Auditor twice per year and by an External 
Auditor once per year. 
 
Any non-compliance with the response times shall be recorded by the auditor. 
 
 
The first internal audit for the period 2020-2021 took place on 12th May 2020 via a Skype conference call 
due to Covid-19 and visiting restrictions to Eon offices. The results of which have been published.  
 
 
 
The external audit for the period 2020-2021 is planned to take place on August 12th 2020 at the Derby 
office. 
 
 
  
 
The second internal audit for the period 2020-2021 is planned take place on 9th December 2020 at the 
Derby office.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                  
                               Page 11 of 12                      
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS                                                        
Report: June 2020 - 11 – 

 

 
GENERAL COMMENTS/SUMMARY 
 
P.S 1 
An operative from each of the 3 areas was observed carrying out cyclic maintenance activities. 
Follow up checks of the Asset Management System were completed.  
 
 
P.S 2 
The night patrol selected for the monitor was: -  
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
Area MM4 (Leek). 
                                                                                                                                             
There are 2561 lighting units on this monitor, the patroller Mr Geoff Ruston found a total of 15 faults with 
the Engineering Certifier check monitor identifying 10 additional fault’s resulting in a total of 25 faults 
recorded. This gave a result of 99.02% lit. 
The number of additional faults on this monitor area was outside the acceptable tolerance as the trigger for 
the monitor to fail is >6.4 faults. The patroller will be rechecked in due course.  
 
P.S 3 
90 randomly selected sites were checked by the service provider for compliance with this Service Standard 
the EC check monitor of 15 randomly selected units did not reveal any discrepancies. 
 
 
P.S 4 
Audits of 3 Emergency Callouts and 3 Non-Routine Maintenance Repairs were made and checked for 
response times and the updating of the Asset Management System. 
 
 
P.S 5 
The Engineering certifier will continue to check 100% of newly completed schemes. 
A total of 18 X one off column replacements were inspected during the month. 
A minimum of 10% of new designs were checked for compliance with Appendix F. 
 
 
P.S 6 
Any non-compliance with the response times shall be recorded by the auditor. 
 
The first internal audit for the period 2020-2021 is planned to take place on 12th May 2020 at the Derby 
office.  
 
 The external audit for the period 2020-2021 is planned to take place on August 12th 2020 at the Derby 
office. 
 
The second internal audit for the period 2020-2021 is planned take place on 9th December 2020 at the 
Derby office.  
 
 
 
 

Page 164



LIGHTING FOR STAFFORDSHIRE                  
                               Page 12 of 12                      
COMPLIANCE WITH PERFORMANCE STANDARDS                                                        
Report: June 2020 - 12 – 

 

Customer Satisfaction Survey. 
The customer satisfaction survey revealed an overall satisfaction rating of 95.2% 
 
 
Accrual Inspections. 
The Engineering Certifier inspected all accruals submitted for the month. 
 
 
Auxiliary Monitoring / Joint Inspections.  
The auxiliary monitor for painting did not take place during the month as Eon have not yet placed any 
painting orders with the contractor due to the Covid-19 pandemic and trying to avoid any un-necessary 
travel. If painting orders are placed later in the year it is proposed to pick up the auxiliary monitor of 
painting then. Joint inspections of new sites were also made with the Area Lighting Engineer from 
Staffordshire County Council. 
 
 
 
 

S M BOLD   ENGINEERING CERTIFIER 30/06/2020 
 

 
 

Page 165



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited   
STAFFORDSHIRE PFI HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206                                                          Period Ending: 30 June 2020 
 

Service Providers’ Progress Report    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 
 

AARP Progress Report 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 166



PS1a

PFI Team

 Staffordshire PFI Project Christian Downing

02/07/2020

Section Cumulative Previous Month

Units:

Columns 7,303 7,114 189

Total Units 7,303 7,114 189

Points:

Columns 41,630 41,139 491

AARP block 1 column payment deferrals 226 226 0

Total Points 41,856 41,365 491

Cumulative to 30th June 2020

Document Reference

Security Clearance

Document Author

Date

Performance Standard 1a - AARP Blk3

Page 1 of 1

Page 167



Design Phase Period Month Monthly 
Planned Output 

Points

Cuml Planned 
Output Points

CAPE Trigger 
Points Value

Monthly Actual 
Progress

Cuml Actual 
Progress

Progress 
Against Op 

Programme +/-

Progress 
Against CAPE 

Trigger +/-

Phase 1 April 2018 1 464 464 n/a 967 967 503 n/a
May 2018 2 464 927 n/a 448 1,415 488 n/a
June 2018 3 464 1,391 n/a 519 1,934 543 n/a

Phase 2 July 2018 4 464 1,855 n/a 531 2,465 610 n/a
August 2018 5 464 2,318 n/a 486 2,951 633 n/a
September 2018 6 464 2,782 n/a 339 3,290 508 n/a

Phase 3 October 2018 7 464 3,246 2,921 610 3,900 654 979
November 2018 8 464 3,709 3,338 460 4,360 651 1,022
December 2018 9 464 4,173 3,756 117 4,477 304 721

Phase 4 January 2019 10 464 4,637 4,173 656 5,133 496 960
February 2019 11 464 5,100 4,590 547 5,680 580 1,090
March 2019 12 464 5,564 5,008 525 6,205 641 1,197

Phase 5 April 2019 13 464 6,028 5,425 473 6,678 650 1,253
May 2019 14 464 6,491 5,842 294 6,972 481 1,130
June 2019 15 464 6,955 6,260 369 7,341 386 1,081

Phase 6 July 2019 16 464 7,419 6,677 684 8,025 606 1,348
August 2019 17 464 7,882 7,094 544 8,569 687 1,475
September 2019 18 464 8,346 7,511 436 9,005 659 1,494

Phase 7 October 2019 19 464 8,810 7,929 198 9,203 393 1,274
November 2019 20 464 9,273 8,346 375 9,578 305 1,232
December 2019 21 464 9,737 8,763 392 9,970 233 1,207

Phase 8 January 2020 22 464 10,201 9,181 431 10,401 200 1,220
February 2020 23 464 10,664 9,598 589 10,990 326 1,392
March 2020 24 464 11,128 10,015 546 11,536 408 1,521

Phase 9 April 2020 25 464 11,592 10,433 402 11,938 346 1,505
May 2020 26 464 12,055 10,850 385 12,323 268 1,473
June 2020 27 464 12,519 11,267 491 12,814 295 1,547

Phase 10 July 2020 28 464 12,983 11,684    
August 2020 29 464 13,446 12,102    
September 2020 30 464 13,910 12,519    

Phase 11 October 2020 31 464 14,374 12,936    
November 2020 32 464 14,837 13,354    
December 2020 33 464 15,301 13,771    

Phase 12 January 2021 34 464 15,765 14,188    
February 2021 35 464 16,228 14,606    
March 2021 36 464 16,692 15,023    

Phase 13 April 2021 37 464 17,156 15,440    
May 2021 38 464 17,620 15,858   
June 2021 39 464 18,083 16,275   

Phase 14 July 2021 40 464 18,547 16,692   
August 2021 41 464 19,011 17,110   
September 2021 42 464 19,475 17,527   

Phase 15 October 2021 43 464 19,938 17,944   
November 2021 44 464 20,402 18,362   
December 2021 45 464 20,866 18,779   

Phase 16 January 2022 46 464 21,330 19,197   
February 2022 47 464 21,793 19,614   
March 2022 48 464 22,257 20,031   

Phase 17 April 2022 49 464 22,721 20,449   
May 2022 50 464 23,184 20,866   
June 2022 51 464 23,648 21,283   

Phase 18 July 2022 52 464 24,112 21,701   
August 2022 53 464 24,575 22,118   
September 2022 54 464 25,039 22,535   

Phase 19 October 2022 55 464 25,503 22,952   
November 2022 56 464 25,966 23,370   
December 2022 57 464 26,430 23,787   

Phase 20 January 2023 58 464 26,894 24,204   
February 2023 59 464 27,357 24,622   
March 2023 60 464 27,821 25,039

Staffordshire PFI Asset Renewal, AARP Block 3 
Programme.
April 2018 to March 2023.

OPERATIONAL PROGRAMME OPERATIONAL ACTUAL 
PROGRESS

PERFORMANCE AGAINST 
PROGRAMME

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

Apr-20

M
ay-20

Jun-20

Jul-20

Aug-20

Sep-20

O
ct-20

N
ov-20

D
ec-20

Jan-21

Feb-21

M
ar-21

Apr-21

Po
in

ts

Period

Asset Renewal Progress

Actual Progress

Planned Progress

CAPE Trigger

Page 168



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited   
STAFFORDSHIRE PFI HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206                                                          Period Ending: 30 June 2020 
 

Service Providers’ Progress Report    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 4 
 
 

Performance Statistics 
 
 
 

  

Page 169



Beacon Out 6 0.48%

Bollard Damage 1 0.08%

Bollard Out 11 0.87%

Confirmation 24 1.90%

Consecutive Lights Out 16 1.27%

Dayburner 70 5.54%

Emergency Response 38 3.01%

Flickering/Flashing 25 1.98%

Intermittent 5 0.40%

Lantern Damage 6 0.48%

Light Out 632 50.04%

New Installation - Non Private Cable 21 1.66%

New Installation - Planned In Light 17 1.35%

New Installation - Private Cable 2 0.16%

New Lantern Required 22 1.74%

No Supply - Non Private Cable 88 6.97%

Painting 16 1.27%

Permanent Removal 2 0.16%

Planning Inspection 1 0.08%

Plate Missing 1 0.08%

Plate Twisted 7 0.55%

Pruning 7 0.55%

Re-Align 1 0.08%

Rebuild Foundations 3 0.24%

Renumber 1 0.08%

Replace Cutout Non - Private 7 0.55%

See Comments 80 6.33%

Sign Out of Light 152 12.03%

Monthly Statistics Page 1 of 6 02 Jul 2020 14:17

STEANNE
\EON_CDowning

02 Jul 2020

Document Ref:

Issued by:

Date:

EON_STAFFORDSHIRE

E-ON Staffordshire Streetlighting

Monthly Reporting Statistics - Staffordshire PFI
01 June 2020 to 30 June 2020

Page 170



Street Light Dim or Flickering 1 0.08%

Total: 1263 100%

Monthly Statistics Page 3 of 6 02 Jul 2020 14:17

STEANNE
\EON_CDowning

02 Jul 2020

Document Ref:

Issued by:

Date:

EON_STAFFORDSHIRE

E-ON Staffordshire Streetlighting

Monthly Reporting Statistics - Staffordshire PFI
01 June 2020 to 30 June 2020

Page 171



Cyclic Maintenance 29 2.30%

Email 80 6.33%

Engineering Cert. 1 0.08%

Local Authority - Web 237 18.76%

Night Patrol 726 57.48%

Non Destructive Test 1 0.08%

Operative 25 1.98%

Supervisor 155 12.27%

Telephoned 9 0.71%

Total: 1263 100%

Monthly Statistics Page 5 of 6 02 Jul 2020 14:17

STEANNE
\EON_CDowning

02 Jul 2020

Document Ref:

Issued by:

Date:

EON_STAFFORDSHIRE

E-ON Staffordshire Streetlighting

Monthly Reporting Statistics - Staffordshire PFI
01 June 2020 to 30 June 2020

Page 172



98.70

98.80

98.90

99.00

99.10

99.20

99.30

99.40

99.50

99.60

99.70

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

Yrs 11 to 15 Average
Trend

Yrs 6 to 10 Average
Trend

Yrs 1 to 5 Average
Trend

PS 2 - Percentage of Lighting Equipment Lit

P
age 173



P
age 174



0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

Yrs 11 to 15 Average
Trend

Yrs 5 to 10 Average
Trend

Yrs 1 to 5 Average
Trend

PS 4a - Emergency Events By Volume

P
age 175



0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

Yrs 11 to 15 Average
Trend

Yrs 5 to 10 Average
Trend

Yrs 1 to 5 Average
Trend

PS 4b - Fault Repairs By Volume

P
age 176



E.ON Energy Solutions Limited   
STAFFORDSHIRE PFI HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SERVICE PROVIDERS’ PROGRESS REPORT No. 206                                                          Period Ending: 30 June 2020 
 

Service Providers’ Progress Report    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 5 
 
 

Performance Standard Report 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 177



Report No: 206
Period: 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Monthly Amount (MADt) 1,060,802
Number of days in Period (N) 30
Items of Apparatus at end of previous Period (U) 108,435
Items in all New/Renewed Lighting Systems (T) 26,421
Indexation Factor (RPIFCy) 1.6123
RPIFCy = (RPIy-1 / RPIo)
RPIy-1 @ Feb 2018 278.6
RPIo @ Feb 2002 172.8 £
RPIFCy 1.6123

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

11.84             

-                 

-                 

Total Deductions 11.8               

PS I(b)

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

Summary

PS IV

Electrical, Structural & Optical Inspection & Testing

Photometric Performance

PS III

Lighting Equipment Lit

PS II

PS V

Non-emergency Repairs

Response to Emergency Events

Records and Management

Design, Installation, Commissioning & Decommissioning

PS VI

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 1 SummaryPage 178



206
Period: 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = {MADt/U} x M x 2 x {1.1^(M-1)}
where:
M = no. of reported consecutive elapsed months non-compliant

Street No Units Months late (M) £

No non-compliant inspections in the period.

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

Total Deduction - PS 1b -                 

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 1b - Electrical, Structural & Optical Inspection & Testing

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 2 PS 1bPage 179



Report No: 206

1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = MADt x {((98 - P) x 3) + 3} / 100
where:
P = Percentage Lit = 100 - {(N x 100) / M}

Patrol Area Date M N P
BM1 Burton (Victoria, Horninglow, Anslow, 

Branston) 18/06/2020 2306 17 99.26

BM2 Burton (Burton Town, Stretton) 25/06/2020 2086 17 99.19

BM3 Burton (Winshill, Stapenhill) 24/06/2020 2087 21 98.99

BM4 Burton (Shobnall, Waterside) 28/06/2020 2212 24 98.92

BM5 East Staffs (Uttoxeter Heath & South) 07/06/2020 1848 14 99.24

BM6 East Staffs (Mayfield, Denstone, Rocester, 
Marchington) 09/06/2020 1119 13 98.84

BM7 East Staffs (Tutbury, Rolleston, Barton-u-
Needwood, Yoxall, Abbots Bromley) 01/06/2020 1857 24 98.71

CM1 Cannock (Rugeley, Etchinghill, Brereton) 23/06/2020 3719 20 99.46

CM2 Cannock (Cannock Wood, Heath Hayes, 
Chadsmoor, Pye Green) 4717 0 100.00

CM3 Cannock (Norton Canes, Longford, Hawkes 
Green) 17/06/2020 4718 26 99.45

CM4 Cannock (Colwich, Weston, Salt) 21/06/2020 1069 10 99.06

LM1 Lichfield (Christchurch, Stowe, Streethay) 03/06/2020 2232 10 99.55

LM2 Lichfield (Boley Park, Sandsfields) 05/06/2020 2055 15 99.27

LM3 Lichfield (Whittington, Fazeley, Wiggington, 
Drayton Basset, Hints) 08/06/2020 1478 9 99.39

LM4 Lichfield (Shenstone, Wall, Hammerwich) 10/06/2020 1464 10 99.32

LM5 Lichfield (Chase Terrace, Chasetown, 
Burntwood) 12/06/2020 2095 17 99.19

LM6 Lichfield (Boney Hay, Longdon, Armitage, 
Handsacre) 17/06/2020 1756 12 99.32

LM7 Lichfield (Kings Bromley, Alrewas, Mavesyn 
Ridware) 24/06/2020 1281 8 99.38

MM1 Moorlands (Biddulph, Brown Edge) 02/06/2020 2868 6 99.79

MM2 Moorlands (Warslow, Waterhouses, Ipstones, 
Kingsley) 04/06/2020 1029 9 99.13

MM3 Moorlands (Leek, Bradnop, Tittesworth) 08/06/2020 2546 26 98.98

MM4 Moorlands (Cheadle, Alton, Checkley) 10/06/2020 2315 11 99.52

MM5 Moorlands (Cheddleton, Endon and Stanley, 
Werrington) 26/06/2020 2099 12 99.43

MM6 Moorlands (Draycott, Forsbrook, Caverswall, 
Dilhorne) 114/6/2020 980 5 99.49

NM1 Newcastle (Porthill, Wolstanton, Maybank, 
Thistleberry, Clayton) 01/06/2020 3218 11 99.66

NM2 Newcastle (Newchapel, Kidsgrove, Butt Lane, 
Talke) 03/06/2020 2936 27 99.08

NM3 Newcastle (Town Ward, Silverdale) 07/06/2020 2632 28 98.94

NM4 Newcastle (Holditch, Cross Heath, Westlands, 
Seabridge) 09/07/2020 2724 9 99.67

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 2 - Lighting Equipment Lit

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 3 PS 2Page 180



Report No: 206

1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = MADt x {((98 - P) x 3) + 3} / 100
where:
P = Percentage Lit = 100 - {(N x 100) / M}

Patrol Area Date M N P

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 2 - Lighting Equipment Lit

NM5 Newcastle (Chesterton, Bradwell, Halmerend) 15/06/2020 2399 24 99.00

NM6 Newcastle (Subways) 18/06/2020 394 0 100.00

OM1 Mid Staffs (Audley, Bignall End, Betley, 
Madeley, Keele, Ashley) 22/06/2020 2475 18 99.27

OM2 Mid Staffs (Swynnerton, Barlaston, Fulford, 
Stone) 14/06/2020 3970 25 99.37

OM3 Mid Staffs (Stone Rural, Titensor, Swynerton) 18/06/2020 1048 6 99.43

PM1 South Staffs (Dunston, Huntington, Penkridge, 
Brewood) 24/06/2020 3033 14 99.54

PM2 South Staffs (Cheslyn Hay, Great Wyrley, 
Essington, Featherstone) 28/06/2020 3591 18 99.50

PM3 South Staffs (Codsall, Perton, Patshull, 
Pattingham) 29/06/2020 2961 14 99.53

PM4 South Staffs (Lower Penn, Wombourne, 
Swindon, Himley, Kinver) 23/06/2020 2863 10 99.65

SM1 South Staffs (Lower Penn, Wombourne, 
Swindon, Himley, Kinver) 21/06/2020 4371 18 99.59

SM2 Stafford (Littleworth, Rising Brook, Highfields, 
Rowley) 30/06/2020 3603 23 99.36

SM3 Stafford (Creswell, Seighford, Gnosall, 
Eccleshall) 05/06/2020 1192 8 99.33

SM4 Stafford (Baswich, Weeping Cross, Wildwood) 12/06/2020 1766 7 99.60

SM5 Stafford 17/06/2020 37 0 100.00

TM1 Tamworth (The Leys, Leyfields) 03/06/2020 2499 23 99.08

TM2 Tamworth (Bolehall, Amington, Glascote) 10/06/2020 2581 23 99.11

TM3 Tamworth (Stonydelph, Belgrave) 16/06/2020 2186 16 99.27

TM4 Tamworth (Wilnecote, Dosthill, Kettlebrook) 17/06/2020 3202 34 98.94

TM5 Tamworth (Cycle Routes) 26/06/2020 461 4 99.13

TM6 Tamworth (Cycle Routes) 29/06/2020 635 6 99.06

108,713 702 99.35

Total Deduction - PS 2 -                

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 4 PS 2Page 181



Report No: 206
Period: 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = ((MADt/U) x (N/S) x T) x 5
where:
N = no. of failures recorded
S = no. of lighting systems sampled

CID Street Unit # Target Actual Variance Sampled (S) Failures (N)
enter '1' or '0' enter '1' or '0'

246782 WOODSIDE CRESCENT CLAYTON  Clayton - Newcastle 3 27.7 30.2 2.5 1 0

234027 YORK STREET NEWCASTLE  Town Ward - Newcastle 5 45.8 50.4 4.6 1 0

244559 MAYFIELD AVENUE THISTLEBERRY  Thistleberry - Newcastle 2 27.7 31.2 3.5 1 0

244559 MAYFIELD AVENUE THISTLEBERRY  Thistleberry - Newcastle 2 27.7 31.2 3.5 1 0

247106 CAMBRIDGE DRIVE CLAYTON  Clayton - Newcastle 8 12.3 19.33 7.03 1 0

240993 DUNKIRK NEWCASTLE  Town Ward - Newcastle 10 48.4 47.8 -0.6 1 0

240993 DUNKIRK NEWCASTLE  Town Ward - Newcastle 10 48.4 47.8 -0.6 1 0

246556 LINCOLN GROVE CLAYTON  Clayton - Newcastle 2 27.7 30.7 3 1 0

225962 KIRKSTALL PLACE SEABRIDGE  Seabridge - Newcastle 2 45.8 44.6 -1.2 1 0

225962 KIRKSTALL PLACE SEABRIDGE  Seabridge - Newcastle 2 45.8 44.6 -1.2 1 0

232531 STAFFORD AVENUE CLAYTON  Clayton - Newcastle 13 36.2 21.76 -14.44 1 0

15250150 TURIN DRIVE THISTLEBERRY  Thistleberry - Newcastle 6 10.3 11.23 0.93 1 0

234275 BRUNSWICK STREET NEWCASTLE  Town Ward - Newcastle 3 29.3 62.2 32.9 1 0

15250296 POOL STREET REAR ACCESS  Thistleberry - Newcastle 1 10.3 41.1 30.8 1 0

15250296 POOL STREET REAR ACCESS  Thistleberry - Newcastle 1 10.3 41.1 30.8 1 0

236450 LYN AVENUE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 4 27.7 31.1 3.4 1 0

236450 LYN AVENUE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 4 27.7 31.1 3.4 1 0

236450 LYN AVENUE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 4 27.7 31.1 3.4 1 0

15238415 ST CATHERINES ROAD LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 2 32.7 43.6 10.9 1 0

239768 MEG LANE BONEY HAY  Boney Hay - Burntwood 1 27.7 38.4 10.7 1 0

239768 MEG LANE BONEY HAY  Boney Hay - Burntwood 1 27.7 38.4 10.7 1 0

239768 MEG LANE BONEY HAY  Boney Hay - Burntwood 1 27.7 38.4 10.7 1 0

238241 CORSICAN CLOSE CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 2 27.7 32.9 5.2 1 0

238241 CORSICAN CLOSE CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 2 27.7 32.9 5.2 1 0

238241 CORSICAN CLOSE CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 2 27.7 32.9 5.2 1 0

15238494 HEWITT CL OSE LICHFIELD Christchurch - Lichfield 1 17.2 20.49 3.29 1 0

15238494 HEWITT CL OSE LICHFIELD Christchurch - Lichfield 1 17.2 20.49 3.29 1 0

15238494 HEWITT CL OSE LICHFIELD Christchurch - Lichfield 1 17.2 20.49 3.29 1 0

15239392 ST MATTHEWS AVENUE BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 1 31.4 56.3 24.9 1 0

15239404 ST LUKES ROAD BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 3 32.7 43.6 10.9 1 0

15241471 WHITEHOUSE CRESCENT BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 2 39.3 53.6 14.3 1 0

15239434 FAIRFORD GARDENS BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 3 17.2 21.75 4.55 1 0

15239434 FAIRFORD GARDENS BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 3 17.2 21.75 4.55 1 0

15239434 FAIRFORD GARDENS BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 3 17.2 21.75 4.55 1 0

238240 BLANDFORD GARDENS BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 1 27.7 32 4.3 1 0

238240 BLANDFORD GARDENS BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 1 27.7 32 4.3 1 0

37542 FECKNAM WAY LICHFIELD  Stowe - Lichfield 6 45.8 48.3 2.5 1 0

237568 GAIASTOWE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 1 27.7 34.6 6.9 1 0

237568 GAIASTOWE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 1 27.7 34.6 6.9 1 0

237568 GAIASTOWE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 1 27.7 34.6 6.9 1 0

15245442 PARTRIDGE CROFT LICHFIELD  Stowe - Lichfield 2 19 11.85 -7.15 1 0

15245769 STOWE ROAD RAB LICHFIELD  Stowe - Lichfield 9 14.6 13.84 -0.76 1 0

15253511 KENILWORTH ROAD LICHFIELD  Sandfields - Lichfield 3 16.6 13.18 -3.42 1 0

238612 DARNFORD LANE LICHFIELD  Sandfields - Lichfield 7 45.8 30.8 -15 1 0

238612 DARNFORD LANE LICHFIELD  Sandfields - Lichfield 7 45.8 30.8 -15 1 0

238612 DARNFORD LANE LICHFIELD  Sandfields - Lichfield 7 45.8 30.8 -15 1 0

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 3 - Photometric Performance

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 5 PS 3Page 182



Report No: 206
Period: 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = ((MADt/U) x (N/S) x T) x 5
where:
N = no. of failures recorded
S = no. of lighting systems sampled

CID Street Unit # Target Actual Variance Sampled (S) Failures (N)
enter '1' or '0' enter '1' or '0'

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 3 - Photometric Performance

15250217 SOUTHWARK CLOSE LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 2 10.3 9.71 -0.59 1 0

15245760 ST CHADS ROAD LICHFIELD  Stowe - Lichfield 15 31 42.8 11.8 1 0

15250508 LEYFIELDS LICHFIELD  Christchurch - Lichfield 4 10.3 9.2 -1.1 1 0

241614 LOMBARD STREET LICHFIELD  Stowe - Lichfield 4 39.5 43.1 3.6 1 0

CIP20001072 ASHMEAD ROAD CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 3 16.6 12.45 -4.15 1 0

CIP20000083 JOHNSON ROAD BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 1 16.6 16.37 -0.23 1 0

CIP20000628 HIGHFIELD CLOSE BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 2 16.6 14.66 -1.94 1 0

CIP20009000 TEAN CLOSE BURNTWOOD  Boney Hay - Burntwood 3 12.2 15.65 3.45 1 0

CIP20000711 BAMPTON AVENUE BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 2 16.6 14.77 -1.83 1 0

CIP20000959 PARKHILL ROAD CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 4 34.7 36 1.3 1 0

CIP20000691 BIRCH TERRACE CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 7 22.5 20.92 -1.58 1 0

237889 SHELLEY ROAD CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 5 36.2 23.01 -13.19 1 0

237889 SHELLEY ROAD CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 5 36.2 23.01 -13.19 1 0

237889 SHELLEY ROAD CHASE TERRACE  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 5 36.2 23.01 -13.19 1 0

CIP20000874 ROCHESTER AVENUE BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 23 29.5 25.41 -4.09 1 0

CIP20001164 FERNLEIGH AVENUE BURNTWOOD  Chase Terrace - Burntwood 4 16.6 14.44 -2.16 1 0

15250246 ST MARYS ROAD CHRISTCHURCH  Christchurch - Lichfield 5 14.8 13.72 -1.08 1 0

12151 MAYBURY CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 1 27.7 28.41 0.71 1 0

12151 MAYBURY CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 1 27.7 28.41 0.71 1 0

12122 LANSDOWNE AVENUE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 7 45.8 44.1 -1.7 1 0

12122 LANSDOWNE AVENUE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 7 45.8 44.1 -1.7 1 0

12122 LANSDOWNE AVENUE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 7 45.8 44.1 -1.7 1 0

12122 LANSDOWNE AVENUE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 7 45.8 44.1 -1.7 1 0

11769 ACACIA CRESCENT CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 3 27.7 32.4 4.7 1 0

11769 ACACIA CRESCENT CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 3 27.7 32.4 4.7 1 0

11769 ACACIA CRESCENT CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 3 27.7 32.4 4.7 1 0

11769 ACACIA CRESCENT CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 3 27.7 32.4 4.7 1 0

11769 ACACIA CRESCENT CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 3 27.7 32.4 4.7 1 0

12474 WHEELER CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 1 45.8 44.9 -0.9 1 0

12474 WHEELER CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 1 45.8 44.9 -0.9 1 0

12474 WHEELER CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 1 45.8 44.9 -0.9 1 0

239142 BARGATE LANE BREWOOD  Brewood - Perton 1 27.7 26.77 -0.93 1 0

228276 BIRCHES PARK ROAD CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 8 45.8 43.51 -2.29 1 0

246853 AZALEA CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 1 27.7 29.53 1.83 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

11935 CHESTNUT CLOSE CODSALL  Codsall - Perton 2 45.8 45.1 -0.7 1 0

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 6 PS 3Page 183



Report No: 206
Period: 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = (MADt /(24 x N)) x M x 0.12 x {1.2^(M-1)}
where:
M = no. of consecutive elapsed hours exceeding response time

Job No. M £

No non-compliant responses in period

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

Total Deduction - PS 4a -                 

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 4a - Response to Emergency Events

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 7 PS 4aPage 184



Report No: 206
Period: 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = (MADt /(U x N)) x M x 10 x {1.1^(M-1)}
where:
M = no. of consecutive elapsed days exceeding response time

Job No. Description Unit # Street Town M £

ST162635 OOL 11 GREENGATE STREET, CASTLETOWN STAFFORD 3 11.84                  

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

-                      

Total Deduction - PS 4b 11.84                  

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 4b - Non-Emergency Repairs

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 8 PS 4bPage 185



Report No: 206
01/11/2013 1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = (MADt/U) x M x 15 x {1.1^(M-1)}
where:
M = no. of reported consecutive elapsed months non-compliant

System Reference Unit M £

No non-compliant systems in month

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

Total Deduction - PS 5 -                 

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 5 - Design, Installation, Commissioning / Decommissioning

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 9 PS 5Page 186



Report No: 206
1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = £50 x RPIFCy x W x M x {1.1^(M-1)}
where:
M = no. of consecutive elapsed days exceeding response time

Activity Weighting M £ per activity No. £ Total

Data Entry 1 day late 0.1 1 8.06               -                 

Data Entry 2 days late 0.1 2 17.73             -                 

Data Entry 3 days late 0.1 3 29.26             -                 

Data Entry 4 days late 0.1 4 42.92             -                 

Data Entry 5 days late 0.1 5 59.01             -                 

Data Entry 6 days late 0.1 6 77.90             -                 

Data Entry 7 days late 0.1 7 99.97             -                 

Data Entry 8 days late 0.1 8 125.67           -                 

Data Entry 9 days late 0.1 9 155.52           -                 

Data Entry 10 days late 0.1 10 190.08           -                 

Data Entry 12 days late 0.1 12 276.00           -                 

Data Entry 13 days late 0.1 13 328.90           -                 

Data Entry 14 days late 0.1 14 389.62           -                 

Data Entry 16 days late 0.1 16 538.79           -                 

Data Entry 19 days late 0.1 19 851.59           -                 

Data Entry 20 days late 0.1 20 986.05           -                 

Data Entry 28 days late 0.1 28 2,959.16        -                 

Customer Care
Telephone answer/response % 0.5 1 40.31             -                 

Written correspondence 0.1 14 389.62           -                 

Consultation for Asset Renewal 5 1 403.07           -                 

Notify property owners 5 1 403.07           -                 

AMS energy accuracy 1 1 80.61             -                 

Publish customer care charter 1 1 80.61             -                 

Update & republish charter 1 1 80.61             -                 

Update & republish website 1 1 80.61             -                 

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 6 - Records & Management

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 10 PS 6Page 187



Report No: 206
1-Jun-20 to 30-Jun-20

Deduction = £50 x RPIFCy x W x M x {1.1^(M-1)}
where:
M = no. of consecutive elapsed days exceeding response time

Activity Weighting M £ per activity No. £ Total

Staffordshire Street Lighting PFI

Performance Standard Report

PS 6 - Records & Management

Freephone facility 1 1 80.61             -                 

Annual reports 0.5 1 40.31             -                 

Update competence register 0.5 1 40.31             -                 

Council request for meeting 5 1 403.07           -                 

Submit SARP as Appx 'M' 1 1 80.61             -                 

Total Deduction - PS 6 -                 

Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206 11 PS 6Page 188



 

                  

 

             Energy Solutions Limited 
Infrastructure Services 

 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 HIGHWAY LIGHTING  

 PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 
 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT FOR PERIOD 

19TH MAY 2018 TO 18TH MAY 2019 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Page 189



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 2 of 27 
 

 

 

Introduction 

 

This report is prepared by the Service Provider, E.ON Energy Solutions Limited, in accordance 

with its obligations contained under Schedule 4, Part B. 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

1.0 Introduction by Staffordshire County Council 

 

2.0 Project Overview 

 

3.0 Introduction to E.ON 

 

4.0 Progress Report 

 

5.0 Customer Service Satisfaction Survey – Summary of Results 

 

6.0 Crime and Safety Improvement Plan 

 

7.0 Annual Environmental Plan 

 

8.0 Annual Innovation Plan 

 

9.0 Summary 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 190



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 3 of 27 
 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND FOREWORD BY STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

Prior to the commencement of the Street Lighting Private Finance Initiative (PFI) contract 

Staffordshire County Council was responsible for 99,000 units of street lighting 

equipment. With an average design life for a street light of 25 - 30 years and with 24 % of 

street lights age expired, there was significant risk to the public from street lighting 

column failure. The annual investment budget fell considerably short of providing an 

acceptable solution to a rapidly degrading lighting stock and hence a longer term 

solution was developed in the form of a PFI. In May 2003 Lighting for Staffordshire 

commenced a programme of renewal and maintenance works for the 25 year term PFI 

contract. This would ensure the condition of the County’s road lighting stock would be 

maintained at the appropriate level for the foreseeable future. 

 

The Project will therefore provide a continuous investment programme that will halt and 

reverse equipment degradation through the provision of a modern standard of road 

lighting which is and will continue to be designed to provide an economic and effective 

level of lighting whilst protecting and enhancing the environment. 

 

The PFI project forms an integral part of Staffordshire County Council’s priority outcomes 

and aims by the provision of good lighting and an efficient lighting service to support our 

Vision – A connected Staffordshire, where everyone has the opportunity to prosper, be 

healthy and happy. 

 

 

Helen Fisher 

Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Transport 

 

 

 

  

  

Page 191



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 4 of 27 
 

 

2.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW, MAY 2019 

 

The Staffordshire Highway Lighting PFI project launched in May 2003 as a partnership 

between Staffordshire County Council and Lighting for Staffordshire targeting the 

County’s 99,000+ street lights, illuminated signs and bollards to provide longevity through 

structured maintenance and replacement regimes to assist in improving road safety, 

reductions in crime and the fear of crime. 

 

Maintenance activities including timely lamp changes, lantern and bollard cleaning, 

periodic electrical and structural inspections keep the assets in good working order whilst 

those assets reaching the end of their maintainable life are programmed for 

replacement. 

 

24 hours a day, 365 days a year coverage is provided as standard to ensure that those 

unforeseen emergency events that could cause harm to residents or property are dealt 

with quickly and professionally to reduce risks. 

 

Performance monitoring of the services provided is ongoing and continuous by Lighting 

for Staffordshire, Staffordshire County Council and Government appointed National 

Auditors. 

 

Over the past 16 years the street lighting industry has grown and developed at a 

significant and amazing pace which can be partly attributed to funding investments 

through PFI’s and the genuine desire to provide innovative energy saving solutions to 

provide sustainable support to something most people take for granted. There are 

continuing developments such as lamp sources that use up to 70% less energy, systems 

that use Wi-Fi to remotely control lights and in built dimming capabilities that reduce 

power consumption and output whilst most of us sleep.  

 

This report concentrates on the targets and achievements of year 11 of the Annual 

Apparatus Renewal Programme (AARP), 19 May 2018 to 18 May 2019 as well as a look 

ahead to our future plans and aspirations. 

 

 

Paul Slade 

Regional Operations Manager 

Energy Solutions Limited 

 Infrastructure Services 

  

Page 192



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 5 of 27 
 

3.0 Introduction to E.ON 

 

        We are one of the UK's leading power and gas companies - generating electricity, and 

retailing power and gas. We're part of the E.ON group, the world's largest investor-owned 

energy service provider employing around 9,400 people in the UK and 43,000 worldwide. 

 

Our core focus is to provide decentralised, green, and interconnected solutions that 

address the needs of our customers and those of the environment. We aim to lead the 

global shift towards new technology by working with customers, companies and across 

communities to make energy simpler, smarter and more sustainable. 

 

Around 4.3 million people choose E-on for their electricity and gas making us one of the 

leading energy companies in the UK.  

 

Our business mirrors the major changes that are 

happening in energy today. These are the increasing 

demand for innovative solutions, global growth of 

renewables to tackle climate change and 

transformation to a smarter energy system. 

 

All residential electricity we provide is matched from a 

renewable source such as wind, biomass and solar. 

Every unit of electricity is backed by 100% renewable 

electricity from our renewable assets, the power we 

buy from independent wind power generators in the 

UK, and from renewable energy certificates. 

 

Since 2007 we’ve invested more than €9.5 billion in wind (onshore and offshore), solar, 

biomass, and other renewables.  

Renewables, which are increasingly 

self-financing, will continue to be a 

key focus going forward. Our 

investment into renewable energy 

technology means we’re one of the 

leading green generators in the UK, 

with wind farms located from 

Cambridgeshire to Kintyre. We also 

own and operate one of the UK’s 

largest dedicated biomass power 

stations at Lockerbie. 

 

 

Page 193



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 6 of 27 
 

 

We've also built a number of Combined Heat and Power 

(CHP) plants, which are much more efficient than 

traditional power plants. As well as making energy 

cleaner, we want to make it simpler. We've talked to 

customers to find out what they want and have introduced 

things like clear, single-sheet bills and fewer tariffs that 

are easier to understand. We’re doing more to help 

customers save energy and money too, by giving them 

free energy saving hints and tips. 

 

E.ON Energy Solutions Limited is responsible for offering 

low carbon energy solutions to businesses and Local 

Authorities across the UK, through a full value chain of services to our customers, from 

initial research and development through to retail energy supplies. Our solutions can 

range from simple advice, to a complete, design, supply, install and on-going 

maintenance of “turnkey” packages utilising all onsite renewable technology on both new 

and existing developments ranging from a single property, such as a school, through to 

complete heat and power networks and energy centres on large regeneration or new 

build projects including ESCo provision. 

 

Electric Vehicle charging is at the heart of E.ON’s strategy to be partner of choice for 

sustainable energy and mobility solutions. As part of this vision we have created a 

global E.ON Drive business which is focussed on delivering electric vehicle infrastructure 

on scale and support our drive to have one of the largest networks in the UK and 

Europe. 

 

E.ON has a strong track record in 

installing and operating EV networks 

on a large scale across major cities in 

Europe and also connecting cities 

and countries with our network. We 

are committed to developing 

innovative solutions and being at the 

forefront of new and emerging 

technologies. We offer a full end to 

end solutions including hardware, 

fully integrated backend systems 

and digital solutions. We install, 

manage and operate extensive 

networks across many countries such 

as Denmark where we manage a 

network of 3500 posts. 

Page 194



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 7 of 27 
 

 

The E.ON Energy Solutions team of Infrastructure Services has extensive operational and 

management experience in the external lighting market; providing a true one-stop-shop 

offering from design, consultancy and construction through to connection and long term 

maintenance for street lighting. 

 

We have continued to transform our business to meet demands and expectations of the 

future. We provide consistent support to our strategic objectives and improve efficiency 

through closer sharing of best practice, resource and knowledge and have continued to 

welcome new people who will energise, focus and invigorate what is already a highly 

frenetic and motivated team. 

 

We have continued with investment into our Street 

Lighting fleet to the tune of over £2 million and now have 

vehicles that are not only more efficient but also carry 

additional safety features.  

 

 

To support our sustainable growth, we have expanded our portfolios outside of our 

normal geographic boundaries as well as the solutions we can offer to both new and 

existing customers. With the advent of ‘smart city’ technologies, the humble street light 

plays an important part as the most prolific and strategically placed asset to assist in the 

necessary upgrading and development of the infrastructure in the new age. 

 

Our recent transition into becoming an accredited internal training provider for our 

Apprenticeship Programme, coupled with our positive mentoring scheme, ensures our 

Apprentices receive the very best training and support throughout their development. 

In terms of numbers for the Staffordshire PFI, 11 Apprentices have been registered in 

since 2012 and of these, 3 have successfully completed their programmes, 2 are due to 

complete this year and 6 are progressing well along their journey. 

 

 

 

  

Page 195



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 8 of 27 
 

4.0 PROGRESS REPORT 

 

4.1 Asset Renewal Progress Update 

 

Our asset renewal teams review the condition of every lamppost within the County 

considering their age profile to make sure that they continue to be structurally safe, 

economically viable to maintain and not likely to become structurally defective through 

age degradation or environmental factors. Those units failing any of the categories are 

programmed, using an additional assessment of risk, for replacement either as single 

units or as complete schemes where most of the lampposts in the road are affected and 

require replacement.  

 

Every road throughout the County has a designated 

classification, which is not simply dependent upon a 

road being an A or B road, but also considers usage, 

location, speed, traffic flows, and the like. This 

classification is what ultimately determines the 

appropriate level of lighting required for that road 

and it is from this information that the lighting 

design can be determined.  

 

Furthermore, we can determine where we can implement dimming strategies to reduce 

night time light levels and with that, the energy consumed. When considering new 

schemes and any alterations required to meet this, existing 

locations are considered to reduce unnecessary disturbance 

to the footpaths and ultimately the community. Where this 

is not possible, new locations are selected as 

sympathetically as possible within the existing road layout 

but this may mean new positions where street lights have 

not previously been.  

 

Staffordshire remains the only operational PFI with an asset 

replacement programme spanning the 25-year contract term. Other 

contracts replace all units within an intensive 5-year programme 

irrespective of condition, rather than utilising the maximum life of 

the asset and replacing units when necessary. This method of 

contract delivery provides a smoother, more sustainable and 

affordable replacement programme when the new assets require 

review again in approximately 40 years.  

 

The continuous cycle of replacement has enabled us to consider new technologies as they 

emerge. When new products or wholesale technological advancements become available 

we can consider benefits such as reductions in ongoing maintenance costs, improved 

Page 196



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 9 of 27 
 

lighting abilities that may reduce the number of assets requiring to be installed, reduced 

power consumption which reduces energy costs alongside other factors that may 

detrimentally affect how we deliver quality into the lighting stock. 

 

LED (Light Emitting Diode) technology has been one of the fastest growing and most 

beneficial advancements to the industry since the external lighting market commenced. 

We initially introduced the new lanterns into residential areas of Staffordshire for two 

reasons - this represented a higher proportion of the assets and provided the same type 

of white light technology we were already using. After considering the level of energy 

savings that could be made alongside the potential reductions in maintenance, this 

became a viable solution. Good value has continued to be returned when considering the 

excellent performance of the lanterns and the ability to utilise multilevel dimming.  

 

 
 

Initially, we held off using this technology to meet our primary, higher classification road 

lighting solutions due to the initial investment costs failing to balance the investment 

and return. However, as the technology progressed and the highly competitive market 

drove down costs, the solution reached the point where it could be rolled out as a 

standard solution throughout replacement programmes. There will always be occasions 

where this solution is not viable or suitable for the location and in those instances more 

traditional lamp sources will still be used.  

 

To better explain the benefits and considerations that led 

us to implement LED technologies the following 

adequately sums up the history and primary reasons why 

this was, and still is, too good to refuse; all previous street 

lighting lanterns utilised lamp technology based upon how 

elemental gases and chemicals generate light when they 

are ignited or subject to heat. All lanterns therefore had an 

initial “warm up” period as the temperature of the gases 

increased to the point where optimum light was produced.  

 

Switch on times were therefore set to allow the lamp warm up to be completed when 

the light was needed. LED lamp switch on is instantaneous and by removing the warm 

up period we can switch lights on fractionally later, and whilst seven or eight minutes per 

lantern per night may not sound like a huge saving, when this is multiplied across the 

whole of the UK’s lighting network, it quickly becomes tangible and substantial. 

Page 197

https://www.google.co.uk/imgres?imgurl=http://www.midlandcountiesstreetlighting.co.uk/GECZ9530Nottsfeb05.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.midlandcountiesstreetlighting.co.uk/photos6.html&docid=NCcx5xIa2nPMqM&tbnid=ECIlUhwGvUaVMM:&vet=10ahUKEwif5NqlzvLcAhXRaFAKHUarAKwQMwi8ASgcMBw..i&w=576&h=543&bih=675&biw=1536&q=SOX lamp&ved=0ahUKEwif5NqlzvLcAhXRaFAKHUarAKwQMwi8ASgcMBw&iact=mrc&uact=8


E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 10 of 27 
 

 

LED lanterns offer a versatile light output whilst significantly 

reducing energy consumption. In 2003 SOX lamps were used and 

the 26-watt output lamp consumed 59 watts of energy to generate 

this. Next onto the market came PLL (compact fluorescent lighting) 

and the 36-watt output lamp consumed the same energy to 

generate this, which was a significant improvement as it 

represented a 38% saving in energy for every change made. We can 

now utilise the LED equivalent scheme, which in most cases can be 

achieved with a lamp that consumes less than 22 watts per hour.  

 

Compared to PLL, this presents a saving of 38%, and when compared back to SOX lamps 

that were used at the start of the contract, we are now making a combined saving of over 

62% without any further consideration for the potential to apply dimming. These 

efficiencies further benefit from the optical distribution ability of LED lanterns, which 

means we can utilise more of the existing column positions to mitigate any growth in the 

number of assets a road needs to illuminate it to the standards required. 

 

Our delivery objective has always been to ensure that 

our replacement programme is distributed throughout 

the County over each period as opposed to 

concentrating solely in one district or area. This allows 

the benefits the new lighting brings to be displayed 

regionally and reduces prolonged disruption in any area. 

 

 

 

The following activity report shows the districts across the region that have benefited 

from new column installation in the last year;  

 

 

Page 198



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 11 of 27 
 

 

To date we have replaced more than 47,000 street lights and the graphs below indicate 

the number of columns replaced each month during the 2018/2019 period along with the 

overall street lighting replacement progress since contract commencement; 

 

 
 

 
 

4.2       Programme Delivery 

 

Our planned delivery programme is updated every three months and to ensure this is 

visible and readily available, it is shared with Staffordshire County Council, and other 

district and borough councils within the county.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 199



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 12 of 27 
 

Columns are primarily selected for replacement in accordance with their age, but we also  

understand that some columns are more resilient than others and plan our anticipated 

working patterns by using data collected over the past 15 years, data collected by the 

Authority prior to project commencement, and our extensive industry knowledge.  

 

We have completed a full programme review to determine a 

general programme of commencement for each and every 

road up until the contract conclusion in 2028. Whilst this may 

be subject to small changes through accelerated 

deterioration, planning in line with other County 

developments and the like, we can now provide better 

information for any interested party regarding our 

whereabouts for the remainder of the project. 

 

 

A summary of the data is also accessible by all members of the public and any other 

interested parties via our dedicated website. The website also includes an overview of 

our contract activities, answers to Frequently Asked Questions and links to Staffordshire 

County Council and E.ON websites.  

 

 

 

Page 200



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 13 of 27 
 

4.3 Maintenance Progress Update 

 

Well planned, well managed and suitably invested cyclic maintenance regimes are, to us, 

the most important part of the project. Our dedicated teams ensure that all street lights, 

illuminated signs and bollards remain lit and in a good condition – safe and operationally.  

 

This involves a strict programme of lantern cleaning, lamp changes, 

electrical and structural inspections as well as night patrols and 

illuminance checks to make sure that each asset continues to 

perform as designed and required. The project includes a specific 

performance target to maintain the number of lights that are lit 

across the County; above a threshold of 98% which, when you 

consider that we currently maintain over 108,500 units within the 

County, this is no small achievement. 

 

The following chart shows the progress since contract commencement against the target 

requirements and with an average of 99.42% lights lit, it is an excellent achievement and 

demonstrates our year on year commitments. 

 

 
 

Page 201



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 14 of 27 
 

Although street lights are designed to be robust to 

endure the environmental impacts of day to day 

operation, it is not surprising that faults occur when 

we factor in the stresses caused by temperature 

shifts ranging from -20oC to +30oC, driving rain, heavy 

winds and snowfall. There are several ways that we 

can be made aware of faults by members of the 

public – telephone calls and emails directly or via the 

Staffordshire County Council Highways Hotline. We 

also undertake night patrols that look at every street 

light and lit sign once a month to check whether they 

are operating effectively. Our maintenance teams, 

supervisors, engineers and managers also provide 

input by reporting issues they find.  

Due to the investment in equipment, increase in 

maintenance inspections and robust work programming (such as clean and change 

schedules), we have observed a general decrease in the number of reactive faults that 

are reported.  

 

Each fault received is recorded within the Asset Management System to ensure the 

details are recorded to create a detailed history for each individual asset. This provides 

data that can be reviewed to identify trends, support strategic plans, and assist external 

agencies, such as the Police when investigation road traffic incidents or other criminal 

investigations.  

 

The chart below shows the percentage split of where fault reports are generated from, 

the general public plays an important role in this with over one third of all information 

coming from this route. 

 

 

Page 202



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 15 of 27 
 

 

Fault repairs have specific timescales and targets for completion, such as 5 working days 

to attend and rectify an out of light fault. This timescale commences when we become 

aware of the issue and financial penalties are applied when the timescales are not met. 

Of the 291,142 fault reports received since project commencement, we have completed 

951 of these outside of the target response time, which equates to only 0.33%. 

 

Where street lights are fed directly from the underground electrical network owned and 

operated by Western Power Distribution, the Distribution License Holder (DLH) for the 

region, any necessary power failures caused by cable faults and the like can only be 

repaired by them. Each regional DLH is regulated by OFGEM for their response and duties 

to attend all kinds of electrical faults. Whilst this takes a little longer than our normal 5 

day response times we still continue to monitor attendance times and ensure work is 

completed quickly and efficiently. 

 

Where we identify equipment that does not meet our standard, we will complete 

rectification work with the aim of minimising loss of service to the public and preventing 

a system failure. For the purpose of this report, such work has been excluded from the 

data to provide a clearer indication of the actual failures rather than internally monitored 

works.  

 

The following indicates the total number of faults we have attended to each year since 

project commencement;  

 

 
 

The following chart indicates the type of faults we have attended to over the year, and by 

maintaining this level of data we are able to spot trends year on year which help us plan 

future works and strategies; 

 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9A

v
e
ra

g
e
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

F
a
u

lt
s
 

P
e
r 

M
o

n
th

Year

Planned and Reactive Faults

Page 203



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 16 of 27 
 

 
 

 

Emergency events are those that have the potential to cause serious harm or damage to 

members of the public or property. Our permitted response time to attend and make 

events of this nature safe is limited to two hours. Our teams are available 24 hours a day, 

365 days a year and out of the 701 reported emergency events in this period, all were 

attended to within these timescales. Of the 16,060 emergency events that have been 

reported since project commencement, only 12 were attended to outside the target.  

 

The following chart shows the average number of emergency call-outs our teams have 

attended to each year since the project began. It is good to see that well-targeted asset 

investment has also helped to reduce these events since contract commencement; 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 204



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 17 of 27 
 

The decorative appearance of the assets can play an important part in making the street 

scene look clean and attractive.  

 

All new lampposts carry an industrial 

appearance due to the galvanised finish, 

which is applied to help prevent rust and 

limit environmental damage, but they 

quickly become part of the landscape. Any 

units we identify that fail to meet the strict 

criteria that surrounds the decorative 

condition, but are still otherwise 

serviceable, may be painted to restore a 

good appearance and provide a protective 

finish. 

  

Painting, except in certain conservation areas where it is purely provided as a decorative 

finish, is only applied as an aid against the aging process. The paint systems used are 

selected because of their high durability, anti-graffiti coating, long lasting anti-fade 

properties, and anti-rusting agents, which help to not only prevent premature ageing but 

in some cases, can also help to slow down any rusting that has commenced. 

Page 205



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 18 of 27 
 

5.0 CUSTOMER CARE 

 

5.1 Progress Update 

 

Staffordshire is home to over 870,000 people and covers a geographically diverse area of 

some 1,047 square miles. It is therefore important that as a project team we apply a 

consistent, practical and even approach to all concerns, enquiries and complaints 

received. Ensuring that there is a balance between the requirements of the individual, 

the community and any statutory or contractual duties placed upon us can, at times, be 

difficult and challenging. Every concern is considered on its own merits and where 

possible we try to put ourselves in the position of the complainant, however there are 

sometimes concerns that cannot be resolved to everyone’s satisfaction. 

 

Our customer care process starts at the design stages of any 

scheme, with consideration being given to the planned 

locations and positioning of the lampposts. In considering 

how to proceed we must balance the final locations required 

to meet the design with the existing positions, the potential 

aesthetic impact, and of course the overall safety impact for 

highway users. However, where customer relocation requests do 

not meet with our priority factors of reducing energy consumption 

and street clutter, they will not be considered.  

 

We do appreciate that the final positioning of some units can be unpopular at an 

individual level. However, this is often due to alternative solutions carrying high economic 

and environmental impact, such as the net increase of the number of units in a street – 

which in turn increases energy and maintenance costs unreasonably. We also look at the 

benefits to the community and throughout the County when considering our outcome. 

 

The team respond to each concern or complaint raised individually either in person, by 

telephone, letter or e-mail. In some cases where an agreement cannot initially be 

reached, Staffordshire County Council mediate by reviewing the concern and 

recommendations proposed before deciding upon a solution. 

 

We also monitor customer satisfaction with maintenance activities we have carried out. 

We contact individuals who have reported a fault within the month and complete a 

telephone survey, which consists of a series of questions designed to provide feedback 

on how easy it was to make contact with us, how easy it was to report the fault and how 

quickly we completed the repair. The chart below indicates the level of customer 

satisfaction throughout the year against the baseline target;   

 

Page 206



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 19 of 27 
 

 
 

By working closely with Local Authorities, Parish Councils and law enforcement agencies 

as part of our planning and day to day activities we aim to deliver an acceptable scheme. 

In Conservation areas and Areas of Special Interest the level of consultation and 

agreement via the local Conservation Officers and Local Authorities enables us to secure 

approval and, where necessary, additional funding to enhance the aesthetics of a new 

lighting system. 

 

Our website, www.lightingforstaffordshire.net , contains links to report faulty lights, 

documents our Customer Care Charter and Customer Concerns procedure, Frequently 

Asked Questions, and an updated list of roads to be included within asset renewal 

programme. 

 

 

  

0

20

40

60

80

100

J
u
n

e

J
u
ly

A
u

g

S
e

p
t

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a
n

F
e

b

M
a

r

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y

Customer Satisfaction Survey 
Results 2018 - 2019

Actual %
Satisfaction

Minimum %
Target

Page 207

http://www.lightingforstaffordshire.net/


E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 20 of 27 
 

6.0 CRIME AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 

6.1 Project Progress 
 

With more and more cars on the road each year, coupled with investment in smart 

motorways and primary road networks, it is important to consider safety.  

 

Studies are undertaken every year to 

establish the best way of doing something, 

and whilst some often appear conflicting it 

is important to consider that each must be 

taken in context for the situation, which 

will naturally differ depending on the road 

type, speed and general usage. It is unlikely 

that any single strategy will can eliminate 

all incidents and road traffic collisions but 

combinations of different strategies being 

sensibly delivered will make improvements 

over time.  

 

Whilst there is clear evidence to show that traffic 

calming measures such as speed humps will have 

an immediate impact on vehicle speed and 

therefore reduce incidents, the same cannot be 

said for new lighting schemes. It is documented 

that white light technology enhances colour at 

night leading to an increase in object definition, 

and therefore the ability to better judge distance 

and speed and the recognise hazards and 

obstacles, makes a significant difference to road safety.  

 

The new street lights delivered since project commencement combine with other primary 

highway strategies and initiatives to help provide a safer network and environment for 

residents, pedestrians and drivers as well as a deterrent for criminal activity. Studies 

continue to maintain that well-lit streets lead to a reduction in the fear of crime as 

communities are more inclined to venture out after the hours of darkness; and the 

resultant increase and confidence in people traffic can deter criminals from their 

activities.  

 

The overall downward trend of road traffic incidents resulting in personal injury has 

continued within Staffordshire over the past 15 years as can be seen from the attached 

charts. Note the information contained below includes our regions motorway networks 

but excludes the City of Stoke on Trent; 

 

Page 208



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 21 of 27 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 209



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 22 of 27 
 

7.0 ANNUAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 

 

7.1 Project Aims and Progress 

 

E.ON holds social responsibility at the core of all business activities whether it is delivering 

clean sustainable energy through on or off--shore wind farms or investment into the 

development of clean technologies such as battery storage to store renewable energy 

derived from our district heating plants to be able to release back into the community 

when needed. 

 

As part of our commitment to the environment we ensure 

that our processes and operations continue to be challenged 

and externally audited within the strict guidelines of our 

national accreditation to ISO 14001; Environmental 

Management standards. 

 

Within the street lighting industry our focus is to ensure that 

our environmental impact is reduced so far as practicable in 

terms of; the waste that we produce, how we dispose of our 

waste, our carbon footprint from the energy consumed, and 

the way that we procure and use new materials and products. 

 

7.2 Waste Management 

 

Naturally, removing and replacing faulty or life expired parts creates waste, from lamps 

and lanterns right through to the soil we dig up to access the underground electrical 

cable network. 

 

It is a requirement for all waste electrical products to be treated in accordance with the 

WEEE (Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment) directives. All waste lamps, of which 

some may contain potentially environmentally harmful chemicals, gases and coatings, 

are segregated and collected by specialist carriers and treated to ensure that the 

chemicals are neutralised and the glass components are separated from the metal 

elements for onward recycling and reuse.   

 

Where possible, we reuse good quality lanterns from defective units to be able to 

maintain some of the more traditional stock throughout the County, which reduces our 

waste impact at source. 

 

Careful selection and management of our waste contract partners ensures that we do as 

much as we can to reduce our environmental impact. As part of our initial waste 

management, we provide separate skips for different waste types such as metal, 

concrete, WEEE, tarmac and spoil. This means we can reduce follow-up costs by ensuring 

Page 210



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 23 of 27 
 

that secondary segregation at waste transfer stations is minimal and contamination is 

reduced. In working this way throughout all parts of our highways business we have an 

impressive record of waste management and control with less than 1% of our entire 

waste product streams being sent to landfill. 

 

The increased usage of LED technology will not necessarily improve our recycling 

statistics, over 99% would be hard to beat, but the move away from traditional lamp 

sources will reduce the types of waste and improve the overall environmental impact 

with chemical waste being removed from the manufacturing and recycling of the product. 

 

7.3 Energy Consumption 

 

Since the contract commenced in 2003 the unit cost of energy has soared. Throughout 

the country this has placed significant strain upon households and businesses alike, 

including the provisions of public services such as street lighting. 

 

The wholesale cost of energy only equates to around 35% of the overall street lighting 

unit rate. Network costs, costs of the underground and overhead cable network and 

distribution system make up a further 23%, with environmental and social obligations 

supporting ‘green’ initiatives and taxation contributing a further 30%. The final portion is 

made up from the operating costs of the energy suppliers.  

 

Social responsibility therefore comes at a cost but the interventions and investments 

ultimately reduce losses and wastage at the consumption end of the chain which will 

ultimately save cost and increase efficiency in the long run.  

 

Day to day, almost everything we do relies in some part on 

energy consumption and due to cost increases, we have all 

had to rethink our personal strategies in the workplace 

and at home to reduce energy. Energy reduction has 

always been a driver for the contract operationally. 

However, the significant increases in energy costs have 

forced us, and the industry, to rethink our approach to 

creating, delivering and maintaining sustainable, low energy street lighting solutions.  

 

Like the phasing out of domestic tungsten filament lamps, our early intervention to 

remove mercury tungsten lamps netted initial savings of over 500,000 kWh per year and 

the asset renewal programme has continued to steadily reduce energy costs through the 

careful design and lantern selection processes adopted. 

 

The technologies available in 2003 were set to save around 30% of energy consumption, 

and, as previously set out, LED based lanterns have far exceeded these expectations. 

Previous reports have detailed the additional investment strategy of applying dimmable 

Page 211



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 24 of 27 
 

controls to the majority of newly installed lanterns providing multiple stepped reductions 

in light output, and subsequent energy cost, to suit the environment. 

 

Since 2012 we have measured the direct impact of asset renewal and the implementation 

of the dimming strategy and this has a cumulative effect of providing annual energy 

savings of over 1,769,380 kWh. 

 

In September 2015 we completed a significant two year investment programme to 

retrofit dimmable control gear into existing higher wattage lanterns. The investment 

package saw sustainable annual savings of over 3.8 million kWh which equates in today’s 

rates to almost £500,000. 

 

Staffordshire County Council have provided additional investment in the last few years 

for further intervention measures which will have long term advantages. These include 

the de-illumination of various signs and bollards throughout the region which under 

changes in the Traffic Signs Regulations no longer need to be lit. 

 

Over the course of the last 15 years we have, through the ongoing commitment and 

determination of those involved in the project, delivered savings in energy that mean we 

now have an energy consumption significantly less than where we started in 2003 even 

though there are now almost 9,400 more assets on the network due to new housing 

developments, new roads and other investments in the road network than we started 

with. 

 

7.4 Light Pollution 

 

Light pollution has remained a challenging 

perception for the last 10 years, but this has 

now effectively been combatted by 

technological advancements. Upward light 

spillage, or the city glow effect, has been 

significantly been reduced as new lanterns 

have an upwards light ration of less than 1% 

compared to 35% for ones being removed, 

which in turn means that there is more light 

focussed on the highway. 

 

Whilst it will never be possible to completely stop resident concerns regarding light 

pollution, our records indicate that there is a reduction.  

 

Page 212



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 25 of 27 
 

8.0 ANNUAL INNOVATION PLAN 

 

8.1 Project Progress 

 

As previously mentioned, innovation and technological advancement has been significant 

during the last few years. The industry has been revolutionised by affordable LED 

solutions, stand-alone dimmable controls and a range of other measures that reduce 

energy consumption and increase light output. Whilst the momentum of change is set to 

continue, we have maintained our focus on ensuring products we have invested in are 

protected rather than being pushed aside by other new developments.  

 

8.2 Contract Modernisation 

   

In 2012 we completed the Contract Modernisation Review which looked at the key 

delivery outputs of the services required under the contract. In doing this we could 

address some elements of the output requirements to rationalise maintenance regimes 

and realise savings. The following summarises the ongoing benefits we have seen from 

this process. 

 

8.3 Contract Modernisation – Maintenance 

 

Maintenance activities, which account for over 60% of the 

contract deliverable cost, have been addressed to make 

significant savings by changing basic cyclic attendances. We have 

realigned dates for all maintenance activities to ensure that we 

complete all activities in one visit therefore improving efficiency 

and reducing vehicle costs associated with multiple visits. We 

also reduced the number of night patrols and bollard washes to 

align winter and summer regimes.  

 

We have now achieved net savings and cost reductions in excess of £1.5 million to date. 

In addition to this, we have also made significant energy reductions, which provides a 

monthly financial saving for the project. We anticipate that the savings will meet or 

exceed the £4.5 million target by the end of the contract period. 

 

8.4 Contract Modernisation – Asset Renewal 

 

To embrace the emerging technological advancements and energy saving devices, a full 

review of design parameters and requirements was undertaken to ensure we continue to 

be efficient and relevant in meeting the lighting requirements and objectives for 

Staffordshire. 

 

Page 213



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 26 of 27 
 

The full use of LED technology within the residential areas, combined with multi-static 

dimming features to reduce light output and energy consumption, is providing savings in 

line with planned forecasts and the more recent inclusion of higher classification roads 

will now start to show increased benefits. 

 

The energy saving benefits as described earlier in this report will be carefully monitored 

as we progress and we fully expect further improvements and enhancements over the 

coming years. 

 

8.5 Future Plans 

 

In close partnership with Staffordshire County Council, we are working towards 

completing a feasibility study to assess the viability of an energy reduction investment. 

The programme will review the energy consumption of the existing stock and assess 

the energy reduction that could be achieved with the installation of low wattage LEDs.  

 

We currently operate a full remote monitoring system within our northern region PFI’s 

which is a Wi-Fi linked, management system capable of making individual or blanket 

changes to lanterns. This can include the switch on or off times, the amount and time 

when dimming will apply as well as monitoring the status of the lantern to determine if 

it is on or off and some predictive likely causes of a failure. Whilst the cost and need 

within Staffordshire has kept us away from delivering this, there are locations that 

would benefit from this.  

 

  

Page 214



E.ON ENERGY SOLUTIONS LIMITED: STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  

HIGHWAY LIGHTING PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACT 

ANNUAL SERVICE REPORT 19TH MAY 2018 to 18 MAY 2019 

 

 

Page 27 of 27 
 

9.0  SUMMARY 

 

The 2018/19 period has seen the project focus on consolidating processes and operational 

deliverables in a back to basics approach delivering a good quality, efficient, cost effective 

and robust service. Operational changes at higher level will lead to localised changes to 

enhance and provide better accountability of the services we offer. 

 

We have continued to provide best value through our chosen technology solutions, 

annual energy reduction, and combined maintenance regime changes, which have all 

delivered savings back to the Authority. 

 

The Asset renewal and maintenance operations are on or ahead of target having replaced 

almost 2,000 units in the period taking us to over 47,000 assets replaced since project 

commencement, light lit have been well above the target of 98% with an annual average 

of 99.42%. 

 

We have attended to over 13,000 routine fault reports as well as 700 emergency events, 

night patrols have continued throughout which equates to over 1.3 million individual 

inspections and maintenance activities has seen over 33,000 assets attended to for 

routine checks. 

 

If you would like to find out more about the Staffordshire PFI Project or E.ON UK, please 

visit our websites at www.lightingforstaffordshire.net or www.eon-uk.com or write to us 

at: 

 

E.ON Energy Solutions Limited 

Staffordshire PFI Team 

Woolsthorpe Close 

Bilborough 

Nottingham 

NG8 3JP 

 

If you would like to report a street lighting fault please visit the Lighting for Staffordshire 

or Staffordshire County Council website, telephone the Highways Hotline on 0300 111 

8000 or e-mail the details to highways@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

Page 215

http://www.lightingforstaffordshire.net/
http://www.eon-uk.com/
mailto:highways@staffordshire.gov.uk




    
 

 

 
Work Programme 2020/21 
Prosperous Staffordshire Committee 
This document sets out the work programme for the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee for 2019/20.   

The Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee is responsible for scrutiny of highways infrastructure and connectivity, flood and water 

management, education, learning and skills. As such the statutory education co-optees will sit on this committee. The Work Programme 
is linked to the Vision, Outcomes and Priorities detailed in the Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022.  
 
We review our work programme at every meeting.  Sometimes we change it - if something important comes up during the year that we 
think we should investigate as a priority.  Our work results in recommendations for the County Council and other organisations about 
how what they do can be improved, for the benefit of the people and communities of Staffordshire. 
 
County Councillor Ian Parry 
Chairman of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
If you would like to know more about our work programme, please get in touch with Mandy Pattinson, Scrutiny and Support Manager, 
01785 278502 or by emailing mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Prosperous Staffordshire 
Select Committee Work 

Programme  

2019/20  

P
age 217

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:mandy.pattinson@staffordshire.gov.uk


Work Programme 2020/21 

Date of meeting  Item 
 

Details Information/Action/Outcome from 
meeting 

18 June 2020 
Teams meeting 

Covid-19 effects on Further Education 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Anthony Baines 

FE Principle invited  

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation Strategy 
Cabinet Member: Mark Winnington/Philip 
White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

LEP Chairman invited  

24 July 2020 
Teams meeting 

Community Learning Service – Outcomes 
from Investment 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Amanda Darlington 

 Comments outlined by Members fed 
back into future Community 
Learning offers 

Covid-19 school update 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss  

Verbal report – School Heads 
invited to attend 

Noted – further update requested in 
November (Inc. transport) 

17 September 
2020 

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation- quarterly update. 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

Performance of the Highways Contract to 
include PFI Street Lighting (new item) 
and pot hole repair.  
Highways Infrastructure Asset 
Management Plan 
Cabinet Member: David Williams 
Lead Officer: James Bailey 

Six month update plus 
information on pot hole repairs 

 

Flood Management -  
Cabinet Member: David Williams/Julia 
Jessel 
Lead Officer: David Walters/James 
Bailey/Jamie Cooper 

Raised by the Chairman and 
Vice Chairs 

 

12 November 
2020 

Delivering Housing in Staffordshire 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/ Mark 
Parkinson/Matthew Shufflebotham  

Aspire Housing and Homes 
England 

Move to TBC 

P
age 218



Cannock Chase SAC mitigation plans. 
Cabinet Member: Victoria Wilson 
Lead Officer: Sarah Bentley 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny  

Update on Return to Schools Inc. school 
transport.  
Cabinet Member: Jonathan Price 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss 

Requested at July meeting.  
Invite Headteachers (July 
meeting) 

Possible move to Move to 15 
January 2021 to allow for a full 
term’s information 

Household Waste Contract 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson  
 

Pre decision scrutiny. 
 

 

 Staffordshire Air Quality  
Cabinet Member: David Williams 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson/Louise 
Clayton /Nick Dawson 

Pre decision scrutiny.  Subject 
to Gov. approval of Business 
case 

 

15 January 2021 
 

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation- quarterly update. 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

26 February 2021 
 

HS2 update – impact on Staffordshire. 
Cabinet Member:   
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

  

15 April 2021 
 

Economic Recovery, Renewal and 
Transformation- quarterly update. 
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

Additional Items for Discussion 

Briefing note 
requested 

Superfast Broadband 
Cabinet Member: Mark Winnington 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/Paul 
Chatwin 

 Briefing note with reference to map 
that Members can access that 
details coverage. 

Briefing note 
requested 

Entrust - Progress 
Cabinet Member: Mark Deaville 
Lead Officer: Ian Turner 

Initial contract runs from 1.8.19 
– 31.7.20, with option to extend 
for a further 3 years. Update on 
contract; contract performance. 
Impact of change in local 
authority expectations. 

 

To be advised Local Industrial Strategy/Strategic Item agreed at the Triangulation  

P
age 219



Infrastructure Plan 
Cabinet Member:  Philip White 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/Mark 
Parkinson 

Meeting on 30 October 2019. 

To be advised LCWIP (cycling and walking) – link to the 
active travel/sustainable travel to school. 
Cabinet Member: Julia Jessel/J Price 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson/Louise 
Clayton /Nick Dawson 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

To be advised Live Labs. 
Cabinet Member:  
Lead Officer: Darryl Eyres 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

Pre decision scrutiny 

To be advised Apprenticeship funding/ Decentralisation  
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Lead Officers: Anthony Baines 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

To be advised Digital Strategy/ Roll out of infrastructure 
(separate items) 
Cabinet Member: Julia Jessel 
Lead Officer: Anthony Hodge/Paul 
Chatwin 

Requested at triangulation 
meeting 15 July 2020. 

 

 
 

Working Groups 

SEND Working Group 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Sutton 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss 

Next 
meeting 27 
July 2020 

Three representatives of the Committee 
will participate in a Working Group to 
consider the Joint local area SEND 
inspection in Staffordshire and draft action 
plan.  The Group has met on 29.3.19. and 
21.6.19.  Details of dates of meetings of 
South Staffs Hubs have been sent to 
Members of the Working Group and they 
have been advised to attend. 

 

Community Transport and the 
Supported Bus Network 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson 

An Inquiry 
Day is to 
be held in 
April 2020. 

The Committee agreed to monitor the 
impact of the removal of bus subsidies 
going forward.  The Leader of the 
Opposition also requested that a report 
come back to the Committee on 
benchmarking with other local authorities.  

 

P
age 220



To include issues in respect of public 
transport and changes to the Your 
Staffordshire Card Scheme. 

How Well are Small and 
Medium Sized Businesses 
Supported?  
Cabinet Member: Philip White 
Officer: Anthony Baines 

An Inquiry 
Day is to 
be held.   

Agreed at the Triangulation Meeting on 30 
October 2019. 
Discussed at Triangulation meeting 15 
July 2020. 

Director and Scrutiny Support to draft a scope 

 
 
 
 

Membership 
 
Ian Parry (Chairman) 
Tina Clements (Vice Chairman) 
Keith Flunder 
Syed Hussain 
Ian Lawson 
Kyle Robinson 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
Mike Deakin (Co-optee) 
Rev. Preb. Michael Metcalf (Co-optee) 
Jessica Shulman (Co-optee)  
 

Calendar of Committee Meetings – To be notified. 
 
18 June 2020 
24 July 2020 
17 September 2020 
12 November 2020 
15 January 2021 
26 February 2021 
15 April 2021 

 

P
age 221




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held on 24 July 2020
	4 Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation - Quarterly Update
	Appendix 1 – Economic Recovery, Renewal and Transformation Strategy
	Appendix 2 – Economic Bulletin – August 2020

	5 Infrastructure+ and Lighting for Staffordshire Performance Review
	Appendix 1 – Infrastructure Plus Outcomes 2020
	Appendix 2 – Infrastructure Plus Performance Management Roadmap
	Performance Management Framework - Reporting.vsd
	Page-1


	Appendix 3 – Infrastructure Plus Performance Report July 2020
	8_0_Partnership Performance commentary - July 2020 RH Final
	8_1_Performance Framework - Asset Management -05.2020
	8_2_Performance Framework - Claims - 05.2020
	8_3_Performance Framework - Contract - 05.2020
	8_4_Performance Framework - Lab - 05.2020
	8_5_Performance Framework - Overall SPB Pack - 05.2020
	8_6_Performance Framework - Planning -04.2020
	8_7_Performance Framework - Quality Management - 05.2020
	8_8_Performance Framework - Routine Reactive- 05.2020
	8_9_Performance Framework-Networksinspections- 05.2020

	Appendix 4 – Lighting for Staffordshire Progress Report 206 June 2020
	1. Service Providers Progress Report 206 June 2020
	HIGHWAY LIGHTING
	STAFFORDSHIRE PFI
	No.206: Period Ending 30 June 2020

	2. Appendix Headers June 2020
	Ap 1. Accident Register AARP Master
	2. Appendix Headers June 2020
	Ap 2. EC Report June 2020
	2. Appendix Headers June 2020
	Ap 3. PS1A - Summary 2020-06
	PS1A Summary

	Ap 3. PS1a AARP Blk 2 - 5 Progress Summary Rev 1.1
	AARP Block 3

	2. Appendix Headers June 2020
	Ap 4.1 Monthly Statistics 2020-06
	Ap 4.2 Master PS Report Data Concise
	PS 2 CHART #
	PS 4a CHART #
	PS 4b CHART #

	2. Appendix Headers June 2020
	Ap 5. Performance Standard Report 206
	Summary
	PS 1b
	PS 2
	PS 3
	PS 4a
	PS 4b
	PS 5
	PS 6


	Appendix 5 – Lighting for Staffordshire Annual Service Report 2018/19

	7 Work Programme



